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NOTICE OF THE TWENTY-THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 23« ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SOTC TRAVEL LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON
THURSDAY, AUGUST 29, 2024, AT 11TH FLOOR, MARATHON FUTUREX, N.M JOSHI MARG, LOWER PAREL (EAST),
MUMBAI 400013 AT 2,30 P.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1,

To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, together with the

Reports of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditors' thereon.

To re-appoint Mr. Debasis Nandy (DIN: 06368365), who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and approve payment of commission to Non-Executive Independent Directors in case of Loss /

Inadequacy of Profits for the Financial Year 2023-2024 and in this connection, if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 197, 198, and other applicable provisions, if any of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 ("the Rules"), (including any statutory modifications or amendments thereto or re-enactments or substitutions
made thereof for the time being in force), and in terms of the approval of the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May
3, 2024 and subject to such approvals, permissions and sanctions, if any, as applicable, the consent of Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded, for payment of remuneration by way of Commission to Non-Executive Independent
Directors of the Company, in such manner and in all respects as maybe decided and determined by the Board of Directors of

the Company, for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration payable to the Non-Executive Independent Directors will be in addition to the
payment of sitting fees paid to directors for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, any Directors of the Company or the President
& Chief Financial Officer or the President & Group Head - Human Resources or the Senior Vice President - Human Resources
or the Company Secretary be and are hereby authorised severally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
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necessary, expedient, proper or desirable and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard at any
stage, without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the Members of the Company to the end and
intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”
To consider and approve voluntary / charitable contribution of Rs. 10 Lacs fo Fairfax India Charitable Foundation
(FICF) under Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) for the Financlal Year 2024-2025 and in this connection,
if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification{s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

REOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 181 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013
(including any statutory modifications or amendments thereto or re-enactments or substitutions made thereof for the time
being in force), and in terms of the approval of the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 3, 2024, the consent of
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for voluntarity contributing Rs. 10 Lacs by SOTC Travel Limited (SOTC
/ the Company} as a Settlor - towards administering and running expenses of the Fairfax India Charitable Foundation (FICF),
for the financial year 2024-25, notwithstanding that such contribution exceeds 5% of average net profits during the three years,
immediately preceding the current financial year;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of the Company be and is hereby authorized to sign and execute such agreements,
papers, letters, documents, etc. and to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining necessary approvals, if any, and
to séttle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered

necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution;
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, any Directors of the Company or the President
& Chief Financial Officer or the President & Group Head - Marketing, Service Quality, Value Added Services & Innovation or
the Company Secretary be and are hereby authorised severally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
necessary, expedient, proper or desirable and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard at any
stage, without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the Members of the Company to the end and
intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval therete expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
11th Floor, Marathon FutureX, N

NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),

Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400013

CIN: U63040MH2001PLC131691 Shally Gupta
Phone: +91 22 4905 9100 Company Secretary
Fax: +91-22-4905 9700 ACS - 24078

Website: www sclcindia.com
Date: July 29, 2024
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NOTES AND INSTRUCTIONS:

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM/ Meeting") is entitled to appoint one or more
proxies to attend and vote instead of himself / herself and such proxies need not be a member of the company. In order to be
valid, proxy forms duly completed in all respects should be lodged with the Company at its registered office not later than
forty-eight hours before the commencement of fhe meeting.

A person can act as éproxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a

proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the Special Businesses forms a

part of this Notice.

Members attending the Annual General Meeting (AGM} are requested to bring with them the Attendance Slip attached to the
Annual Report duly filled in and signed and handover the same at the venue of Annual General Meeting. Members are
requested to bring their copies of Annual Report while attending the meeting.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting. The Register of
Contracts and Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013

will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying notice and explanatory statement setting out material facts are open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during the business hours on any working days except Saturdays, Sundays
& Public Holidays between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. dp to the date of the Annual General Meeting and the same is also available
for inspection by the Members at the Meeting. Members may also note that the Notice of the Company for the financial year

2023-24 will be available on Companies website at www.sotcindia.com.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual General Meeting pursuant to
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send a duly cerfified copy of the Board Resolution together with
their specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.
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7. Brief resumes of Directors proposed to be re-appointed/ commencement of fresh term, nature of their expertise in specific
functional areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships / chairmanships of Board
Committees, shareholding and relationships between directors inter-se and other details as per Secretarial Standard on
General Mesting (SS-2), are provided in the Explanatory Statement of this Notice.

8. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM may contact Company Secretary by sending an email request at

the emalil id: enguiry@sotc.in

Registered Office: 1Hh Fisor, Marathon Futurex, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Paral.
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9. Route Map of venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
11th Floor, Marathon Futurex, e

NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), \)))\
Mumbal, Maharashtra, 400013

CIN: U63040MH2001PLC131691 Shaify Gupta

Phone: +81 22 4905 8100 Company Secretary
Fax: +91-22-4905 9700 ACS - 24078

Website: www,sofcindia.com
Date: July 28, 2024
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STATEMENT SETTING OUT MATERIAL FACTS (EXPLANATORY STATEMENT) PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 '

In conformity with the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General
| Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the following explanatory statement and annexures thereto
setting - out all material facts relating to Special Business as set out at Iltem Nos. 3 & 4 of the accompanying Notice, should be

taken as forming part of this Notice.
ftem No. 3

TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE PAYMENT OF COMMISSION TO NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS (NED-|Ds)
IN CASE OF LOSS/INADEQUACY OF PROFITS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024

As per the provisions of Section 149, 197, 198, and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“the Rules”) and taking
into account the roles and responsibilities of the directors, it is proposed that the remuneration by way of commission be paid,
collectively to all the Non-Executive Directors, particularly Independent Directors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.

It is pertinent to note that the NED-IDS of the Company bring with them significant professional expertise and rich experience
across a wide spectrum- of functional areas such as strategic leadership and management experience, technology and digital
expertise, industry and sector experience / knowledge, financial and risk management, governance, global business / intemational
expertise, public policy, etc. The NED-IDs attend the meetings of the Board of Directors and thereby devoting their sufficient time
and attention to its professional obligations for informed and balanced decision making. They also help in bringing independent
judgement to bear on Board deliberations and assist in implementing the best corporate governance. Having regard to the above
and in order to retain the rich expertise of the NEDs, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 3, 2024, accorded their
consent for payment of commission to Non-Executive Independent Directors subject to approval of the Shareholders, However,
Mr. Madhavan Menon and Mr. Debasis Nandy, have waived their right / entitlement to commission and sitting fees, hence this

commission shall be paid to only Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company.

The Company therefore seeks approval of the Shareholders for paying such remuneraticn as envisaged in Schedule V of the

Companies Act, 2013, the commission proposed to be paid is as follows:
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Sr. No. | Name Days Amount
(In INR Mn)
1 Mrs. Kishori Udeshi 365 1.0
3 Mr. Nilesh S Vikamsey - 365 1.0
4 Mr. Rahul Bhagat 365 1.0
Total | 3.0

The information as required to be disclosed under paragraph (iv} of the second proviso after Paragraph B of Section Il of Part || of
Schedule V fo the Companies Act, 2013 and the disclosures required under the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings is

given as an Annexure to this Notice.

The Company has not defaulted on payment of dues to ahy hank or public financial institution or non-convertible debenture holders

or other secured creditors, if any.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 3 of the Notice for approval of the Members.
None of the Interested Directors holds any shares in the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their refatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
save & except Mrs. Kishori Udeshi, Mr. Nilesh S Vikamsey and Mr. Rahul Bhagat and their respective relatives, to the extent of

being reciplent of the commission as set-out in item no. 3 of the accompanying Notice.

ltem No. 4

TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE VOLUNTARY / CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTION OF RS. 10 LACS TO FAIRFAX INDIA
CHARITABLE FOUNDATION (FICF) UNDER SECTION 181 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 {THE ACT) FOR THE FINANCIAL

YEAR 2024-2025:

FICF requires approximately Rs. 93 Lakhs towards its annual operational expenses for FY 2024-25, Earlier, FICF's
operational expenses were supported by donations from Settlors. Due fo the impact of the Pandemic, SOTC, as a
Settlor, could not contribute any funds between FY 2020 and 2024. During this time, FICF had to manage its operational
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expenses through the contributions of other donors with a 5% charge from other donors, as administrative fee, Through
Feirfax India Charitable Foundation, the Company undertakes its CSR activities, by providing affordable, quality dialysis
services to patients in parts of India where there is limited/nonexistent dialysis infrastructure.

Given that this is not enough to meet the annual expenses of the Foundation for FY 2024-25, FICF is requesting SOTC
as a Settlor (despite the Company not needing to confribute CSR funds as per the CSR provisions under Section 135
of The Companies Act, 2013}, to support fo the extent possible to help cover the annual expenses of FICF,

Pursuant fo Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of a company may contribute to bona fide
charitable and other funds. However, in case the amount to be contributed exceeds five per cent (5%) of its average net
profits for the three immediately preceding financial years, then prior permission of the shareholders in general meeting
shall be required for such contribution. Since the average net profits of the Company for the three immediately preceding
financial yearé as calculated per the provisions of Section181 of the Companies Act, 2013 is negative, the Board of
Directors of the Company proposes the above resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for approval of the Members for making
voluntary /-charitable contribution exceeding the limits as set out .in Section 181 on account of logs / inadequacy of profits in the
years 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24 up to an amount not exceeding Rs. 10 Lacs (Rupees Ten Lacs Only) during the financial
year 2024-25.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out in ltem no. 4 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

Save and Except Mr. Madhavan Menon and Mr. Vishal Suri and thelr respective relatives, no other Director or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is / are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Ordinary

Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice.

zgy/
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STATEMENT CONTAINING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED [N SCHEDULE V OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

"~ General Information:

(ITEM NO. 3 OF NOTICE)

A. Nature of industry — The Company belongs to service Industry, providing Travel and Financial Services that include Foreign

Exchange, Corporate Travel, Leisure Travel, and Insurance.

B. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production- The Company is carrying on operations since its

incorporation on April 20, 2001. However, the business activity commenced only after the Scheme of Amangement and
Amalgamation effected w.e.f 25.11.2019.

C. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial

institutions appearing in the prospectus — N.A.

D. Financial performance based on given indicaiors - Financial Performance of the Company (Standalone figures)

(Al Amount in Rs. Millions, uniess otherwise stated)

FY ended

Particulars For the For the FY ended  For the FY ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

| Total Revenue 9890.84 5,823.62 12,899.81

Profiti(loss) ~ Before | 275.02 166.28 (3,591.13)

Tax

Net Profit/ (loss) After | 55.80 102.93 {2,281.08)

Tax

Proposed Dividends | Nil NIL NIL

ks
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Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any -
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Sr No | Name of Company where invested Type of Investment | No of securities | Amount in INR
1. Travel Circle International (Mauritius) Limited, Mauritius Equity 2,108,000 136,083,143
2. Travel Circle Intemational (Mauritius) Limited, Mauritius Preference 11,800,000 748,844,622

The Company has no foreigh collaborations as on the date of this Notice,
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hitps:/fsotcindia.com/board-

Particulars Mrs. Kishori Udeshi Mr. Nifesh Vikamsey Mr. Rahul Bhagat
Background The details are available on | The details are available on the web | The details are available on the
details the web site of the Company: | site of the Company. | web ~site of the Company:

https.//sctcindia.com/board-of-

of-directors.asp

directors.asp

hitps://sotcindia.com/board-of-
directors.asp

Past Remuneration (payment of commission) In Rs,

https://sotcindia.com/board-

FY 2022-23* Rs. 4,00,000 Rs. 4,00,000 Rs. 4,00,000
_FY 2021-22 Nil Nil Nil
FY 2020-21 Nil Nil Nil
Recognition or | The details are available on | The details are available on the web | The details are available on the
awards the web site of the Company: | site of the Company: | web site of the Company:

hitps://sotcindia.com/board-cf-

hitps.//sotcindia.com/board-of-

suitability

Company play an important
role in sustainable growth,
aftaining the overall strategic
goals of the Company and
ensure adoption of good
governance practices. The
of

Independent  Directors

your Company bring with

them significant professional

of-clirectors.asp directors.asp directors.asp
Job profile and | The Directors of the | The Directors of the Company play an | The Directors of the Company play

important role in sustainable growth,
attaining the overall strategic goals of
the Company and ensure adoption of
The

your

good governance practices.

Independent  Directors  of

Company bring with them significant
rich

professional  expertise  and

experience and knowledge across a

wide spectrum of functional areas

an important role in sustainable

growth, attaining the overall
strategic goals of the Company

and ensure adoption of good

govemance  practices,  The
Independent Directors of your
Company bring with them

significant professicnal expertise

and rich  experience and
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-expertise and rich experience
and knowledge across a wide
spectrum of fdnctional areas
such as business strategy,
finance and  corporate
governance. They actively
with the
Management for fostering the
the
Company's performance and
high
governance standards and

engage
effectiveness of
setting

quality

norms for the Company.

such as business strategy, finance
and corporate govemance. They
actively engage with the Management
for fostering the effectiveness of the
Company's performance and setting
high quality govemance standards

and norms for the Company.

knowledge across a wide spectrum
of functional areas such as
business strategy, finance and
governance.  They
with  the

Management for fosteting the

corporate
actively  engage
effectiveness of the Company's
performance and setting high
quality governance standards and

norms for the Company.

Remuneration As mentioned in the | As mentioned in the resolution read | As mentioned in the resolution
proposed resolution - read with | with Statement setting out material | read with Statement setting out
Statement  setting  out | facts set out at ltem No. 3 of the | material facts set out at Item No. 3
material facts set out at Item | accompanying Nofice of the accompanying Notice
No. 3 of the accompanying
Notice
Comparative Taking into consideration the | Taking into consideration the size of | Taking into consideration the size

remuneration
with

respect to

profile

industry, size of
the
profile  of

company,
the
position and

person (in case of

size of the Company, the
profile of the Independent
Director, her responsibilities,
the industry benchmarks, the
remuneration proposed to be
paid is commensurate with

the remuneration packages

the - Company, the profile of the

Independent Director, his
respensibilities, the industry
benchmarks, the  remuneration

proposed to be paid is commensurate

with the remuneration packages paid

of the Company, the profile of the

Independent Director, his
responsibilities,  the  industry
henchmarks, the remuneration
proposed to  be paid s
commensurate with the

remuneration packages paid to
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the
details

expatriates
relevant
would be with

paid to directors in other
companies in the industry

to directors in other companies in the

industry

directors in other companies in the
industry

respect to the
country of his
origin)
Pecuniary
relationship
directly or

indirectly with the
company, or
refationship  with
the
personnel

managerial
(or
other director), if
any

To the extent of being
recipient of remuneration in
form of Commission and the
sitting fees for attending the

Board Meetings in the

capacity of Non-Executive

Independent Director of the
Company

To the extent of heing recipient of
remuneration in form of Commission
and the sitting fees for attending the
Board Meetings in the capacity of Non-
Executive Independent Director of the
Company

To the extent of being recipient of
remuneration in  form  of
Commission and the sitting fees for
attending the Board Meetings In
the capacity of Non-Executive
Independent Director of the

Company

*Paid in FY2023-24 -

Other Information

A. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits - For FY2023-2024, the Company had reported Profits Before Taxation of INR

275.02 Mn. However, Non-Executive Independent Director's commission, as per the Companies Act, 2013 needs to be

applied on the profits arrived as per Section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, including the brought forward losses

(calculated under these sections) of earlier years. The Company had carried forwarded losses due to Covid in previous years

and the profit arrived at as per the calculations turned — out to be 2 loss, due to brought forward losses of previous years.

i
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B. Steps taken to Mitigate the impact: - The key focus for the Company during the last year was to increase the efficiencies,
control costs and emerge strong on the back of evaluated measures and steps which would help it safeguard broader level
interests of the Company and its associated pariners and stakeholders. The Company took several decisive actions and
executed strategies around safety, cost rationalization, customer focus, innovation, enhanced use of technology ete. These
comprehensive efforts have enabled us to earn a Profits Before Taxation of INR 275.02 Mn and the Company is expecting to
derive benefits of these steps in coming years.

Expected Increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms - The transformational changes carried out in
the Company led by innovation, autemation and customer centricity assisted us in achieving a remarkable recovery in sales
and business results in the financial year 2023-24, It is expected that the Company will sustain its profits in future years and
the brought forward losses will be wiped - off in the coming years.

Registered Office: 11th Floor, Merathon Futurex, MM .Joghi Ma:
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Information as required under Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India is under: ffor ltem No. 3]

diversified experience in
banking and regulatory
sectors

Name Mr. Debasis Nandy Mrs. Kishori Jayendra ' M. Nilesh Vikamsey Mr. Rahul Bhagat
Udeshi
DIN 06368365 01344073 00031213 (02473708
Age 59 Years 80 Years 60 Years 60 Years
| Qualifications IMr, Debasis Nandy is a| M.A. Degree in { Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey is a| Mr. Rahul Bhagat has a
 [Chartered Accountant and | Economics from | Chartered  Accountant, | Master of Ars degree in
a Finance Professional. He | Bombay University Diploma in  Information | International Affairs from
is an Associate Member of System Audit (DISA) of the [ College  of Wiliam and
the Institute of Chartered ICA!, Business | Mary, Williamshurg, USA,
Accountants of India. Consuttancy Studigs | and a Bachelor of Arts
Caurse degree in History (Honors)
fom St Stephen's
College, Delhi University,
India.
Experience |30 Years of experience | Over 50 vyears of | About 40 years Over 30 years.

. Reglstered Cfiice: THa Flaok Marathon Fufires, N Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbat, Maharashirs 400013

W Boleldiasom BIN UBS040MH2E01 PLCT31691




SUTC Travel Limitgd

Marathiar Fullrex, 5- Wlnc;

‘TSth FIOD: N, b, ol Marg,
1

(.)C)Hbui"l'lel www solnin

Brief

Profile

and Expertise

including
nature
expertise
specific
functional

areas

of

in

Mr. Debasis Nandy is a
Chartered

and a

Accountant

Finance
Professional. He is an
Associate Member of the
Chartered

India.

Institute ~ of
Accountants  of
Debasis has been a part
the
Development Program at
Wharton
Business School. Debasis

of
and Londen

has been with Thomas
Cook India since 2008
and is presently the
President & Group Chief
Financial Officer. He has
over 30 years of diverse
experience in the field of
Finance & Accounts, with
stints at Piramal
Healthcare, Aviva, ICl and

tndian Aluminium.

Mr. Debasis is

responsible  for  and
oversees the Finance &
function  of

Cook

Accounts

Thomas fndia

Exscutive |

Mrs, Kishori
Udeshi has MA.
Degree in Economics
from Bombay University.
She moved on to a
professional c¢areer in
central  banking and
became the first woman
to be appointed as
Deputy Governor o the

Reserve Bank of India.

She the first

Executive Director of the

Wwds

RBI to be nominated on
the Board of State Bank
of India. As Deputy

Governor, one of her

portfolios  was  the
regulation and
supervision  of  the
banking and non-
banking sector. She

represented the RBI on
the
Liaison Group and the

Core  Principles
Core Principles Working
Group on Capital, of the

Basel Commiifee on

Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey is a
senior partner at KKC &
Associates LLP {Formerly
- Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)
- an 86-year-old
Chartered
firm. He is an Independent

Accountants

Director in many other
Listed Unlisted
Companies. He is a Past
President of ICAIl He was
a Director & the past

and

Chairman of Federal Bank
Limited and member of
{RDA,

Mr. Vikamsey is presently
a member of the Advisory
Committee Mutual
Funds of SEBI, Chairman
BFSI

Vice

on
of National
Committee  and
President of West India
Council of Indo American
Chamber of Commerce &
Core Group Member of
Chartered

Society

(BCAS). He is Member of

Bombay

Accountants'

Recognized by The Asian
Banker on their List of
Leading Practitioners, Mr
Rahul N Bhagat is a
versatile Consumer
Banking professional with
close fo 3 decades of

experience.

Mr  Bhagat

career as a management

began his

trainee at ANZ Grindlays
Bank (1989-1997) before
joining Bank of Ametica as
(1997-
1999). When BankAm sold

their consumer banking

Vice  President

portfolios across numerous
Asian markets, Mr Bhagat
joined HDFC Bank where
he spent the next 16 years
(1999-2015) playing a
significant role in building
the retail banking business
into a dominant market
As
Country Head - Retall
Marketing &
Direct Banking Channels,

leadership  position.

Liahilities,

Registerad Office: -11th Flogk, |

fathon Futures, T Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Muribai, Maharashlea 400013
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Group Companies, which
span across 4 continents

and 24 countries.

With his expertise and
diverse experience, Mr.
Debasis Nandy plays a
significant role in the
the
Company and is a key

performance  of

member of the Group
Management Committee.

Banking Supervision, set
up by the Bank for
International

Settlements,

Switzerland, Aé Deputy
Governor she was on the
Board of  SEB,
NABARD, Exim Bank
and was the Chairman of
Bharatiya Reserve Bank
Note Mudran (Pvt.) Ltd.,
Bangalore as also
Chairman of the Deposit
Insurance and Credit

Guarantee Corporation.

In 2006 the Reserve
Bank of India appainted
her as Chairman of The
Banking Codes and
Standards  Board of
India. She demitted this
office in  December
2011,
Member of the Financial
Secfor

Reforms

She was a

Legislative
Commission
by

chaired Justice

Boards  of
Blacksoil  Group, 1C3
Institute, MentorMyBoaid
&  Mahatma  Phule
Renewable Energy and

Advisory

Infrastructure  Technology
Lid (MAHAPREIT)
Alternate Investment Fund
(AIF) and Jain Chartered
Accountants  Federation.
He is a trustee in ‘Sayagyi
U Ba Khin' Memorial Trust
(Vipassana  International
Academy, Igatpur) & few
educational  trusts  in

Mumbai.

He was an observer on the
Board = of
Federation of Accountants
and Member of IFAC's
Advisory

International

Technology
Group, was Chairman of
SEBI's  Qualified  Audit
Report Committee
(QARC} and was member
of Corporate Governance
Committee  chaired by

Mr Bhagat reported fo the
CEQ for 10 years and was
a member of the Senior

Leadership Team. He
thereafter partnered
Vodafone India Ltd in

successtully applying for a
Payments Bank licence in
2015 and was appointed
CEQ (designate) of the
then bank,
During extensive
Mr
Bhagat's contribution and

proposed
his
banking  career,

leadership  has  been

recognised through

invitation  to  numerous

Boards and Committees,

including: Standing
Committee  on | Retall
Banking, Indian Bank's
Association;  Executive
Committee Naticnal
Securities Depdsitory

Limited; Customer Global
Advisory Board, NCR Corp
(USA); Global Advisory
Board, Diebold Inc (USA);




BOTC Travel Limiitead
Marathoin Fulurex; 8- W,
1341 Flogr, M. B, Josht Mary,
Lonwer P&u’e! {Eae.\)

A EAIRER, Company v

e e
Sririshna, set up by the [Uday  Kotak, Primary|and Member of Indian

Government of India. | Market Advisory | Public Schools’ Society.
Mrs. Udeshi is currently Commitiee and Commitiee Mr Bhagat' is  actively
a Director of Haldyn on  Disclosures  and involved in the fields of
Glass Limiteg, [ON |AccoUnting  Standards|py oo and  Heritage
Exchange (India) (SCODA). He Is member Conservation. He was on
Limited, Cartrade Tech |°f Inemational Auditing| o coveming Board of
Limited and  Kalyan | 39 Assurance Standards | o ooy aohol s a
Jewellers India Limited. Board (IAASE) Reference member of the Indian
Group for Audits of Less | e eehaois Society and
Complex Entities. He is a a Founder Director of the
‘Speaker/Chairman,  at World Monuments Fund
various _ seminars, India Association. He also
meetings, lectures held by serves as an Independent
various Committees, Director  on  multiple
Regional Councils, | commercial boards and
Branches & Study Circles uses his experience to
of ICAl and various other invest in and mentor early-
organizations. stage Fintech and Retail

focused businesses.

Terms  and|Appointment as Non-| Mrs. Kishori Udeshi was | Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey was | Mr. Rahul Bhagat was re-
Conditions of | Executive Director, re-appointed as Non- [re-appointed as Non-|appointed  as  Non-
appointment | eligible for commission,| Execufive indepe_n‘dent Executive  Independent|Executive  Independent
or re« | Sitting fees for attending | Director for a second | Director for a second term | Director for a second term
appointment | Board Meetings, | term of five consecutive | of five consecutive years|of five consecutive years
Reimbursement of| years effective from |effective from August 16, | effective from June 1, 2022
expenses for attending| June 1, 2022 to May 31, [ 2022 to August 15, 2027 in|to  May ’31, 2027 in

“Ragisterad Office: 111h Flgor, Marsthon Fufurex, NM Jasm Marg Lower Farel (East), Mumbs, Maharashivg 400013
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the meetings but has| 2027 in conformity with | conformity with | conformity with Company's
voluntarily ~ waived his| Company's policy On |Company's policy On|policy On  Corporate
entitement to commission | Corporate Governance. | Corporate Govemance. | Govemance.
and Sitting fees.
He is liable to retire hy
rotation.

Past Nl *Commission of Rs. |*Commission of Rs.|*Commission of Rs.

Remuneration 4,00,000/~ paid for |4,00,000/- paid  for 4,00,000/-pa'idforfinancial

financial year ended |financial year ended|ysar ended March 31,
March 31, 2023. March 31, 2023, 2023,

Remuneration | Appointment as  Non-| Remuneration payable |Remuneration  payable | Remuneration payable

Payable Executive Director, | shall include |shall include commission |shall include commission
eligible for commission,| commission as may be |as may be decided by the | as may be decided by the
Sifting fees for attending| decided by the | Company, sitting fees|Company, sitting fees
Board Meetings, | Company, sitting fees |depending  upon  the|depending upon  the
| Reimbursement of} depending upon the | number of Board meetings | number of Board meetings
expenses for attending| number  of  Board |attended and | attended and
the meetings but has| meetings attended and |reimbursement of | reimbursement of
voluntarily waived his| reimbursement of 'expenses incurred for|expenses incurred for
entitlement to commission | expenses incurred for | attending the meeting. attending the meeting
and Sitting fees. aftending the meeting.

% Ragistered Offica: T1th Foor, Marathon Fulurex, NI Joshi arg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbal, Maharashtra 400015,
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Date of first
appointment
on the Board

October 23, 2018

June 01, 2017

August 16, 2017

June 01, 2017

Details of
* | shareholding
in the
Company

Nil

Nit

Nil

Nil

Relation with
other
Directors,
Manager and
.| other Key

Managerial
Personnel
(KMPs)

No relation with any
Directors, Managers and

KMPs

No relation with any
Directors, Managers and

KMPs

No relatien with any
Directors, Managers and
KMPs

No relation with any
Directors, Managers and

KMPs

No. of Board
meetings
attended
during  the
financial year
202324

4 out of 4 for the financial
year 2023-2024

4 out of 4 for the financial

year 2023-2024

4 out of 4 for the financiat
year 2023-2024

4 out of 4 for the Financial
Year 2023-24

Directorships
of other

e SOTC Travel Limited

+«  Shriram

India Limitad

Automall

= #lIFL Finance Limited
« 360 One Wam Limited

e SOTC Travel Limited

‘Registered Offles: 1Hh Flook, Matathon Fuiturex, NM Joshi Marg, Lawsr Parel (East), Munbal, Maharmshia 400013
Wwwwsolsindincom GV UE3040MH2001F o
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Boards as on
March 3,
2024

-

Indian Horizon
Marketing = Services
Limited

TC Tours Limited
Travel  Corporation
(India) Limited
Jagson Pal
Pharmaceuticals

- Limited

TravelJunkie
Solutions Private
Limited

BDC Digiphoto
Imaging  Solutions

Lanka (Private)
Limited

| Horizon Travel
Services LLC
Thomas Cook
(Mauritius)  Helding
Company Limited

Private Limited
Thomas Cook Lanka
(Private) Limited

Luxe Asia (Private)
Limited

SITA World  Travel

Thomas Caok {India)
Limited

ION Exchange
(India} Limited
Haldyn
Limited
Kalyan  Jewellers
India Limited

SQOTC Travel Limited
Cartrade Tech
Limited

Sobek Auto India
Private Limited

Glass

PNB Housing Finance
Limited

SOTC Travel Limited
Life
Trustee Limited

*

Nippon India

Allcargo Gati Limited
(Formerly Gati Limited)
Gati Express & Supply
Chain Private Limited

-

(Formerly Gati-
Kintetsu Express
Private Limited)

Alicargo Logistics
limited

Thejo Engineering |
Limited

Thomas Cook (India)
Limited

Padmini VNA
Mechatronics Limited
ARKA Financial
Holdings Private
Limited

World Monuments
Fund India Association
JSW 1P Holdings
Private Limited

i

Registerad Offas: 11th Floor, Marathan Futurex, MM Joshi Marg, Lower Peret (East), Mumibal, Maherashita 400013
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e Thomas Cook
{Mauritius) Operations
Company Limited

+ Thomas Cook

= Travel

s Asian Trails Holding

o  DEIl Holdings Limited
e Tropiculture (Private)

(Mauritius) ~ Holidays
Limited

Circle
International Limited

L.

Commitee - Chairman

Governance Committee-
Member

Limited
Memberships/ | Jagson Pal Shriram Automall [IFL Finance Limited -
) India Limited
Chairmanship | Pharmaceuticals Audit Committee-
. Audit Committee- Chai
of Limited . arman
Chairperson
Committees |, s Comitee-| Nomination and
as on ., . omination an remuneration Committes-
Chairman Remuneration
March 31, Member
_ ? _— Committee- Member )
2024 Nomination and Risk _ Management
: Remuneration Committee :-(.}N.tE:r;change {India) | committee- Member
imite
- Member Corporate Social
, Stakehclder Responsibilty Committee-
Stakeholder's gelaﬂc{;shqid . Member
ionshi ittes —i Committee-Member
Relationship Committee | T Strategy Committee-
Member Corporate Social Member
Responsibility . .
Risk Management] committee- Member Environment &  Social

Registarad Offica: 11th Floor, Marathon Futurex, M doshi Marg, Lower Parel {Eash), Munibal, Maharashtra 400013
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Risk Management 360 One Wam Limited
Committee- Chairperson
Audit Committee- Member
Haldyn Glass Limited
Audit Committee- Nomination and
Member Remuneration Committee-
Member
Nomination and
Risk Management

Remuneration .
Committee- Chairperson | Committee- Member
Corporate ~ Social
Responsibility and
Environment, Social &

Governance  Committee-

Corporate Social
Responsibility
Committes- Member

CarTrade Tech Limited

Member
Audit Committee- Thomas Cook (India)
Chairperson Limited
Nomination and Audit Committee-
Remuneration Chaiman
comittee- Member Stakeholders Relationship
Thomas Cook {India} | Committee- Member
Limited
PNB Housing Finance
Audit Committee- Limited
Member
Audit Committee-
Nemination and Chairman
remuneration )
committee- Member Nomination and
Remuneration Committee-
Corporate Social Member

Responsibility

Committee- Chairperson | NIPPOn  Life  India

Trustee Limited

Audit Committee- Member

Registerad Offioe: 11 F!aar Maraﬂmn Fuiurax N doshi Marg Lower Farel {East} Mwni:za} Wizharashig 400074
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Stakeholder

Member

Relationship Committee-

Commitiee of Directors-
Member

Committee of Trustee-
Member

Risk Management
Committee- Member

Allcargo Gati Limited

(Formerly
Known as Gati Limited)
Audit Committee- Member

Risk Management
Committee- Chairman

Gati Express & Supply

Chain Private Limited
{Formerly known as

Gati-Kintetsu  Express
Private Limited )

Audit Committee-
Chairman

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee-
Member

Allcargo Logistics
Limited

Audit Committee-
Chairman

Governance and
Nomination &

i
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Remurnieration Committee-
Member

Risk ~ Management,
Finance, Strategy and
Legal  Committee -
Member

Thejo Engineering
Limited

Audit Committee- Member

Compensation/Nomination
and ' Remuneration
Committee- Member

Justification |{NA ' NA NA ~|NA
for

choosing the
appointees
for
appointment
as
Independent

Directors -

*Paid in FY2023-24

#Fursuant to completion of term as Independent Director (ID) of lIFL Finance Limited, Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey ceased fo be ID of the company
w.e.fMarch 31, 2024, close of business hours

#
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A TAIRFAX (fompany

ATTENDANCE SLIP

23 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Venue of the meeting: 11th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013
Date & Time: Thursday, August 29, 2024, at 2.30 P.M,

Joint shareholders may obtain additicnal Slip at the venue of the meeting.

Registered Folio No./DP 1D & Client 1D

Name of the Member

Address of the Member

No. of equity shares heid

| certify that | am the registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

I/We hereby record myfour presence at the 23 Annual General Meeting of the Company at 11th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Lower
Parel, Mumbai 400013 on Thursday, August 29, 2024 at 2.30 P.M.

Name of the Member : Signature ;
Name of the Proxy holder: Signature :
NOTE:

1. A Member/Proxy holder attending the meeting should bring copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting.

2. Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.
3. Please complete the Folio No./ DP ID No., Client ID No. and name of the Member/Proxy holder, sign this Attendance Slip and

hand it over, duly signed, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.

A

Reglstored Office: 11th Fioar, Marathon Futurex, NW doshi #earg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbsl, Mahareshta 400013
Wwwstleiidideom S CINUEZGADMHZ001FLC 131691
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FORM MGT-11: PROXY FORM
{Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19%(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration)
- Rufes, 2014]
Registered Folio No./DP ID & Client ID
Name of the Member
Registered Address of the Member
Email id
No. of equity shares held
|/ We, being the member(s) of ' equity shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:
1. Name: '
Of
Emait; Signature:; or failing him/her
2. Name:
Of
Emall: Signature: or failing him/her,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on my/our behalf at the 234 Annual General Meeting of the Company,
to be held on August 29, 2024, at 2.30 p.m. at 11th Floor, Marathon Futurex, N.M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013 and
at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as indicated helow: '

Sr. No. Resolution(s) Optional
Ordinary Business For Against
1, To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements for tha Financial Year ended March

31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditors thereon

Wvww.scloindie.com  GIN LBI04GMH2001 PLE13 1609
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To appoint a director in place Mr, Debasis Nandy, Director (DIN: 06368365), who retires by rotation,
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

Special Businesses

| To consider and approve payment of commission to Non-Executive Independent Directors

3.
4 To Consider and Approve Voluntary / Charitable Contribution of Rs. 10 Lacs to Fairfax India
' Charitable Foundation (FICF) Under Section 181 of The Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year
2024-2025
Affix
, Revenue

Signed this dayof 2024. Stamp

Signature of Member - Signature of Proxy

NOTES |

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2) *This is optional. Please put a tick mark (v} in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the box. If a
member leaves the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the proxy will be entitled to vote in
the manner he/she thinks appropriate. If a member wishes to abstain from voting on a pamcular resolution, hefshe should
write “Abstain” across the boxes against the Resolution.

3) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10%
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

5) Appolinting a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.

Reglstered Office: 1th Floor, Marathon Fulurex, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbal, Mshareshtra 400013
W www.sotcindiacon  CIN LIE3040MRIDDTPLE 131691
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In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be
stated.

For thé resolutions, statements setting out material facts, notes and instructions please refer to the nofice of Annual
General Meeting.
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SOTC TRAVEL LIMITED SCHEDULED TO BE

HELD ON THURSDAY, AUGUST 29, 2024, AT 11TH FLOOR, MARATHON FUTUREX, N.M JOSHI MARG, LOWER PAREL

(EAST), MUMBAI 400013 AT 2.30 P.M.

Lower Pareal

aave gyie

4 REE e

Landmark: Near Peninsula Business Park
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of
SOTC Travel Limited
Mumbal

“

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their Twenty-Third Annual Report on the business and operations of the

Company and the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS:

(Rs. in Mn)

Particulars

Current Financial Year

Previous Financial Year

(31.03.2024) (31.03.2023)
Revenue from Operations 9,880.8 5,823.6
‘Other Income 11.1 12.9
Profit/lcss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 389.1 291.8
Exceptional items and Tax Expense
Less: Depreciation/ Amortization / Impairment 72.8 €6.4
Profit floss hefore Finance Costs, Exceptional 316.3 | 225.4
items and Tax Expense
Less: Finance Costs 413 59.1
Profit /loss befare Exceptional items and Tax 275.0 166.3
Add/{less}: Exceptional items - ~
Profit /loss before Tax Expense 275.0 166.3
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 219.2 83.3
Profit /loss forthe year (1) 55.8 102.9
Other comprehensive (Loss)/Income (2) (0.4} (2.8)
Total {1+2) 5.4 100.1
Balance of profit /loss for earlier years (862.6) (865.5)

Ragiatarsd Oifica; 1#h Floor, Marathon Futures, N Joshi Marg, Lowar Pare] {East), Mumbal, Maherashita 400013
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Balance carried forward (806.8) | (862.6) |

2. OVERVIEW

The Company during the financial year has made a net profit of Rs 55.80 mn compared to profit of Rs. 102.93 mn in
the previous financial year. Revenue from operation for the financial year 23-24 is increased by 170% against the FY
2022-2023 after restart of substantial amount of its business in India and outside India.

Business transformation initiatives leading to sustainable cost savings has enable SOTC to deliver positive Profit
Before Tax, despite supply side challenges such as US, Europe, Schengen visas and high airfares in FY 2023-24,
The Company has recovered 84% of the sales value as compared to pre pandemic FY 2019-2020.

LEISURE TRAVEL

» Coliaborated with Mumbai Indians for the ongoing T20 cricket season 2024 as an 'Official Partner.’ As a part of
this association, SOTC would have right to use imagery of Mumbai Indians players across &ll mediums

o SOTC is celsbrating 75 years of taking Indians around the world which includes launching of brand video,
| employee engagement, celebrations at outlets, customer camivals, anniversary offers across print and digital
mediums and B2B Corporate engagement & anniversary gifts |

s During the year SOTC launched ‘Holiday Rewards’ — Customer Loyally Program, to enable eam points 1o

encourage repeat travel

e SOTC in FY 2023-2024 won “Best Outbound Trave! Operator’ and “Best Domestic Travel Operator” awérds for
the 2nd time at the Economic Times Trave! and Tourlsm Annual Award

e SQTC Partnered with RBC (Royal Bank of Canada}, Canada's leading bank with aver 17 million customers fo
offer RBC's customers multiple holiday packages via Avion (Canada's largest propriety loyally program)

e S0TC Launched new digital films focusing on regional markets such as Gurjar Vishwadarshan for Diwali and
Durga Puja Special for Bengal. Now “Setc.in” now available in 3 regional languages Hindi, Tamil and Gujarafi

« During the financial year 2023-2024, leisure has achieved 164% of the FY 2022-2023 sales

Reggistorad Gifice; 17th Flpor, Marathon Fuluresx, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai, Maharashira 400013
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MICE / Corporate Tours / E-Business

» During the year SOTC won "MICE Travel Agency of the Year” at Economic Times awards. Also won *Top MICE
Contributor 2022-2023" from Singapore Alrlines

s MICE engaged with clistomers across industries for both short & long-haul international destinations like Malaysia,
Dubai, Europe, Abu Dhabi, Australia, Dublin

s MICE "win-hig" initiafive to onboard new corporates sees success with various associations, brands and
companies during financial years 2023-2024 such as Standard Chartered Bank and HDFC Life Insurance ,

o FY 2023-2024 performance saw significant contribution. from MICE with movement of 37,197 pax to varous
destinations dominated by Short haul, Domestic and Long haul.

BUSINESS TRAVEL

The Business Travel segment has seen robust growth in organic volumes witnessing a growth of 124% vs previous
year. '

Focused steps have been taken for margin enhancement with increased focus on attachment rates for nen-air services
like hotels, transfers, visas etc and profits optimisation with improving business efficiency with technology interventions

and self-booking tool adoption.
3.~ STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Revenue for the FY 2023-2024 was Rs.9,890.84 mn compared to revenue of Rs. 5,823.62 mn in the FY 2022-2023,
Profit after tax for FY 2023-2024 was Rs. 55.80 mn compared to profit of Rs. 102,93 mn in FY 2022-2023.

4. CHANGE(S} [N THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: : '

There is no change in the nature of business caried out by the Company during the financial year ended March 31,

2024. Your Company continues to be in business of Trave! Industry,
5. SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there is n¢ change in share capital of the Company. The paid-up share capital of the
company is Rs. 860,100,000/ as on March 31, 2024,

Registared Offine: 1181 Floor, Marathon Futurex, N Joshi Warg, Lower Pacet (East), Mumbai, Mahaashir 400013
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6. DIVIDEND

In view of the losses of previous year, your Directors do not recommend any Dividend for financial year 2023-2024.
7. TRANSFER TO RESERVE

During the financial year, transfer to any Reserve is Nif,

8. SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES

Your Company is & wholly owned subsidiary of Thomas Cook (India) Limited as on March 31, 2024. As per the
provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in force), your Company claims
the exemption from preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary(ies) /
Associates / Joint Ventures as the holding company i.e. Thomas Cock {India) Limited shall prepare the Consolidated
Financial Statements of itself, along with its Subsidiary(ies) / Associates / Joint Ventures including subsidiary(ies) /
associate(s) / Joint Venture(s) of the Company . Accordingly, your Company is not required to prepare the
Consolidated Financial Statements of itself along with its subsidiary({ies} / Associates / Joint Ventures for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024,

A statement containing salient features of the financial statements and other necessary information of the
Subsidiary(ies) / Assoclates / Joint Ventures in the format prescribed under Form AOC-1 is included in the Report. The
Company will make available the Financial Statement of Subsidiary(ies) / Associates / Joint Venfures to any Member
of the Company at their request.

During the financial year, there are no new additions to Subsidiary{ies) / Associates / Joint Ventures of the Company.

COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR |

During the financial year under review, there were no additions in the subsidiaries, or associate companies. There
were no Companies which ceased to be subsidiary {ies)/associates/joint ventures of the Company.

Pegisterad Office; 11th Floorn, Marathon Fuiurex, MM Joshi Marg, Lower Pavet (Bast), Mumbai, Maherashira 400013
Wt sofcinedin com Gl USE04BMHZ001RPLC 184681




SOTC Travel Linited

Ifzeailon Feiturex, B-Wihig,
Jath Eloon, N b4, Joshi Marg,
1w Parsl {East),

Wurithal 400 0183,

T+ 23 4005 gtod

F +i¥ .22 4005 9700

Email - mhouiry@sote.in
Gomporate » www.sckcindia.tort
Consumat | waww.sotc

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Director(s)

Mr. Madhavan Menon ~ Chairman (DIN 00008542), Mr. Vishal Suri — Managing Director (DIN: 06413771), Mrs. Kishori
 Udeshi - Non-Executive Independent Director (DIN: 01344073), Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey ~ Non-Executive Independent
Director (DIN: 00031213), Mr. Rahul Bhagat - Non-Executive Independent Director (DIN; 024?3?08] and Mr, Debasis
Nandy — Non-Executive Director (DIN 06368365), were the Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2024.

None of the Directors and / or key managerial Personnel resigned during the financial year under review.
There has been no change in Directors till the date of the Report.
Re-Appointment:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder
and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Dehbasis Nandy (DIN: 06368365}, Director of the Company is liable
to refire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment,

Based on the perfofrnance evaluation, the Board of Directors recommend the re-appointment of Mr. Debasis Nandy
(DIN: 06368365), as director, liable to retire by rotation,

The brief profile of Mr. Debasis Nandy and other relevant information, as required under the Secretarial Standard on
General Meetings have been provided in the Notice convening the 23rd Annual General Meeting.

The company had alsc in its Board meeting dated Mayls, 2023 and Annual Gengral Meeting held on August 22, 2023,
approved payment of remuneration to Mr. Vishal Suri, Managing Director [DIN: 06413771] for a period of 2 years from
June 1, 2023 to May 31, 2025.

The Company had also in its Board meeting held on July 28, 2023 and Annual General Meeting held on August 22,
2023, approved the commencement of fresh term of 5 [five] years for Mr. Vishal Suri as the Managing Director of the
Company with effect from 5th July, 2023 to 4th July, 2028 and Restructured and approved the Remuneration including
minimum remuneration for a period of three (3) years with effect from 5th July, 2023 to 4th July, 2026,

Registerad Ofice: 114k Floor, Maraihon Futures, NM Joshi Marrg, Lower Parel (Fast), Mumbal, Maharashira 400013
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(Al amount in Rs.)

Total

Name of Basic *Benefits/ Bonus/ Sitting Pension/PF Stock Number
Director Salary Allowances! | Commi Fees f Supetannu Options | of Stock
Perquisites | ssion ation granted & | Options
accepfed | exercised
during the | during
financial |the
year financial
year
Mr. Madhavan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mencn :
. Vishal | 5,411,473 | 13,902,482 | 30,362,139 760,375 | 51445489 | 0 0
Mr. Nilesh _
Vikamsey 0 0 24,00,000 | 5,00,000 0 9,00,000 0 0
Mr. Debasis
Mrs. Kishor| 0 0 24.00,000 | 5,00,000 0 9,060,000 0 0
Udeshi
Mr, Rahul 0 0 24,00,000 | 5,00,000 0 9,00,000 0 0
Bhagat

* Includes reimbursements

Mr. Menon and Mr. Nandy have waived their entitlement to their share of commission and sitting fees.

A Commission for FY2022-2023, paid in FY2023-2024

« Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives paid for the financial year (w.e.f 1st Apri,
2023 to 31st March, 2024)

Registered Offise; 14th Floor, Marathan Fulurex, MM Joghi Mary, Lower Paie? (Easty, Mumbat, Maharashtra 400043
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(Afl amount in Rs.)
Hame of Director Salary
Fixed (Rs.} Performance Linked Total (Rs 4
Incentives (Rs.)*
Mr. Vishal Suri | 20,293,813 30,262,139 501,655,952

#Total Amount excludes PF, Superannuation and Perquisites of ESOP, Housing, Car and Interast on PF

*'Performance linked Incentive paid o Mr. Suri was linked fo his performance during the year

» Detalls of Service Confracts, Notice Period, Severance Fees

8r. | Nams of Director Confract Period (Tenurg) Service Notice Severance fees, if
No. Contract Pariod any
1. [ M, Vishal Suri Sth July, 2023 to 4th July, 2028 subject to Yes 12 As decided hy the
refire by rotation Months | management
2. Non-Executive None. The Non-Execufive Directors ofher than | No None None
Directors other | Independent Directors, liable o refire by rotation, get
than  Independent | re-appoinfed as per the provisions of Arlicles of
Directors Assaciation of the Company and the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as the petiod over

which accrued and over which exercisable: Not Applicable

Key Managerial Personnel (KMF)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the

Company as on March 31, 2024 were:

» M, Vishal Suri, Managing Director [DIN: 08413771]

Registersd Offfve: 111h Floor, Marathon Puiuras, NM Josht Marg, Lowse Parel {Tast), Musribel, Maharashira 400013
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» M, Farroukh Kolah, President & Chief Financial Officer and

s Ms. Shaily Gupta, Company Secretary [ACS: 24078]
-There is no change in KMPs of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24,

Designated Persan for furnishing / providing information w.r.t. Beneficial Interest in Company’s Shares:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its nofification dated 27th October, 2023 had notified the Companies
(Management and Administration) Second Amendment Rules, 2023, inter alia mandating every company to designate
a person to be responsible for furnishing/ providing information to the Registrar of Companies or any other authorized
officer with respect to beneficial interest in company's shares, The Board at its meeting held on January 22, 2024 had
designated Ms. Shaily Gupta, Company Secretary (ACS 24078) of the Company for fumishing/ providing the said

details,
Declaratlon of Independence

The Company has received necessary declaration(s) from all the Independent Directors (IDs) of the Company,
confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended from time to fime and that in terms of Rule 6(3} of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, they have registered themselves with the Independent Director's database maintained by
the Indian Insfitute of Corporate Affairs {IICA), Manesar for a period of one, five or life time till they continue to hold
office of an Independent Director and also completed the online proficiency test, conducted by the Indian Institute of

Corporate Affairs, wherever applicable..

During the financial year 2023-24, one (1) Meeting of the IDs was held on March 26, 2024, and all the |Ds were present
at the Meeting through Video Conferencing. The Company has complied with the Code for IDs, as prescribed in
Schedule IV to the Companles Act, 2013, as amended from time to time,

In the epinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors are persons possessing attributes of integrity, expertise and
experience {including proficiency) as required under the applicable laws, Rules & Regulations.

The Company has issued letters of Appointment / Re-appointment to Independent Directors in the manner as provided
under the Companies Act, 2013. Terms and conditions of the said appointment are hosted on the website of the

Company.

Registerad Officer 11th Floor, Maralhon Pulurex, NM Josht Marg, Lower Paral (Esst), Mumbal, Maharashira 440013
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The Company has formulated a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel and they have

affirmed the compliance thereto.

 There were no new Independent Directors appointed on the Board of the Company, during the financial year.

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT-

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company confirms that

i,

Vi

ET?

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has followed
the applicable accounting standards and there are no material departures from the same.

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit/ loss of the Company for that pertiod;

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on “Going Concern Basis.”

The Directors have laid down internal financial control fo be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

BCARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have carried out Annual Evaluation of

its own performance, Chairman, Committee as a whole and of the Individual Directors.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent

Director being evaluated.

The performance evaluation of the Board was based on criteria such as board composition and structure, information

and functioning, suceession planning, strategic planning efc.

Registered Office: 11th Flaor, Matathon Fulure, MM Jushi Maig, Lowst Parei (Fast), Mumberl, Maherashive 400013
W v sofcindiaconm - SIHUBIGAOMHZD0TPLG131697




SOTG Trave] LUimlted

Marathon Futurex, B-Wing,
13th Floon, N. k. Jdoshi Warg,
Lowet Parel (East),

bdsimlaal 400 G173,

T+ 22 4505 9100

F+81 22 4505 9700

Ernall : éncjulry@scle.in
Corpprale s www.scizindincom
Corlgumes: www.sotcln

The performance evaluation of the Committee was based on critetia such as experience, knowledge and competency,
governance, safeguanding the interests of all stakeholders etc. '

- The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was based on the criteria such as time devoted and attention
given to professional obligations for independent decision making and acting in the best interest of the Company,
strategic guidance to the Company and help in determining important policies etc.

12. ANNUAL RETURN

In compliance with the provisions of Section 134 and 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed a copy
of the Annual Return as on March 31, 2024 on its website at: hitps:/fsotcindia.com/other-details. asp

13. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year, Four (4) Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held. The said meetings -
were held on May 5, 2023; July 28, 2023; October 27, 2023 & January 22, 2024, respectively.

Composition of Board of Directors and Attendance of Directors af the Board Meeting:

Sr. No. | Name of the Director DIN ¥Category No. of Meetings attended
during the financial year
2023-2024

1. Mr. Madhavan Menon 00008542 NED 4

2. | Mr. Vishal Suri 08413771 | ED : 4

3, Mrs. Kishori Udashi 01344073 | ID - 4

4, Mr. Rahul Bhagat 02473708 D 4

5. Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey 00031213 | D 4

g. Mr. Debasis Nandy 06368365 NED 4

Registersd Ciftina: 14th Floor, Marathon Futersr, NG doshi Mearg, Lower Para! (East), Mumbal, Mahanashira 400013
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* NED- Non-Executive Director, ID-Independent Director, ED- Exectifive Director
14, COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
a) Management Sub-Committee of the Board

For Administrative convenience and smooth business operations, Management Sub-Committee of the Board
(Sub-Committee) has been constitited in June 2017. The Sub-Committee functions on the basis of ‘Sub-Committee

Authority Matrix' and as per the powers delegated by the Board, from time to time.

The Sub-Committee met 11 times during the financial year. The said meetings were held on April 24, 2023, May 8,
2023, May 23, 2023, July 14, 2023, September 4, 2023, October 4, 2023, Oct‘o_ber 17, 2023, October 27, 2023,
November 17, 2023, February 2, 2024 and February 12, 2024 respectively,

Composition of Sub-Committee and Attendance during the financlal year:

Members of the Sub-Committee comprises of the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Sr No. Name of Member *Cétegory .Designation No. of  Meetings
attended during the
financial year 2023-24

1. - | Mr. Madhavan Menon NED Chairman ' 11

2. Mr. Vishal Suri ED Member 11

*NED- Non-Executive Direcfor, ED- Executive Diraclor
b) Banking Committes

For smeoth banking operations, the Banking Committes has been constituted in June 2017. The Banking Committee
functions on the basis of Authority Matrix and as per the powers delegated by the Board, from time to time. Membars
of the Banking Committee comprises of the Chairman, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and the Company

Secretary of the Company.

Fegistersd Ciflee: 11th Floor, Merathon Futurex, N dosht Marr, Lower Parel (BEash, Mumbal, Maharashira 400013
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The Banking Committee met & times duﬁng the financial year. The said meetings were held an April 13, 2023, May
18, 2023, August 3, 2023, September 22, 2023 and November 8, 2023, respectively.

‘Composition of Committee and Attendance during the financial year:

Sr. No. | Name of Member *Category | Designation No. of Meetings
attended during the
financial year 2023-
2024

1, Mr, Vishal Suri ED Chairman 5

2 Mr. Madhavan Menon NED Member 5

3 Mr. Farroukh Kelah CFO Member 5

4, Ms. Shaily Gupta CS Member 5

*NED- Non-Execttive Director, ED- Executive Director, GFQ - Chief Financial Officer, CS — Company Secretary
14, Corporate Social Responsibility

The Annual Report on CSR during the financial year 2023-24, is annexed as ‘Annexure A" On account of osses during
the three (3) immediately preceding financial years, your Company was not required to spend any amount fowards

Corporate Sccial Responsibility activities in the financial year 2023-2024.

Further, as per Section 134(3)(0), the Company has an approved CSR Palicy in line with CSR Provisions. Further, the
same is available on the website of the Gompany.

15. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments, as the case may be, forms part of the notes to the financial

statements provided in the Annual Report.
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16. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year, all the transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and at arm's
length basis; and there were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis or
otherwise. Therefers, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company.

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &
OUTGO:

A. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

Your Company being in the Travel and Tourism industry, its activities does not involve any expenditure on Technology
- and Research and Development. Therefare, the particulars in the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended,
is not required to be submitted. Further, the Company is not energy intensive, However, svery effort is made to ensure
optimum use of energy by using energy-efficient Air conditioners, LED lights and other office equipment. Constant
efforts are being made through regular / preventive maintenance and upkeep of existing electrical equipment to

minimize breakdowns and loss of energy.

The Company is confinuously making efforts for induction of innovative technolagies and technigues reguired for the

business activities,

B. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year:

Particulars 3t March,20_24 31t March 2023
| nINRmn) {in INR mn)
Foreign exchange Earnings Rs. 424.33 ' Rs. 270.53
Foreign exchange Outgo * Rs. 3,939.62 Rs. 1,963.13 J

Note: “Expenditure in foreign cuirency primaiily refates fo outbound tour services and fs made out of collections from
customers for remiflance under Liberalized remittance scheme (LRS).
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk assessment and management are critical to ensure long term sustainability of the business. The Company has
in place a risk management framework with regular apbrais’al by top management. Pursuant to Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has adopted Risk Management Policy which lays down the framework to define,
assess, monitor and mitigate the business, operational, financial and other risks associated with the business of the

Company.

19. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has an interal financial control system commensurate with its size and nature of business which
provides a reasonable assurance in respect of financial and operational information, safeguarding assets of the
Company and ensuring compliance with corporate policies. All transactions are recorded and reported correctly.,

20, DEPOSITS UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013

During the financial year, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended and therefore, no
amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on the date of balance sheet.

21, EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTICN

The Company has not issued any Employee Stock Options during the financial year.

22, DETAILS OF FRAUDS

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 may be refemed.
23. AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors and their report

BSR & Ca. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm's Registration No. 101246WAY -100022, Mumbai, are the Statutory
Auditors of the Company.

The requirement to place the matter relating to appeintment of auditors for rafification by Members at every Annual
General Meeting has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018.
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Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing Annual

General Meeting.
STATUTORY AUDITORS REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Statutory Auditors, in thelr
report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

Secretarial Auditor and their Report

The Board of Directors appointed M's. Keyul M. Dedhia & Associates, Company Secretaries {COP No. 8618,
Membership No. FCS-7756 and Unique ICSI Code Number: S2009MH120800) as the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, for conducting the Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2023-2024,

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2023-24 does net contain any adverse remark, qualification or

reservation.
The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as 'Annexure B,
Internal Auditor

Mr. Anirudhha Chaudhuri is the Internal Auditor of the Company under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. During
the financial year under review, Emst & Young LLP and Grant Thomton Bharat LLP were appointed, to assist the
Internal Auditor of the Company, in conducting / performing the internal audits, in accordance with the provisions of
~ Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended

from time fo time,
Internal Financial Control (IFC) Audltor

During the financial year, the Board of Directors appeinted Kapadia Associates, Chartered Accountants as an Internal
Financial Control {IFC} Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

Cost Auditor

Pursuant fo the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thersunder, Cost Audit
and Maintenance of Cost Records is not applicable to the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24,
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24. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There has been no significant and material order passed by the Regutators, Courts and Tribunals impacting the going
concem status of the Company's operations in future.

25, MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which have
occurred hetween the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report, For
further details, the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, can be referred.

26. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The provisions of Section 197(12} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and -
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, in respect of the employees of the Company is not
applicable to the Company.

27, DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKFLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL} ACT, 2013 '

Your Company has Zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any execufive which may fall under the ambit of
‘Sexual Harassment' at workplace and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of every woman executive
warking in the Company. The Company values the dignity of individuals and strives to provide a safe and respectable
working environment for all its employees, The Company is committed to providing an envirenment which is free of

discrimination, inimidation and abuse.

Pursuant to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prohibition, Prevention and Redressel} Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder, the Company has a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment in the Company. All the employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this policy.

Your Company has complied with provisions relating fo the constitufion of Infemal Complaints Committee under the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Matters handied during the financial year 2023-24, are as follows:
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{b) Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year of sexual harassment received in the year: 1

(¢} Number of cases pending for more than ninety days: NIL

(d) Number of workshop or awareness program against sexual harassment carried out; 25 sessions

(e) Nature of action taken by employer: 1

The foliowing action was taken by employer in respect of the complaints received during financial year 2023-24;

Written Apology - NIL

Warning - 1

Reprimand or Censure - NIL.

Withholding of Promotion - NIL

Withholding of Pay Rise/ Increment - NIL

Termination - NIL

Disengagement of services of Third-Party staff - NIL
Involuntary Resignation (Employer controlled resignation) - NIL.
Counseliing - NIL

Carrying out.commljnity services — NIL

Compiaint pending as on March 31, 2024 — N|L
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28. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established Vigil Mechariism Policy to provide a framework to promote responsible and secure
Whistle Blowing. The Whistle-Blower Paolicy ha_s been laid down with an objective {o create an environment where an
employee has easy access to raising a concem and his/her identity is also protected,

The sald Policy is posted on the Company’s website and web link thereto is hitp://sotcindia.com/other-details.asp

29. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 {3t OF 201¢) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Cede; hence the reguirement to disclose the
details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (31 of 2018)
during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial year is not applicable.

30. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF
ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

There were no valuations done for the purposes of one-time setflement and for obtaining any loan frem the Banks /
Financial Institutions.

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India an Mestings of the Board of Directors and General
Meetings and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. The Company complies with all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors

and General Mestings.
32. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from the

hanks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members during the financial year.
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Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the

Company's executives, staff and workers.

For and on behalf of the Board

-

———Nadhavan Menon Vishal Suri
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 00008542) (DIN: 06413771)
Place: Mumbal Place: Mumbai
Date: July 29, 2024 Date: July 29, 2024
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ANNEXURE A
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant fo Section 134(3)(0) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1, Brief cutline on CSR - Policy of the Caompany.

The CSR Palicy of the Company focuses on addressing the healthcare challenges of the Society and aims to align the
Company's CSR interventions with the healthcare priorities of the Indian Government and other Stakeholders and
sontributing to other projects or programs that falls under the purview of Schedule VI of Sectlon 136 of the Companles ¢
Act, 2013, as identified and approved from time to time.

2. Composition of CSR Committee™ NA

Sl.No, | Name of Director Designation / Nature of | Numberof Meetings | Number of Meefings of
Directorship of CSR Committee | CSR Committee
held during the vear | altended during the
year

*The CSR Committes of SOTC Travel Limited was dissolved by the Board of Directors at their Meefing held on July 30, 2021,

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed ‘
on the websits of the company: hitp://sofcindia.com/corporate-responsibility.asp

4. Provide the Executive Summary atong with web-link{s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule {3) of rule & of the Companies, if applicable: NA
5. a) Average Net Profit / (Loss) of the Company as per sub ssction § of section 135: Rs. (35,49,01,132)
b) Two percent of average net profitf (loss) of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs. (70,98,023)
¢} Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years - NA-

d} Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any | NA

Ragistersed Office; 1ith Floor, Mansthon Fufures, NM Joshl Marmg, Lower Paret (East), Mumbali, Mebarashira 400013
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e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [{(b)+c)-{d)]: NA
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6. a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) — Nil

b) Amount spent in Administrative Qverheads Nil

¢} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable -Nil

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(2)+(bj+{c)] -Nil

e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year;

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financia! Year.

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per

Amount transferred fo any fund specified under
Schedule VIl as per second proviso to sub-section {5) of

(In Rs)) _ \ , .
- sub section (6} of Section 135  [section 135
Amount.  |Date of fransfer., Name of the | Amount, Date of transfer,
Fund
0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Excess amount for set-off, if an}ri

the previous financial years, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amcunt (In Rs.} |
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 0
135(5) _
(i) |Total amount spent for the Financial Year 0
(i}  |[Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0
(iv)  [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of !
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IAmount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(jii)-(iv}]

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: NIL

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount Amount Deficiency,
No. Financial | transferred to | Amountin | Spentin | fransferred to | remaining to be | if any
Year(s) Unspent CSR | Unspent the a spent in
Account CSR Financial | Fund as | succeeding
under Account Year (in | specified Financial Years
subsection under Rs) under (in Rs)
{6) of subsection Schedule VI
section 135 (6) of as per
(inRs.) section 135 second
(inRs.) Proviso to
subsection
(5) of section
135,
if any
i FY22-23 0 0 0 0 0 0
FY21-22 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 FY20-21 0 0 0 0 0 0

8. Whether any capital asseis have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibifity amount
spent in the Financial Year - No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount

spent in the Financial Year:

Sr. No

Short
particulars of
the property
or  assei(s)
[including
camplete
address and

Pin code of
the
property or
assel(s)

Date of
creafion

Amount of
CSR
amount
spent

Details of entity/ Autherity/ heneficiary of the
registered owner
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location  of
the property]
1 2 3 4 5 6
CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal
Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection
(5) of section 135:

On account of losses during the three (3) immediately preceding financial years, your Company was not required to
spend any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities in the financial year 2023-2024.

For and on behajf of the Board

Madhavan Menon Vishal Suri
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 00008542) (DIN: 06413771)
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: July 29, 2024 Date: July 29, 2024
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
SOTC Travel Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U63040MH2001PLC131691
11th Floor, Marathon Futurex, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel East, Mumbai - 400 013.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by SOTC Travel Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”).
The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our limited verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns
filed with applicable regulatory authority(ies) and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
financial year ended on March 31, 2024 (‘Audit Period’), complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to reporting made hereinafter:

We herewith report that maintenance of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minutes Books, filing of
Forms and Returns with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other records is
responsibility of management and of the Company. Our responsibility is to verify the content of the
documents produced before us, make objective evaluation of the content in respect of compliance
and report thereon. We have examined on test check basis, the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms
and Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and produced before us for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024, as per the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013, (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder, to the extent
applicable to the Company;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder with
respect to Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings, to the extent the same was applicable to the Company;

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):
(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period);



(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(¢)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period);

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g9)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period) and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period).

(vi)  We relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers in respect of systems
and mechanism formed / followed by the Company for the compliance of the following laws
applicable specifically to the Company:

1. The Passports Act, 1967 and applicable Rules thereto.
2. IATA Guidelines for Agents.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013; and

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit period).

Based on the aforesaid information provided by the Company, we report that during the financial year
under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the above mentioned Act/s, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. and we have no material observation or instances of non-
compliance in respect of the same.

We further report that, as informed by the management, below instances of fraud happened during
the Audit period:

- Travel Coordinator of client, Daikin India, introduced and declared unknown party i.e. Steve
Burnette as his counterpart and Scammer Steve Burnette disguised as Director HR of Daikin
Applied Americas INC US, fraudulently booked non-refundable international air tickets for INR
4.60 lakhs. The Company requested the client to pay the due amount which shall be adjusted
against future bookings through discounts. But the client has refused to accept our proposed
recovery plan.

- Hotel booking was done through Company's corporate Credit card for INR 0.83 lakhs and later
realized that the booking team has been spoofed by the scammer. A dispute had been raised by
the cardholder with the bank and a police complaint has also been filed at Cyber Crime portal.
However, as the OTP was shared willingly, the Bank has declined the chargeback request.



We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors about scheduled Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a reasonable system exists for Board
Members for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Based on the representation made by the Company and its Officer, we herewith report that majority
decision is carried through and proper system is in place which facilitates / ensure to capture and
record, the dissenting member’s views, if any, as part of the Minutes.

Based on the representation made by the Company and its Officers explaining to us in respect of
internal systems and mechanisms established by the Company which ensures compliances of Acts,
Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company, we report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period, the Company has not undertaken any corporate
action having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of aforesaid laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc as mentioned above.

For Keyul M. Dedhia & Associates
Company Secretaries
Unique ICSI Code Number: S2009MH120800

Keyul M. Dedhia

Proprietor

FCS No: 7756 COP No. 8618
UDIN: FO07756F000843701

Peer Review Certificate No.: 876/2020

May 29, 2024, Mumbai.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'ANNEXURE A" and
forms an integral part of this report.



To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members,

SOTC Travel Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U63040MH2001PLC131691

11th Floor, Marathon Futurex, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel East, Mumbai - 400 013.

Sub: Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test-check basis (by verifying records as was made available to us) to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we
follow, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company and we have relied on Statutory Auditors’ independent assessment
on the same.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of process followed by Company to ensure adequate Compliance on test-check basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Keyul M. Dedhia & Associates
Company Secretaries
Unique ICSI Code Number: S2009MH120800

Keyul M. Dedhia

Proprietor

FCS No: 7756 COP No: 8618
UDIN: FO07756F000843701

Peer Review Certificate No.: 876/2020

July 29, 2024, Mumbai.
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Part B: Associate/Joint ventures

(All amounts in Rs lakhs)
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ForBSR&Co.LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of SOTC Travel Limited
Firm's Registratian No: 101248W/\W-100022 [CIN:UB3040MHZ001PLC131691)
-

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Partner
membership No: 042070

mMumbai

AN

Madhavan Menon
Chairman
42

e A aiallc, W

Farroukh Kolah
Chief Financial Officer

rMumbai

\): o
Vishal Suri

Managing Director
DIN No. 05413771

,\M..@L.L/
Shalfy Gupta
Company Secretary

[CS No: AZ4078]




14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing
B S R & CO . LLP Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center
Western Express Highway
Chartered Accountants Goregaon (East), Mumbai — 400 063, India
Telephone: +91 (22) 6257 1000
Fax: +91 (22) 6257 1010

Incependent Auditors Report

To the Members of SOTC Travel Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of SOTC Travel Limited (the “Company”) which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
fo going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
\ requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b.In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014,

¢. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. the modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 40 (iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

a:::gﬂr‘r:::;a / Page 3 of 11
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility except that, the audit trail was not enabled for data changes performed by users having
privileged access till 1st February 2024 at application layer of the accounting software used to
maintain general ledger and audit trail was also not enabled at the database level to log any direct
data changes for software used to maintain general ledger. For accounting software for which
audit trail feature is enabled, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

B H W“Ji‘/ 4

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 042070
Date: 15 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24042070BKCQVA5436
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (8) {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(c)

(d)

(ii) (=)

(0

(iii)

()

(v)

(vi)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering travel and related
services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets and corporate guarantee. As represented by management, the
Company is not required to file quarterly returns or statements with such banks or financial
institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act’). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not

Weslern Express Highway,
Whumbai - 400 063



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount (Rs.) Period to Forum where Remark
the statute the dues which the dispute is s, if any
amount pending
relates

The Finance | Service Tax | 227,772,514 2006- CESTAT None
Act, 1994 2015
The Finance | Service Tax | 12,741,876 2006- CESTAT None
Act, 1994 2012
The Finance | Service Tax | 60,599,936 2015- CESTAT None
Act, 1994 2016
The Finance | Service Tax | 29,937,382 2009- Commissioner of | None
Act, 1994 2011 Service tax
The Finance | Service Tax | 8,445,459 2011- Assistant None
Act, 1994 2015 Commissioner

Service Tax
The Finance | Service Tax | 43,631,401 2016- CESTAT None
Act, 1994 2018
The Finance | Service Tax | 45,719,101 2015- CESTAT None
Act, 1994 2016
Income Tax | Income Tax | 339,163 2020- Commissioner of | None
Act, 1961 and Interest 2021 Income-tax

(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax | 1,591,103 2021- Commissioner of | None
Act, 1961 and Interest 2022 Income-tax

{Appeals)

-
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@ According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under
the Act,

() According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiary (as defined under the Act).

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reparted during the course of the audit.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c)  We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{(xiv) (a) pBased on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opj
he Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and natur
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

business.
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.
(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(xwvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xwiii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordi,

1

14th Fioor,
Gentral 8 Wing ang
Korth € Wing,
Neseo IT Parkd,
Nesca Center,
Westein Fxpress Highway,
Goregaon (East),
Mumba - 400 063

(xx) Eln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unsp
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BS R &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.;‘lO‘?jfiWNV— 00022

b B

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 042070
Date: 15 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24042070BKCQVA5436
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BSR &Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SOTC Travel
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

141h Floor, ((,Q
Ganiral 8 Wing g

Narth C Wing.

Nesco IT Parkd,

hesco Center,

A Weslern Fxpress Highway,

(‘}‘9 Goregaon (Fast).
o

Mumbai - 400 063
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial contrals with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:1012€8W:’W—10 &22
S !

A He

N e

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 042070
Date: 15 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24042070BKCQVA5436
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SOTC Travel Limited

Balance Sheet

nex i 34 Alarch 2024

(A nimount in Rs Mi|ii_nn.s..unlcss.oimm-iso shaked) . .
) Noto s - . Asat

34 Mureh M M Mareh 2023
LASSETS - - . -
_{-I) Noti-corrent assels . . .
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{b} Rigly ofuse tesels . . ’ B (DN : R LR ]
(c} CGoodwilt . - : .13 2685 26,83
() Chiber infanpible assets . ' [ %] 15,42 : ixss
(2] Tatangible assets under develppment Co 23 : . 071
(1 Financial asscrs ) ]
{i) hvestimentiy ‘ i 3 14,93 B8Ry
{ii) Other Bingneial assois ' . 4 w1 324
te) Deferred tis assels N} - ] ] 3 3095 3T
ThY Incoimie tas asseds {nel) . [ 11050 109 1ats
Tuls} nen-curieat ssseis . . ) Lad 0 1L787.0%
(23 Current pssels o
(] Finoneinl hesels . - :
{3 Tendle roccivabies . ) o 7o © 40638 o 3731
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SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the vear cuded 34 March 204

(AT mpwni in BRg Millions, tnless otherwise staled)

Payticalnrs

{1} 1_m‘gmm

(@) [{t_‘.vimu.e from operations
(b} Other income

Total income

{2} Expenses

(&) Cosl ol REIViCeS

(b) Finplovee hanefiis txpense

{c} Finance cosis

{d).Depreciation and amortization exponses
{r) Olherexpenses Co
Total expenses

{3)Profit belore exceptional ilems and tax
{4) Exeeptional ifems

(3)Profir hefore tax

{6) Fax expenser

() Curvent lay

©ib) Delorred tax

(13 Profit after tax.

(%) Othier coniprehensive Loss (0CI)

liems thiat will wod be vecdassified to profic or (Joss)

(i) Remensurements of delined benelit {liabilicy) / nsset { Note 36)

{ii) tncome iy cxncn\c on remeasurenenis of delined bcnd W liabiity r’{aascl}

Oilier vom prohm\iw Ln'ﬁ Criet of income tax) (i-if)

(9} Total camprehensive Ineome for the yenr

(10} Earalngs per Lqmt) share (Face value of Ry, 10 en(‘ll)

{i) Basic { Ra)
(i) Dilmied

Miaterinl aceounting policies

Notrs 1o 1he lnancial stalements

The notes refened 1o above form un inteeral part of the Suancinl satements
As per oue report of even date altached

CFar BER & Co LLP
Charleredd Aceouniabils

Firm's fnglsirH::01145 HW 10022

Bhsvesh Dhupetia
Parwr

vlenthership No; (42070
Aunrbai

15"~ May - 2024

Maty

24

21

gy

B
~3

28

-

RS Ot

For the yeur padced
31 Maveh 2024

For the vear onded
31 Murch 2023

9,890,584 3,823.62
1100 12.95
" 507,94 “5R36.57
819792 4,699.00
749,58 346,29
41.32 $9.14
7278 6620
56532 . 299.50
X 567029
27502 166.28
17542 - 16628
21922 . . 6335
S840 102.5%
(1.86) {4.84)
o 1.50 200
] ' (0.36) (2.84)
5544 10009
5,580.09 10,293.05
0,65 120

For and on hehnlf of the Borrd of Direriors of
SOTC Travel Limited
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Chict Financial Ofticer
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Vishal Suri
Muniging Divecror
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Shaily Gupta
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SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of cash flows (Condinned)
Jor the yearended 31 March 2124

(ATl amount in Rs Millions, unless stherwise staied)

Reeonciliation of Cnsh and Cash cqitivatents with the Balanee Sheel
Cash and Bank Balances ns pey Balanee Sheot )
Cnsh and Cash equivalents a5 restated as pt 1he year cnd

Notes .
Components of casht and cash equivalenis consists oft [Nowe 8]

Casly on hand
Balande with Banks
Current Account
-- Deepaiit Account ( with original malurity of3 monibs ol Tess)
Lexs: Bunk Overdrall

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

Fou the v endicl
31 March 2023

ReconeMiution herween opehing rad clusiﬁg balangéds inthe Bafance Sheet for liahili ties arising from finenchiy avtivities

COpening Ters Loan from Bank
Progeads from barowings
Repayments of barmwings
Clnsing Term Loan from Bank

Notes:

1. The abowe staemem’ nf-:n<11 o b been prepared under the “Indirest method" as sel outin the ndis Aveounting Standard (1'\[) ARY7-

ﬁ[\\l

Materiul accounting policies
Notes 1o the financial sulements

The notes referred (o thove form an imdepral part of the I' mancial slatenenis

As per-our report of even dile atiached

f’w‘ BSR&Co LLP
Chertered Aceountants

Fitm's chm%ﬂl?d&\’f\\’ 160022

Bhavesh Dinprelin
Partner

Metnbership No: 042070
Mumlrai

1$S=Meay -2.024

Awmaunt Amount
348 a2
3081 27.32
1HR] 7487
134.00 180,060
. - {47.55)
3481 0732
138.88 8204
- 3654
{10.15) -
128713 13838

Num
1B
2-43

"Siatenient of cagh
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SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
for e vear ended 37 March 2024

(Al amount in Rs Millions, uhkss otherwise stated)

Cash flow lrom aperating activities
Profit hefore tax

Adfrstimenis far:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on Right of use assels
Amorlisation of inlangible assets
Gain on sate ol property, plant and equipment
-Gain on Leage Nability
Share-based payment expense
Uhnelgimed credit balances n6 Jonger required, wriften back
Buad debis and wmivances writlen off

Loss allowance for expecied eredit losses, doubtful advances and deposits (nef)

tisterest income - athers

Interest income on fer-Corparate Deposits
Inigrast income on fixed deposits and investments
Tnterest o 1ax refunds

Finance costs

Working copitel ueffustments
(Increase} [ Decrease in tradk and other receivables
{Increase} f Decredge in loans and advances

Increase f (Decrease) i {rade payables, other financial Jiabilities and carvent Habiljtiss

Increase f (Decrease) in provisions

Incometax refund (net)
Net ensh Tlows (tised) infgencerated from operating activities

Cash fows from investing aefivities

Paymenl for parchase of property, plant and equipmen{
Paywent for purchase of inlangibla asscts

Proceeds from saleof property, planl and cquipment & intangible,
Inlerest receivegd

Repayment of loan given

Loai given

Repayment of loan taken

Loan taken

Fixed deposits {placed)redoemed during the vear {net)
Net eash Doive generated from in invesiing activities

Cash flows frem finaucing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments ol botrowings

Payment of Lease liabilities

Interes| paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Nel decrense ineash and cush equivalenty
Cash and eash equivalents 3 the beginning ol the year
Cashiand cash equivalents ot the end of the year

L

{ )

{41l Floe, (JQ

Cerdiat f Wang and
Horlh C Wing,
Hasco 1T Parsd,

Hesco Conty,

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Fair the year ended
3 March 2023

275.02 166,28
1644 10.36
46.71 48.46

.63 759
0.03) (0:13)
(0033 (2.03)
(2.04) 366

(83.04) (123.98)
1412 10,56
4.20) 1543
{2.54) -

. (0.28)
{1.91) {1.29)
(0.57) £5.3%)
4132 - 5910

" 308.87 183,33

(38.97) (263.39)
(268.62) (495,90
293,58 425,30

14.94 £1.72

309,80 34771
(179.66) 2922
190,34 376.93

{15.99) (22.64)

(11.76) (338

0,06 0.13

441 1.56

- 120,00

- {120.00)

{460.00) {290.00)
460.00 290,00
22.19 (3.0%)
(109 (27.36)

- 56,84

{10.15) -

(56,40 {5597

(29.01) {43.92)

(95.56) {43.03)

93,49

207.32

306,81
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended Mareh 34, 2024
{All amotmis v Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1A

1B

I1B.1

iB.2

Note 1

Conmpany overview

SOTC Travel Linajted {'the Company”) formerly known as SOTC Trave] Private Limited is public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in Incia. The
Company s engaged In diversified travel and Iravel related businesses, warking as travel agent and four operator having repisiered office at 1 1th Floor,
Marathon Futurex, N.M Joshi Mavg, Lower Parel {East), Mumbai-400 013,

The financial stements were approved and authorized to issue in agcordance with the resalution passed by the Board of diredtors al its meeting Deld on 03
May, 2024.

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of preparaiion

(a)

()

(d)
{0

@in)

Statemend of cempliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indiss Accéunting Standands {heretnafter referred to as the 'Ind ASY g8
vofified by Ministry of Comorate Affairs pursaant to section 133 of the Compsnies Acl, 2013 read with rule 4 of the Companies {Indian
Agcounting standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provigions of the Act as amended from time fo time (hat are notified and effective as ui 31
Match 2024,

Basis of measureimnent

Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basls, except for the following:

« cerlain Fnancial agsets and Habilities - measured at fair value,

« defined beneli plaus — difined binefit obligations léss plan assets measured al fair vatve, and
+ share based phyment - measored at fair value

Furetional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees "(INR)" or "(Rs.}" sehich is also the Company's funetional currency and all values are
rounded ofl fo nearest miltions ((00,000) except where otherwise indicated. Wheraver the amount is represented as '0° ('zero’) it consirues a value
less than half million

Forgign currency translation and transactions

Functional and presentation carrency

A Company’s fimelional currency is the eurrency of the primary econoimic environment in which an entity opetates and.is normally the currency in
which the entity privoarily generates and expends cash,

Transactions and balances

{ii.a) Initial recopnition

On initial recognjtion, foreign currency transactions are teanslated ivlo the functional currency nsing exchange rates at the date of the tansaction,

{ii.b) Subsequenl recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cosi denominated in & foreign cumency are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting fiomy the settlement of sucl: transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies at the peviod end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss, Non-monatary
items that are measured af fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the daie when the fair value was detenmined.
Translalion differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as patt of the fair value gain or loss in the statement of profil and
loss.

All monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated at Foreipn Exchange Dealers Assotiation of India (FEDAL) rates and the exchange
variations arising out of settlement / conversion af the FEDAI rates are recognised it the slatement of profit and loss,

Going Cencern

As at 21 March 2024, {he Company’s net worih is Rs 358,24 Mn, The Company dusing the year has made a net profit of Rs 55.80 dn (FY 2022-
2023 Profu of Rs, 102.93 Mo} The Compmy has also assessed the impaci on the Tolure cash flow projections on the basis of significant

future

1, . . . 7
l%;jsed on aloresaid assessment, management believes that as per estimales made consgg

L
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes fo the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, untless ofherwise stated)

B4

Lise of gstimales

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepied aceounting principles (‘GAAP™Y in India requires thal managsmen!
makes judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of Assets and Liabilities, disclosure of contingeni lisbilities as of the
daie of the financial statements and the reporied smounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. The estimates and assunptions used
in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of facts and tircumstances as af the date of the financial
statements, Actual resulls could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assuniptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any
revision (o acconnting estimales i& recognised prospectively in current and foture periods.

Jodgments

Information about jodgments made fn applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements §s inclnded in the following inotes

Nole 23 - Determination of ‘whether a particular seivice is rendered in the vapacily of a principal o agen/
Note 30 (i1} - Determining the anmount of expected credit loes an financial assets (including trade receivables)
Note 2.2 - Lease classification

Assumptions and extimation uncertajnties

Information about assumptions and estimation wncertainties that have a signilficant iisk of resulting in 2 material adjnstment in the firancial
stateanent is ncluded in the following notes:

hote 18 2 - Going Concern

Nete 2 - Estimate of useful life used for the purposes of depreciation and amertisation on property plant and equipment and intangible sssets.
Nute 5 - Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future (axableprofit against wihich tax losses carried forward ean be used;

Nofe 36 - Measwrerment of defined benefit obligations: key actuaria] assumplions;

Mote 4, 7, L1, 12 and 23 - Recoguition and measurement of provisions and sontingencies: key asswmptions about the likelihooz! and magnitude of
an outflow of resources

MNote 30 - Impairment of financial assets

Note 2 - Impairment of nen financial assets

Revenue recognition

Revenue is meastired based on transaction prige, which is the consideration prid for services. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of contro! of promised
gervices 1o enstomers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services, Revenue from
rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes and discounts.

(a}

Ineome from operations

The Company emns revenue from trivel and related services,

Travel and related services

It camprises of leisure tours packages within Indiz and outside lndia along with {ravel related serviges viz travel insurance and visa services.

Revenue on leisure towrs / haliday's packages are recognized on the completion of the performance obligation which is on the date of departure of

the tour.

¥t also ineludes incame from the sale of aitline lickels is recognized as an agent on the basis ominission eained, af the tine of jssuance of

lickets, as the Company does nof assume any perfarmance obligation post the confir
%{de:‘formaaicc linkeel bonuses fram airlines are recognized as and when the performanc

\
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statenients
for the year ended Murch 31, 2024
{(All amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.4

1B.5

Revenue recognition {Continued)

]
0]

(i)

(©

Coniract balnnees

Contracl assets

A contract asset is the right (o consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer, If the Company performs by rendering services 10 a
cuslomer befpre the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract assel js recognised for the earned consideration hat is
conditional,

Conlract liabilities

A contact Jiability is the obligation 1o transfer senvces 10 a customer for which the Company has received consideration from die eustomer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company renders services to the customer, a cenfract liability is recopnised when the payment fs made,
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company perforing under the contract.

Customer Loyaliy Program

The Company cperates a cusiomer loyalty program. The Loyaliy Program gliows customers to accumuiale rewards points oo their trave} spending
as per (he scheme, The points give rise to a performance obligation as it entitles customers for redempion as getiement of fulure purchase
{ransaction price,

Consideration received is allocated between tlis sale of travel packages and contraciyal Fability lor paints issued,

Consideralion allocated 1o rewaid points as a contractual fiabilily is deferred and recognized when points are redeemed or when the points are
expired.

Consideration allocated fo reward points is deferred andl recopnized when points are redeemed or when the poinis are expired. Reward poins are
redecmable by the customers in the future periods for booking sither holiday, Dlight or hote] with the Company. Revenue againsl the reward poinis
is recognised when redeemed by the customers for travel bookings with the Company. Reward points which remain woredesmed al the time of
expiry of such points are re¢ognized as révenue,

Taxes on incomie

The income {ax expense or credit for (he period is the tax payable on the current period’s faxable jncome based onthe applicable inceme iax rate for gach
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred fax assets and Babilities auributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losscs.

Income tax for the period camprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss excepl to the exlent that it
relates to jtems recognised in “Other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in “Qther comprehensive income” or
directly in equity, respectively.

)

Current tax:

Current ax fs (he expected tax payable on the taxable imcome for the year, using (ax rates enacied or substantively enacfed al the Balance Sheet
date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years, Interest income/expenses and penalties, if’ any related to income tax arz
fnetded in correntlax expense.

Managemend periodicalty evaluates posilions taken in fax relurns with respect @0 sitvations m which app!lcable taa regt11auon i -subject to

interpretation. 1 establishes provisions where appropeiate on the basis of amonnts expeoted JgoB jigs The cemgan;)\:offsets
he current 1ax assels s against the Hability for provision for fax. { (

j

~
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes Lo the financial statements
Jor the year ended Mareh 37, 2024
(All amounts in Rs, Millions; uniess ofherwise stated)

1B.35

1B.6

Taxes on inconme (Continued)

(b} Deferval tax:
Deferred tax isrecognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable tenporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and Habilities and their cartying amount, exeept when the deferad 1ax arises from the initial

tecognition of dn assel or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affeets neilher accountiug mor faxable profit or loss at the
tme of (e transaction.

Deferred tax assefs are recoghised 1o The extent thal it is probatile that taxable profil wifl be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the earry forward of unused tax crodits and unused Tax losses can be utilised. Deferred taxes ou jtems classified under Other
comprehensive eome {OCH) has been recognised in QCL

Thie carryiing amound of deferred jax asssts is reviewed al each reporting date and redueed 1o the extent that it is ne longer prabable that sufficien
taxable profil will be avaifable (o allow all orpart of the deferred 1ax assel to be utilised. Deferred tox mssets and Labilities are measured using
subsianiively enacled 1ax rates expected to apply fo taxable income in the years in which Ihe temporary differences are expecied to be recéived or
settled, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they refute 10 income taxes Tevied by the same taxation authority ad the relevant enfity
inlends to settle 115 current tax assets and liabilities on a nel basis.

Leases

The company as a lessoe

Thie company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, velicles and office equipment's, The vompany assesscs whtlier a contract
contains a lease, at incepiion of a contract, A contract i, or contains, a lease if the comtiact conveys the righl to control the use of an-identified asser for «
period of time in exchange for consideration,

To assess whether a confract conveys the right fo contyal fhe use of an idenfified asset, the compéany assesses whether:
{1} the contract involves the use of an identified asset

{2) the company has substantially all of (he economic benefits from use of the asset through the periad of the lease and
{3) the company has the right to direc! the use of the assef.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognizes & “Right of Use® {“ROU™) nssel and # corresponding Jemse: lisbility for alf Jease
arrangements in which it is a Jesses, except for leases with 4 term of twelve months or less (short-term Jeases) and low velue leases, Far these shori-lerm
aind low value leases, (he company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the tenin of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized ar cost, which comprises the initial amiount of the lease lability adjusied for any lease payments made at or prior
to the contmencement date of th lease plis sy initial direct costs Jess any lease incentives. They are subsequently mensured at cosi less accumulated
depreriation and impairment losses if any and adjusted for any remeasiwrement of the lease hability,

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter af the lease term and useful life of the underlying assel.

The lease liability iz initiaily measured a1 amortized cosl at ihe present vatue of the futire lease payments. The 1ease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the fease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borvowing rates in the coumiry -of domicile of the leases, Lease
Jiabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to ihe related might of use asset if (he company changes i1s assessment il whether it will
exercise an extengion or & termination option.’

The compaony 6s « lessor

Leases for which the company s a lessor is classificd as a finance or operating lease, Whenever the 1erms of the lease |;ansfer substmnnlly ali the risks
and rew: al(‘]s of owner ah!p o the icssec the coim act is G]'lssn'“ cd asa F nance Icase Al othet leases are classified as qpentm !Eas'ﬁsf,\
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B,7

1B.8

{mpairmenit of assels

()

)

Finjnecial agscts

A fiancial asset nol earried at fair velue is assessed at each reporting dale to determine whether there is objective evidence that it js iinpaired. A
financial assef is imipsired if objective evidence indicares that a loss event bag ovowrred afier the initial recognition of the assel, and that the loss
event had a negative effect.on the estimated future eash flows of that asset that can be esiimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial asssts ave impaired can include default ar delinquency by 2 debtor, restictusing of an amount due to the
Cornpany on terms that the Company would not otherwise consider, indications thal a delitor or fssuer will enter bankruptey, the disappearance of
at active market for a securily. The entity considers evidence of hnpaitment for recejvables Tor each specific asset. &ll individually significant
reccivables are assessed for specific impairment,

An mmpairmient loss in respect of a financial assel voeasured 4t amortized cost is ealeylated as the difference hetween its carrying amount and the
preséni vtue of the estimated future cash flows discotinted al the asset™s origil effective inferest rate. Losses are recognized i statement of profit
and foss and are reflected as an aflowance account agaist receivables. Interest on the impaired assel conlinues to be recognized as income thyough
the unwinding of the discount, When a subsequent sveit causes the amounl of inypainment loss fo deerease, the decrease o impainment loss is
reversed through slalement of profit and loss.

The company assess al cach date of Balance sheet whether & financial assets or group of financial assets is impaired. ki accordaice with Ind-AS
109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for imeasurement and recognition of impainment Joss o the financial assets and cradit
risk exposure;

The Campany follows “simplifiedd approach’ for recognition of impaimment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company 1o track changes in credit zisk. Ralher, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based n lifetime FCLs at
ench reporting dafe, right from its initial recognition.

Far recognilion of impairment Joss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whetlier there las been 4 significant
increase in the credit risk sinee iniltal recognition. The Company applies a simplified approach in caleulating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetimeé ECLs af each reporting date. The Comgpany has
established a provision matrix that is based on fis historical cvedit Joss experience, adjusted for forward-looking faclors specific 1o the debtors and
the ecopomic environiment,

Nou finaucial assets

Goodwill is tested annually Tor impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumafances indicate thal they might be impaired. -Other.
agsels are tesled for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicale that the carrying amouni may aot be vecoverable, An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel’s carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing iinpaiiment, assets are grouped ot the Jowost
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other asscts or groups of
assels (cash-generating wmils). Non-financial assels other than goodwill that suffersd jmpaimment are reviewed for passible reversal of the
itngrairment al the end of each reporting period.

Total impairment Joss ol a cacl generaling it (CGU) is allocated first o rednce the carrying amount of poodwill aliocaled o the CGU and then te
the other asséts of the CGU pro-rata.of the basis of the canying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impatrient loss on goodwill is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss and is nol ieversed in the subsequent period,

Cash and ¢érsh eygoivalenis -

Cosh and cash equivalents inchudes cash on hand, cheques/drafts on hand, remiitances in transit, balances with baok held in cument account, demand
deposits with original matusities of fhice months or less, deposits held at-call with financial institutions, other short-terntn, kighly Jiguid investments with
original maturities of three months or tess that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subjeet to an JIlSlanlf_ ieatt Figk of changes
i value, and bank overdrafls. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an itegral part of an entity's cash mana"emem andi r(e:i\:ludcd as &

mponen| of cash and ¢ash equivalents. Bank overdrafls are shown within borrowings in curre mlailities in tl }e balance Scp“

"i\
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
far the vear ended March 31, 2024
{ All amounts in Rs, Millions, umless otheiwise stated)

1B.%

Financial insirumenis

(a)

(b}

(©

()

Initial recognition and easurement

Financial agsets are recognised when {he entity becomes a party fo the contractuat provisions of the insiroments. Transection costs are &xpensed in
the statement of profit and loss, except for {wancial instrunents carried al amoriized cost, where hansaction costs are adjusted in the amorlized cost
of the assel.

Subsequent measurenyent

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured al amortised cost, fair value through other camprehensive income
{'FVOCT") or fair value through profit or loss {"FVTPL"} on the basiz of;

(i the entity’s business model for managing the financial sssets and

{i{) the contractual cash flaw characteristics of the financial asset.

() Measared al amortized cost: Financial assals which have contiactual cash flows thal are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the
principal ouistanding and is held sitlin a business mode) with the objective of holding The assets to collect contractual cash flows, are subscquently
mieasur<d al amortized tost nsing the affective interest rate {'EIR') method, less inpainmeni, if any. Amortized cost is caleulated by 1aking info
account any discount or premiwm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pait of fhe EIR, The EIR amortization is included in interest
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses avising from impairment are recognised in the stateent-of profil and loss, On derecognition,
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

{ii) Measured at fair value ihrough other comprehensive incomie ; Financial assets which have contractual cashi flows thal are solely payments
of principal and interost.on the principal cutstanding and is held within a business model whose obiective is achiever by both ecllecting contractual
casl flows and selling Tinancial assets, is measured at Fair valus thraugh other comprehensive income. 1t is subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses recognisad in the cther comprehensive income (*OCIY, except for interest income which is Tecagnised as ‘ofber income’
in the Statement of Profit and Logs using ihe EIR method. The losses arising from Impairment ave recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
G derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recopnised in OC] is reclassified from the equity to ‘olher income’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

(i) Medsured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not measured A either amertised cost or FVOCI, is measured al FYTPL,
Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend imcome if any, recognised as
‘other income® i1z the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All investments in equity instruments claseified under financial assets are subsequently measured at Fair valoe (exeept for [nveshment in
subsidiarias). Bquity instruments whicl: are held for trading are measuied t FVTPL. For all other equity Instrumenis, the Company may, on initial
recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same efther at FYOCT or FYTPL. The Company makes such elecfion on an nstrument-by-instrument
basis, Fair value changes an an eguity instrument shall be recognized as ‘other income” in fhie Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Cormpany bas
elected to measure such instrument at FYOCL Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instroment measured at FYOCI are recognised
in OCL Amounts recognised in OC] ave not subsequently reclassified o the Stareiment of Profit and Loss. Dividend income an the fuvestments in
equily instrumnents are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the company’s right to receive payments is
establishes:

Investments in sabsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried al cosi less acownuiated impairment losses, if any. Where an tndication of Timpairment exists, the camying
amounl of e investment is assessed and writen down jmmediately Lo iis recoverable amount. The accounting policy on impairment of non-
financial assets is disclosed in Note IB.7{b). On dispoesal of invesiments in subsidiaries, the difference between nef disposal proceeds and the
canying amounts are recognized in the statemeni of profit and loss,

Derecognition

The Company derecognises & financial asset when 1he contractual rights fo the cash Fows from the financial asset expive, or i transfers the
contraclual rights 10 receive the cash flows from the assel. On transfer of the financial asset, the Company evaluates iT and o what exient it has
retained fhe risks and rewards of ownership. When it hias neither wansferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and 1g ards o‘F 1])\(: assel, vor
wransferred control of the assel, the Company continues lo recognise the fransferned assel (o the extent of the Cmnp’my s & ‘nfmuﬁﬁ‘i a\fol‘ymnent In
W case, the Company also recognises an associated lability. The transferved asset and the associated liability are [j 'r “Alue basis

1a reflects the rights and obligations thal the Company has retajned.
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SOTC Travel Limited

MNotes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024
{ ANl amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated}

1.9

IB.14}

Finaneial instroments (Contin ned}
Finnncial Babilities

(r) ILnitial recogrilion and measurement;
Finaocial Habilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contraclual provisions of the instroments, Financial Habilities are
initally recognised al {air value plus transaction costs for all financial Habilivies not carried al FVTEL, Financial liabilities camied al FVTPL are
inidally recogniséd at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

{b} Subsequent measurement:
Fifancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR, melhod. Financial labilities carmied ar FYTPL ave ieasured at fair value
with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profil and lass,

{e} Derecogaition:
A finaneial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires, When an existing fipancial
Yability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of i existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recoguition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective eatrying amounts is 1eeognized in the stalsment of profit or Joss,

Devivative financial tnstrizments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge its forcign currency risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are [nitially recognised at falr value on the date on wivich a derivafive coutract is enlered jmo and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss. Derivafives are carried as financial assets when fhe
{airvalue is positive and as financial Jiabilities when the fair value is negative,

Offseitiug financial instrumen{(s

Financial assels and liabilities are affsel and the nel amount is reparted in the balance sheet where there is a legally enlorceable right i offset the
recopnised amounts and there s an intention to seltle on w net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability siiwltaneously. The legally
enferceable right most nof be conlingeit on future evenls and must be enforceable in the normal cowrse of business and in the event o delaull,
insohvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Property, plant and eguipment

Property, plamt and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainnent losses, if any. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset's carrying amoint or recognised &s a separate assel, as appropriale, anly when it is probable thal Julare economic benefits associated
with fhe jlem will flow 1o the Company and the cost of thie itens can be measured reliably. All ather repairs and mainienance ave charged Io the slatement
of profit and léss during the geriod i which they are iiscurred. The carrying amount of any component acoountled for as a separate assel i derecognised
when replaced. Losses arising from the retivement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of assets which are carried al cost {3 recognised in the
staternend of profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment are staled at historical cost less depreciation, Histotical eost includes expenditure that is direetly atiabutable to the
agquisition of the litems. Depreciation is provided on & straighi-line method aver the estimated useful lives of The assets, The depreciation rales arc
prescribed i Schedule H o the Conpanies Act, 2013, If the managentent’s estimatz of the useful Jife of a fixed assel a1 the time of acquisition of the
asset or of the remaining useful life on o subsequent review is shorter or longer than thal envisaged in the aforesaid Schedule, depreciation is provided at
a higlier or lower rate respeclively, based on (he management’s estimate of the vseful lifefremaining life.

Assois Lstimated useful life {in years)
Furniture and Fixtures 5
Office Equipment’s (including air conditiongrs) 3
Wehicles 5

(¥

Computer hardwars
Leasehold Improvements are amortised aver the periad of the lease or uselul life of the asset whichever is iower.
Propesty. plamt and cquipment not veady for the jntended use on ihe dale of Balonce Sheet are disclosed as *Capifal work-in-progiess®.

!!L r%ldua] \alm.s use,ful h\ s 'md method of delCClalIOTI of pmpenv plam 'md c*qulpment is reviewed gl Lach f mnclal ye'u etid and f;ci)uslcd

reviewed, and ad_]usted if appmpnaic al the end of each mpolllng por mcl An as<‘.e1
amount if the asset’s carying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable an
roceeds with canving amount. These are included in the statement of profin and Jos
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SOTC Travel Limited

MNotes to the financial statements
Jor the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in Rs, Millions, unless ofherwise stated)

1B.10

1B.11

Property, plant and equipment {Continued)

Tntangille assets

Intangible Asscts are siated al acquisition cost, net of accunulated amoriization and acewmmulated Impaimment Josses, i any. Imangible assels are
athortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The amorlization period and fhe amortization method are reviewed at least al each
financial year end, IT the expecied useful life of the ssset is siguificantly different from previous estimates, \he amoriization peried is changed
accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the relirement or disposal of an inlangible assel are determined as ihe différence between the nel disposat
praceeds and the cartying amoimni-of the asset and recognised as incoms or expense in (he statement of profit and lags.

The carrying value of these intangible assets is reviewed at least annually for inspairment and adjusted to e recoversible amount if required,

(1 Gooedwill

Goodwill on business combination is included in intangible assets, Goodwilt is not amoudized but it is fested for impainuent anmually, or more
frequenily if events or changes in circumstances indicate (vt it 1night be impaired, and is carried 4t cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating te the enfity sold. Goodwilt is allocaied to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generafing uniis or company’s of cash-generating units that are
expented 1o bevefit from the business combination in which the poodwill atose. The units or company's of anits are identificd at 1he lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for intemal managerient puwiposes, which in our ease are the operating segments.

{ij Compuier software

Costs associaled with maintaining software programmes are tecognised as an expense ag incurred, Development costs these are direedy atributable
to 1he design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company are Tecognised as Infangible assets when the
following criteria are mei:

+ if is technically feasible to conmplete Ihe software so that it will be available foruse

+ managemesnt imends 1o complets the software and vse or sell it

« there is an abilily to use or sell the softivare

+ if can be demonstrated how the software will generale probable future econonnic benefits

« adequate technical, financial mic ofher resources to campleie the develaprent and to use or sell the software  are available, and

» (he expenditure attributable 1o the software during its developmed can be reliably measured.

Directly atiributable cogms that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs and an sppropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Compuater solbvare
Amoriisation methods and psdods:

Assets Estimated useful Life
(in years)
Software 34
Rorrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, wet of transaction costs incurred. Bormowings arve subsequently measured al amorized cost, Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redempiion amount is recognised in statement of prafit and loss over the period of the
Lorrowings using (he effective interest method, Fees paid on the establishmenl of loan facilitice are recognised as transaction costs of the loan 1o the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn dowr, In this case, the fee is deferred unti] the draw down oceurs. To the extert
there is 1o evidence that it is probable that some ar all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortized over the period of the facility 1o which it relales.

Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when he obligation specified in the contract s discharged, cancelied or expired, The difference
between the canying amount of a financial liability 1hat has been extinguished or wransfemed o another party and the consideration paid, incliding any
non-cash assels transfemed or liabilities asswimed, is recognised in stilement of profit and loss. o

. "
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statenients
Jor the year-ended March 31, 2024
{Al} amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.12

1B.13

1B.14

Provisions and condingent Habilitics

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation {legal or consiructive) as o resull of a past even, if is probable thal an owtfiow of
resources embodying economiic benefits will be required Lo setlle the obligaiion and a reliable estimate can be made of the avount of the cbligation,
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required lo settle the present obligation af {he Balance Sheel date. Provisions are nol
recognised for future opersting losses. A provision is recognized if the likelihood of an outflow wiih respect fo any one item included in the same class of
abligations is more probable than nok Provisions are meagured at the present value of management's best estinate of ihe expenditure require (o setile the
present obligation ar the end of the reparting peried. The discount rate used to determine the present value s a pre-tax vafe that feflects current mackel
assessments of the ime valae of money and the risks specific lo the liability,

Pravisions are reviewed at each balance sheel date and adjusied lo reflest éhe cusrent best estimate. 1111 3s no longer probable that the outflow of resources
would be required to setile the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Where there are seversl similat obligations, the Jikelihood that an sutflow wilt be reqiired i settement is detertined by considering {he class of
obligations as a whole. A provision js recognised even if the likelihood of an outfllow with respect 4o any one item included in the sane class of
obligations may be small.

Coniingent liabilities are disclosed when theve is a possible obligation mrising from pasi events, (he existence of which will be confirmed only by the
QeCuUREnce or non-ocourrence of one or 1more Incertain Tuture evenls not whally within the cantro of the Engty or a present obligation that arises {ram
past events where ii {s either not probable that an outflow of resowrces will be required 1o sentie ihe obligation or a relfable estimate of the amount canmol
be made,

Continganl assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statemens.

Other income

[arerest income is recogivised on a time praportion hasis taking inio account the amount outstanding and 1he rafe applicable. Facilily support incame,
Proup FESOuCe income and mmanaganient fees is recognised on acerual basis over the peried of agreement.

Lmpioyee honefits
(a) Tost employmient benefits:

(il Defined confribution plans
The Company’s provident fumd contributien paid / payable under the recognised provident fund scheme and the employess' state inswance
contribution is recogised as an expense in fhe Statement of profit and loss during the period ia which the employee renders the related service,

{ii} Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan {the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees i accordance with the Payment of
Grality Act, 1972, The Gratuity Plan provides a Tamp sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation ar termination of
ernployment, of an amonnt based on the respective employee's salary ad the tenure of employment,

The Compauy's gratity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme s
caleulated by estimating the amount of Future benefit that employees have eamed in returm for their services in the cunent and pricr periods. “These
benefils are discounted to determine its present value, and the fair valne of any plan assets is deducted hierefiom.

Contribution (o Grataity is based on the tequirement of the tust with whom the Company mainiajne the fund balance. The Company's ability is
actuarially determined {using the Projected Dt Credit Method) at the end of each year. The ambunt of nef interest expense caiculated by applying
the Hability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or assets is charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss, Any differenices
betweer the inierest income on plan assets and the refum actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due 10 changes in
acfuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised inpwediately in ‘Cther comprehensive fnceme’ and subsequently
not reclassified to (he stalement of profil and loss.

(b Shori-tern: employee benefit

Shert 1em employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. & Bability is
recounized for the amount expecied to be paid, e.g. salaries, shorf ten bames, if the Company has 4 preseni legal or consiructive obligation to pay
this amounl as a resuli of past service provided by the employee, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

{cy Compensated absences S
As per the Jeave Policy of the Company, emplayees are entitled to avail 30 days of leave during a calendar vear, Any darry for \qu(l]or Q\mashmem
of the same is nod aliowed and all untilised leaves necessavily lapse at the end of ihe calen | reporting (Ia;‘é’!i 51111} peraiping.io

;I :

compensaled absences is calculate based on the lotal leave balances of each smployee, BRERTRIY ! -
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial staterments
Jor the year ended March 31, 2029
{AN anounts it Rs. Millions, unless otherwise staled)

1B.14

1B.13

iB.16

iB.17

1B.18

1B.19

Employee benefits {Continned)

{0} Employec stack opiions :
The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards ~ i.e, sfock options - granted to employess is recognised as personnel cxpenses, with a
coiresponding increase in Bquity, over the period in which.the employees become entifled o the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is
adiusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service sud non-market perlormance conditions are expecled o be met, sueh that the
amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards thal meet the related service and non-market performance condilions
at the vesting date,

Contrihuted equily

Equity shares are classilied as equily. Incremental costs direetly attiibutable to the issue of new shares or oplions are shown in equity as a déduction, net
of tax, from the procesds.

Earnings per share

Basic eatnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or Joss far the year atuibutable 1o equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares pulstanding during the year. Eamings considersd in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the nel profit for the year afier
deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year, The weighted average number of equity shares anlslanding during the year
and for all yesrs presented is adjusled for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversien of polential equity shares that have changed the vumber
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources, For the puipase of ¢aleutating diluted eanings per share, the net profit or oss
for the year altributable to equity shareholders and the weighied average number of shares cutstanding during the year is adinsted for the effecis of a1l
dilutive patential equity shares,

Tusiness Combinaton

Business combinations of entities under common control are accounted using the “pooling of inlerests” method and assets and liabilities are reflecied at
the predecessor carrying values and the only adjustments {hat are made are to hanmonise accounting policies. The frgures for the previous perods are
iestatect a5 if the business combination had occurred at the beginning of the preceding péiod irvespective of (he acinal date of the combination,

Cosl recognition

Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified sccording to et primary nalre. The costs of the company are byoadly
categorised in employee benefit expenses, depreciafion and amerisation and other operating expenges. Employee benelll expenses include amployee
compensation, allowances paid, coniribution to various funds and siafl welfare expenses. Other operating expenses majorly include sub-contractor
charges, renl, recruitment and training expenses, travelling and conveyanee, legsl and professional fecs and communication expenses.

Critieat Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Slatements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by deflnition, will seldom equal fhe acival results. This note
provides an overview-of the areas that invelved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of jtems whith are more likely to be materially adjusted
due (o estimates and assunphions turning out 1o be differem than those originatly assessed. Detaited information about each of these estimaies and
judgements is included i refevant notes logether with fuformation about the basis of ealeulation for each affected line item in the Financial Statements.

The areas involving crifical estimates and judgments are;

~Useful life of properly, plani & equipment

-Estimated useful lite of hitangible assel

-Estimated goodwill inpainment

-Leases

-lmpairment of investment

-Estimation ol Defined Benefit Obligalion

-Recoguition of deferred tax assers Tor carried forward unabsorbed depreciation/ Joss
-Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies

Fair value of financial insiruments
S@maimxenl of trade receivables

o
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the yeor ended March 31, 2024
(AH amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise sialed)

113.20

1B.2{

1B.22

Curreni / Non Cerrend Classifieation

Al assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current;

Assels

An asset Is classified a5 euwrtent when it satisfies any ol the following eriterin:

a) il is expercted to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company's norival aperating eyele!

b) it is held primarily for the purpese of beiny traded;

¢) it is expected to be realised within |2 months after the reporling date; or

d) {1 iz'cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from heing exchanged or used to settle a liability for at Jeast 12 mosiths after the reparting date.
Current assets include ihe cutrent portion of non-current financial assets, Al other assets are classified as non-current,

Linbilities

A liability is classified as current when i1 satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is-expecied to be settled in the Company's normal eperating eyele;

b it is held primarily for the parpose of being traded;

) it is due o be settied within 12-months after the reporting date; or

d} the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at Jeast 12 months affer the reparting date. Tenns of a liability
that couid, at the opiion of ihe counterparty, result in its settlement by the issug of equity struments do noi affeet its Classitication,

Current Liabilitiss include current portion of non-current financial Habilities, All other Habilities are classified as non-currént

Qperating cycle:

Operating cyele is the time betwesn the acquisition of assets for processing and thelv realisation i cash or cash equivalents. Based on the above defisition
and the nature of services provided, the Company has ascerfained its operating ¢yele as 12 months for the purpose of current - nen-curent elassification
of assets and liabitities,

Change in accounting policies and disclosures
The Ministry of Corparate Affairs hiag niotified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendinent Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 io amend the
foltowing Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company applied for the firsl-lime these amendments,

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendinents 1o Jnd AS 8;

The amendmenis clarify the distinction betwegn changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and Lhe comection of emors. T has
also been clarified how entities use measurament techniques and inputs io dévelop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the
Company's standalone financial statements,

(i) Disclosure ments of Accounting Policies - Amendments o Ind A8 1

The amendinents aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures {hal sre more useful by replacing the requirement for entities.io disclose their
‘significant accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities aply the coneept
of maleriality in making decisions about accovnting policy disclosures.

The amendments Lave had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting peficies, bt not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of
any items in the Company's financial statements,

{311} Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabililies arising from 3 Single Transaction - Amendments fo Ind AS 12:

The amendmenis nartow the scope of the initiat recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to (ransactions that giverise 1o equal
taxable and deductible emporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a vesult of these amendments, the Company has tecognised a separate
delered tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its vighi-of-use assels. Since, these balances qualify for offset as
per the requirements of patagraph 74 of Ind AS 12,there is no impact in the balauce sheet. Thers was also no jinpact on the opening retained earnings as

“al 1 April 2022,

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendmenis (o the existing standards under Companies {Indian Acconnting Standards)
Rules ag issued from time to time, For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notfied any new standards or amendments (o (he existing standards
applicable to he Campany. pstrachons L ST
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SOTC Travel Limifed

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as af 31 March 2024

{All amount in Rs Millieus, unless olberwise stated)

Note-2 Properly, plani and equipment

Groys Block

As al 1 Aprii 2023
Additions during the year
Disposals during the yenr

Gross enreying value as of 31 March 2024

Arcumulated depreciation ag of 1 April 2023
Tieprecialion charge during the year
Dieduetion on disposals dusing the year

Accumadnied depreciation as of 31 Miarch 2024
Carrying value as of 31 Marech 2024

Gross Block

As a1 Aprll 2822
Additions during the year
Disposais daring the year

Gross carrying valne as of 31 March 2023

Accnmulated depreeiation as of 1 April 2022
Deprecintion charge during the year
DBeduetion on disposals during the pear

Accumulated depreciation ag of 31 Mareh 2(123

Currying vaine as of 21 March 202

Nofe-2. 7 Riglt of use Axsets

Gross carrving value at gt beginning
Additions during lhe year

Disposals during the year

Gross carrving valse as at year end

Accurnulated amartisation as ol begluning
Amortisalion charge during the year
Deduction on disposals duting ihe year
Acenmulated amoriisation a5 at year end

%el Carrying vilue a3 at year end

N\

Computer F.easehnid F\lrﬂlture gnd Office Equipment Total
hardware latpravements Tixtures
Amount Anzouin Amonnt Amont Amount
67.08 18.64 10.64 16.13 112,49
15,137 150 023 009 15,99
36,34 1.8% 0.75 5.64 44.63
45,89 11.26 10.12 i0.58 §1.85
49.01 18.53 7.24 15,12 81,90
10.85 3.24 1.82 0.53 16,44
36,36 1.85 075 5.84 44.60
23.50 1192 §.31 10.01 53,74
22,39 5.34 1.51 .57 30.3)
Arnound Arnoum Amiont Amounl Amgan
56.67 17,52 9.9 1590 10005
15,24 1.48 1.0 0.91 22.04
583 636 0.33 (168 10.28
67.08 1B.64 10.64 16.13 112,49
53,70 7.63 572 14909 817
4,14 126 1.83 110 10.35
582 0.36 0.33 .63 10.20
49,01 .10,53 7.24 15.12 BLY
1807 £ T340 101 50.59
31 March 2024 3 Morch 2023 35 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amonnt Ameani mount Atrount
Buitdings Buildings Yehicles Yehicles
31527 262.06 3,85 0.3
510 62.24 238 .87
723 9,05
253,14 31527 §.23 3.85
167.51 12252 .87 0.06
4543 47.95 L2§ 0.5
£5.00 256 - .
144,34 |67.91 1H5 !
104.80 147.36 438 7

13tk £lper.
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SOTC Trave! Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
ar af 31 March 2024

(Al amounl in Ks Millions, unless atherwise siated)

Node-2.2 Lease dinbilites

The following Is the movenent In lease labiltties during the yeay
Balance a5 al beginning

Additions

THspossl

Adjashnents

Iterest on Jzase liabilities

Paymenl of lease liabilities

|_ease renl waiver

'Ba_lant_:c a8 Al year ciud

Classification as

Non current
Curent

Note: - Below nrg Ure condraciual maturities of lease linbilitics on an undiscownted basis:

Less than one year
Between oiie and five years
Muore than ve years

Renlalespense recognised For shori-tem Jeases for the year caded

Rental expense recopnised for low vahue leases {other than shott termaas disclosed abave) lor the year ened

Eapenses related Lo short leam Jeases vnd low value leases

Amonnts recognised in profir or loss

Lense under 18D AS 116
1nlerest on lease liabilities (Refer noe 26)
Depreciation on right-ofuse assets

Amoundt recognized in Statement of Cash Flow

Repavinent of Lease Liabifities-Principml amounl
Repayment of Lease liabilitics-Interest arnouni

Extension oplions

31 March 2024 31 Morch 2023
Amount Ainoin]
106,41 {5059
748 6503
.22 {3.51)
{003
123 15107
{56.40) {3540
- {0.57)
127.55 16641
B4.66 12560
4288 4251
127,54 16640
S167 54,88
93,67 137,35
- EX M)
145,34 195.88
55,88 2508
55.88 2508
12.3% 15038
46,71 454G
59,413 63.64
44.09 40,23
1133 15.17
5647 5540

The lease contrzcts of the company coniain extensionfrenewal optians which are exercissble only by ihe Company aned not by the lessors. The Company ineludes in its lease
term such exiension/renewal options that the Company is reasonably cerlpin 1o exercise. 11 the lease is extended beyond (he renewal term, then the lease ventals will be

@unlly agrecd between e parties based on the Fair value of jease rent al (he time of extension.
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SOTC Travel Limited
Notes to the finaneial statements (Continned)
wx af 34 March 2024

{All amaunt in &5 Millions, unless othenvise staled)

Note-2.3 Tmtangibics

\ Computer Assels Hader .
Goodhwil Boftware deveiopment Toul
Amounl Armourt Awmount Anount
Gross carrying vatue as at 1 April 2023 26,85 73.29 0.71 10085
Additions during the year - 12.47 - 1247
Disposals during Wb year - - .11 .71
Gross carrying valse as at 31 Mareh 2624 2085 85,76 - 112,61
Accumulated mnortization as ae 1 Aprif 2023 - &0.73 - 60,71
Amarlization charge during Ihe year - 9,63 - .63
Deduclion on disposals daring the year - - - -
Accemuisted amortizaiion as ar 31 Mareh 2024 - 0.4 - .34
Net Carrying value as at 31 March 2024 2685 15.42 - 1227
Gross varrying value as at 1 April 2022 26.55 5,94 ' 4.63 o7 47
Additjons duting tie year - 7.30 47 Bl
Dispusals during the year - - o 463 463
‘(iross carrying value as at 31 March 2023 26.85 73.29 71 © 10085
Aceumulated amortizalion as at T April 2022 - 5312 : - 53,12
Ameartizalion chargé during the year - 1.9 - 159
Deduction on disposals during the year - - -
Acenmulated amartization as a1 3F March 2023 - 6071 - (.73
Net Carryhg value s 8f 31 Mareh 2023 26.85 12,58 .71 4114,
intangibie Asser under Pevelogimens Ageing Schedoke
a1 en Less than 1 . .
As at 315t March 2024 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years ¥are than 3 yesrs Tuin
Projeets in progress - - . . N
As a1 3180 Mareh 2023 Tess than T year 1-2 vears -3 vears More Ihan 3 years Totat
Projecis in progress .71 - o - (71
There is no delay in commissioning of ihe Intangible assels under development, nor Lhe project has exceeded its original budgst,
Natore ¢f Goodwill )
Gondwilt recognised on (he acquisition of the residual business of Kuani Business Travel.
Impalrrcat testing of Goodwill
For the purposes of impaisment iesting, Goodwill has been allocaied as folows:
Asal Agal
31 March 2024 33 March 2023
Acquisivion of the business travel division 246,85 26,85
26,85 2683

The recoverable amound wos based on fir value less costs of disposal, estimated uzging discounted cash flows. The Tair value measurement was calegorised as a Level 3 (afy
value based on inputs in the valuation lechnigne sed.

The key ossumptions nsed in the csiimalion of the recoverable amow are seloul below. The values assigned 1o the key assumptions represenl managemenl’s sssessmen of
future trends i the relevant industries and have been hasced on histovical data from both exiernal and inomal sputees, )

Agal Az al
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
istaunl raic por agnam 7.85% 7E5%
Terminal value grosih rale per anoum 5% Sy
Pudevted EBITRA growih rate faverage of nest 2 vears) per ammum 54 . RS

The discoum rale is post ax measure estimated based on the historical indusiry average weighed-weern

everiging nad fnteraal
rate of return of 7.83% approximately. § .

f
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‘ibhc recoverable amount of Gondwill has been caleutated osing the discounted cash flow methasd.
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SOTC Travej Limited

Notes ti the financia) statements (Continser)
as ot 31 Maveh 224
(Al smaount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stafed)

Nole 3

Investments

A, Envestmenls in subsidiary coupany

1. Iavestmenis in Equity Shares of amortised cost( ungnofed)

3,108,000-(3 1 March 2023: 2,108,000 equity shares of USD 1 each. fidly paid-up, of Travel Circk Intermationa)
{hdaurilivs) Limited.

1. Envestments in preference siunees at amoriied cosi { unguoted)
11600000 (31 March 2023: 11,600,000) 6% Optionally Convertible Redecinalile Prafereniee Shares of USD 1 each.
fulby paid-up, of Travel Circle Intervational (Mauritius) Limited.

Less @ Impairment logs

Agpregatc book valué of ungquoted non-cument invesbneits

Exfeni of equiiy finterest in snbsidiavy:
Travel Cirele International {Maoritios) Linited

Neted
Qther fiminzinl assets (non-carrent)
{Unseegied)
Seeurity depasils
Caonsiderad gogd
Credit impairved,

1wt : Loss allowance

TFived depasit accownis with original maturity niore il twelve months®
Al fhe above FD are lien against margin maney deposits,

Nole §
Ineonie (axes
AL The yagjor component of incane {nx expenses are as nndesr:

(i} Income tax expenses ransisi ol follpwhg
Current tas

In respoed of cuvrent year

Chaniges i eslinates relaled o previous year

Delerred tax
Dewrease in deferved s assels

Tretioe Tax sxpense recognised in statement of profif and loss

(i) Armeonis recognised in other comprelwnsive income
Nefesred tax expense on remeasnrements of defined benebil plans
Tncamy tax expense recognised in OC1

B. Revonellinfion of 1ax expense and the accounting profit for the yéar is as untder ;
Prafil brfave tix
Tax using the Company " domestic tax rate fenneni year 25.17% and previous Year 34.94%)*

Tax effect of:

Elfect of Tncame taxable at differential rate

Othess

Tatal

Deferved fax recognised in Oiber Comprehensive Income
w expense as per Sutement of Profil amk Loss

150 Foet,
Certeal B Vsing 21
Horth £ Whag.
Keseo 1T Pakid,
Kesco Cenler,
Western Express Highway
Garegann {Fasi).
i - 4045 062

31 Mareh 2034 31 March 2023
Aimonit Aot
136:08 136.08
136.08 i36.02
48,85 T45.85
74885 885
BEasd 45403
88493 884,23
B4.41 B4.93
81% 51%
873 3041
T4.30 10,36
ig03 4071
{10,305 {190.30)
2893 30.441
- 20
28,73 3241
218.22 6335
21872 6133
(1.5 (2.00)
(1.50) (200
2750 164,28
£49.22 5811
151.M -
{174y
234.22
(1.50)
111,72




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continwed)

asnrdt Aerek 2024
(All samount in s Miiions. tnless stherwise siated}

Nole s
Enegine taxes (Contined)

€. The major componends of deferred 1ax (linbilitiesMasscis arisng en account of Hitng differences are dx Tollows:

Deferred (ax Azset{Liabilifhes}
Pegperty. planl and equipmam
Emmployes benalils

Tax Tosges

Provisions

Doferred {ax Assels K Liabilities)

Deferred tax Asseli Linbititles)
Properfy, plant sad equipment
Employee benelits

Tax losses

Proyisions

ke flenms

Deferred {ax Assels [Linhikties)

B. Deferred (ax reflected in Saldnee sheel b5 Tollows:
Deferred tax Assels

Dielerred tax ] jabilities

Deferred 105 Assels (net)

Balanee as on Racognised 1n Hecognised et Balanee 43 on
A1 March 2023 yrofil or loss in OCT 31 Mareh 2024
12.2% (L1E) 1L18
30,39 4063 1.50 1782
405,42 (204,43} 260.99
30.62 (041) 21,019
33871 {21932 1,50 32099
Baliuncet as on Rerognised by Recopnised het Balance ag on
3 March 2022 profilor nss in OC1 31 Maieh 2023
11.234 {45 1229
28.55 (0.46) 2.00 30.39
330.25 {6443} 465.42
26.09% 3.6d 30.62
215 (2.15) . -
600.07 {63.35) 200 538.71
31 Aarch 2024 31 Felundy 20023
Amouni Amount
32099 5381
330,99 538,71

* Yyrsuant 1o U introduetion of Section 1158AA of the Income-tax Agt, 1961 [“Mew Tax Regime™, the Company bas an aplion to pay corporate income {ax ol 2 Jower rate of 22% plus
aplicable surchargie and cess as agninst e currently applicable rate of 30% plus surcharge mnd cess. Under the New Tax Regime, provisions of Section 11518 Minfmom Alternats Tax

{MAT} ave 16 longer applicable.

In the fimancial year eaded 31 Murch 2024, the Company Tins opted t adopl New Tax Regime, 1Jpen adoplion of New Tax Regime for FY 2023.24, the ned tax cdliarge is higher by Rs. 151.74
Min. Consequently, e net impiaet of the above amounting to Re. 219, 22 Mn is accoumed for a3 tax expense i fhe year ended 31 Marel 2024,
Aceordingly. ciment periad {ax expense is nat comparable will the reported tax expinge for the year ended 31 March 2073

Mole &
Income tax Assel
Advance lax (net of provigion of Tax) 22089 111,66
‘220,49 110, b
MNole 7
Trade recejvabies
Trade reeeivables considered good - wrd 460,38 437,33
Trade receivables eredit impaired 2495 30,45
49131 467.78
Lass - Impaizent Ioss alkwanee {24.95) {30.45)
46038 437.33
Treade angd other receivabies ineludes ; )
Dnes Trom related partics - considered pood [refer Mote 38] 10,94 4647
MovemenCin expecied credit oss allowanze on trade recehvables
Dalirice al the beginning afie year a5 3143
Clignges inloss allowainde durng the year {5.50) {100y
Balance af the end of \he year 24.95 30,45
As at 251 March 2024 Outstanding for Tollowing perinds from due date of paymeni
Less than 6 Monihs 6 mo\:lll:s =1 1-1 vears 2-3 yrars Dore than 3 yenrs Toial
Undisputed Tratde Recvivables - Considered (iood 431.00 2631 £.85 %04 i 466,38
Uncisputed Trade Reveivables - Credil Impaired - - 175 130 1990 24935
. As al 3ist March 2023 Chstanding for Rillowing periods frons due date of pavinen
Jess than 6 hMontis 8 smosths - 1 1-Zyears 2.3 venrs ilone thian 3 vears Total
veay e
Undizputed Trade Beceivables - Considened Good LM 44.9] 0.53 ‘ L*-'-Ldéz“{sx
Undispued Trode Peceivibles - Credil Inpaired - - 4.02

b/

Resto IT Pakd,
Mesra Conlef,
Wesiein £xpvess Highway,
Goregeon {East).
Fumha - 47 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to tie financial statements (Continued)
s i 31 Aarch 2024
(AUl amount-in Rs Mllions, valess olherwise stated)

31 Mareh 2034 31 March 2023
Note § Amonnd Amount
Cash wnil cish equivalends
Balanee with banks
in current seegunl THLET 7481
—inn deposil accounts {with originl mialuzity of three onllg or less} 130.06 VEQ.00
Cash on hand - -
300.8) 354,87
Note®
Dank Balances oflier than eash snd eagh couivalents )
Shorl lerm deposits (Qriginal maturity more than 3 menihs and less than 12 monlhs) - - 20,18
- 20119

Depasit balances (ineluding those disclosed wder ather finaeial assels {hon-current) in Mete 43 inchude Nired deposits under fien aggregating 1o Rs Ml {3) March 2023; Rs22.19).

Note 1k
Loans
Unseeured, conidercd good eavried Bt amortised cast except othevwise stated

Loan 1o related pariies [refer Mote 38) - .
Nalell
Other Snancial Assets (ecurrent)
(Unseenred )
Securily déposdis
Clensidered good 3.1 443
Credit impitivetd 14,14 21,04
4591 76.42
Legs - linpaiment loss allowance 114.14) {2154}
kY 54.4%

Other receivables

Congidered pood 150,06
Credil impaired 1.03
151.39
1ess - Loss allovwance {1.03)
180.16°

Tulerest aeerged but nol due on fixed deposits with banlks- . 0.86

AV

14h Flooy,
Leatral 6 Wing ang
Natle C Wing,
‘Heseo {F Pakd,
Hesco Centéy,
Western Express Hihaay,
Giocegia {Eacl). ;
Hhtnba - 460 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financlal statements (Confinued)
as of 31 Marvel 2024
(Al amoml in Rs Millions, wuless otherwise statel)

31 farch 2034 31 March 2123
Mole 32 Amounl Anouy
Othier euirent Assels
Prepaid expenses 15.85 588
Baluices witly gov i Adularities 41,57 30,39
{Net of provision of GET recoverabie Re. 47.52 for Marcl 2024 and Rs. 2923 Tor Narch 2023)
Advanee (0 vondoys
Considered poad BULED 57131
Credit impaired 247 11,98
824,47 3832y
Less - Loss aliowance (2147} LLes)
B 37131
Skaft adwance .
Considered pogd 2048 2187
Credit imtpaived _ 11.54 11.43
3242 3120
tous - Loss altowance (11.54) {1143
20.48 2187
250,30 63545
Advance Lo vendors includes : '
Advance o refated parly - Unsecured, Congidered gond [refer nole 3%5] - -
Advanee 1o relaied party - Unseenred, Considered douirtful {rafer nite 38} 140 7.40
Note 13
Equity Share Capital
Authorised :
10,000 {31 March 2023: 10,000} Equity Shares of Rs 10 each. 10 110
1ssued, sutiseribed and fully pald wp:
10.000 {3 | Marcl 2023; 14,000} Equity Shiwes of Rs 10 gacly, fully paid-ap. 0.1} .00
0,10 ®10
A, Reconviliation of nantber of shaves ouistanding at the Deginping and end of the year
A1 Mareh 2024 31 bwiely 2023
Ny, of shares Amoual No. of shares Ao

Equity shares of fnce valud of 25 10 cach, fully paid-up
A1 ihe commeneaient of (he year 14,100 618 10,00 .10
Addition during the year - - .

Cuisianding al (e end of the year 14,000 010 1,000 0.0

B, Rights , preferences and restrictions attached o Eaquily Shares
Eruity shares of Mce valug of Rs 10 each Tully paid-up

The Company has & single class of Equity Shares having face valse of Rs 10 ench, Accordingly, Fiquity Shares shall rank pari passh with régaid 10 dividends nd share in the Company's
rasidunt asseis aler distribulion of all preferential amounts, if any. The equity shareholders are entitled 10 uetcive dividend as dechared from time 1o time. The veling vighis of an Equity
Shareholder are in proportion o its share of the paid-up equily capital of the Conpany.  Voting rights cannal be exercised in vespael of shares on which any call or offier sums presently
payable havie nal beel piid,

On winding up of the Campany. the holders of Fquity Shares will be entitled to reveive the esidua] neseis of the Campeay, remaining afer distributioe of all prefuremisi amonnts in

proporiion 1o the nomber of Byuity Shares held by them.

€. Shares beld by Holding Campany { Gitimate Hidding Company ! Subsidiaries of Holding Company

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
No, of shares Amguul Nes. of shares Amouit
Equity Shares of R5 10 cach Ity puid-ap Tieddd v -
Thomas Cook (India) Limited (Holding Company’} including is nowmjnees 14,00 0.10 10000 0.0
10, O0HE 14 11000 010
I», Particulars of sharcholders holding mare than 5% shares of & class of shares:
31 March 2024 31 wdarch 2023
No. ol shares % ol lotal shares No. of shares "o o tutpd shares
Equity Shaves of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up, hebd Ty

“Mimas Cook (lutia) Liniwd {Helding Company’) . 14,000 14 15,008 1

E. Aggrepale nnmber of shares issupd Tor consideration siber tian eash duving the perlod of five years i i TR AR n g date:

e
H\ 1. Gritial B Whag and
1/ Korlh G Y.
Hesco IT Pakd,
Neseo Cenler,
Wttt Express Mghway,
Goregaon {Fast),

Phureha - 400 0€3




SOTC Travel Limited

Noles to the financial stntements (Continued)
gl 1 Mprch 2024
(All amount in Rs Milions, wnless othenyise stated)

31 Marel 2024 31 Marely 2023
Amiaeni X Aol

Nofe 14
Qther Eguity
Qptionally ConverGble Non -Cuulalive Redeemable Preferenee Shares 8od.40 360.00
Relained earnings (8066.78) (862,58}
Capital reserve arising uil of Amalgamalion 6380 53.50
Capitai Redempion Reserve 140.00 140,40
Olher Comprehensive Inconie 448 .54
Erapleyee share option oulslanding accewn 94.64 06,65

35814 10,74
Notes:~ ’
(i) Optinnally Convertible Nan -Cummiative Redeemable Preferente Shares
Anthorised :
106,000,006 (31 March 2023; 106,000,000} 0.61% Optionally Gonvertible Nen -Cuniilative
Redeamable Preference Shaes of Rs. 10 each, 1, 060,01} 1.060.00

Tsgneedd, subeeribed and fuily paid up

$6,000.000 (31 March 2023: 56,000.000) 0.01%: Opticnlly Converlible Nou -Comulative
Redeemable Preference Sharés of Rs, 10 cach,

§6,00 A60.00

B60.00 B00.00
A. Reconcilingion of nunber-nf shares cutsianding af the begiuning and end of the yenr :

31 Harch 2024 31 harch 2023
No. of shyres Amopat Nu, of sharey Amaoynt

0.01% Cptionaly Convertible Non-Cinmilathve Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs, 385 éach, ’
fully paid-up
Opening 86,000,060 200,00 36,000,060 TR H]
Rederuptitn doring lhe year - - . -
Outstanding o the end of the vear £6,008,000 860,00 §6,000.000 $60.00

B. Rights , preferences and restrictions atiached lo eguity and preforence shares

w01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumiiafive Redecnable Prefrrence Shavis of R, 10 ench, fuHy paid-np (Preferknce Shares)

The Company has 4 single gloss of prefaence shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. These preference shares are jssued in considertion of e slump exchahge of Oulbound Business
Erivision of SCTC Travel Servicss Privale Limited to the Company as conlemplated in the Composite Scheme of arrangy { and |zamiian, The Company has fssued 100000000
8.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re 104 gach to ‘fravel Cosporation (India) Limiled, as ihe vesidual of SOTC Trave! Servipes Privat
Limited Gi.r. post segregalian af Quibound Business Division} is amalgamated into Trave] Corporation {India} Limlied. Preference sharez outstanding al the end of 20 vears i.e. 31 Tuly 2037,
shall be eonverted inte equity shares as per Ihg conversion ralio of 1 meference shares of Rs. 10/ each intg one equity share of Rs. 104 each, The holders of these slares are wtitled 1o Nore
Curlative dividend of 0.01%. Prefesence shares carry a prefevential right.as to dividend over equity shareholders. where dividend is sl declarcd in respeet of a fnaucial year ju the case of
FNon-Cumulative Praference Shares. Ui enlitiement for that year lapses. hythe event of winding up, preference sharelholders have a prefesential sight aver equily shareholders 10 be iepaid to
the extent of capitat paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares. The Comparmy has an oplion I convert the preference shares or redeem Use preference shares at any time afier the ond of
1 year [ram the date of allotmenl.

In 7Y 201 8-2019, pursuant e pravisions of Section 55 and other applicable provisions of the Cnmpénfes Act. 2003 and rukes made therevnder, e Company redeemed 14,000.0000.01 %
Frefeicies Shares of Rs 104 cach of par nggregating 1o Rs 140 Mn, ow of the jrofits of the Compaiy and sum equi] to the nominal t of the Pref Shares s redeemed wis
iraneferred (o the Capital Redemjption Reserve,

€, Shares held by Halding Company { Utimale Rolding Company f Subsidiaries vf Holding Company

31 Murch 2024 31 March M121
M. of shares Aol No. of shares Ao
£.01% Optisnally Convertibte Non-Cumulmive Redeemable Preference Shayes of Rs. 10/ each,
fully pavid-up by
=T yamras Cook (India) Limited (w.e 1. 25 November 20193 6,000,000 861H00 86,600,000 SH(L00
K6, 000,000 R60.60 S6.000.000 £60.00

*pmnant to te National Company b Tribunal (NG Order dated 1010 Qetolier 2059, the Compasine Scheme of Arrangement & Apateamation pnongsl TC Fores Soryvices Linnied
{TCT] and Traved Coporation {lndia) Limited [T aned TE Travel Services Limited {TCTSL] and SOTC Travel Mamagement Private Linited {SOTC TRAVEL] and Thomas Cook Hidi)
Limited {TCH.] and Quess Corp Limited and iheir respective shareholders {the Seheme) bas become effective framn 23t Novembgy Dpit3 part of the Schemwarmngement. e Inbound
Business of TC} has demerged lo SOTC TRAVEL sud the residual business of 1C] hos heen merged. aling with the other wig
censed 10 exist wee £ 2510 November, 2019 and rsidual business of 71 s been merged with TCIL,
} Pursuant o above, %, Hon-Cunlative Opfionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (GURPEY hekd by 1014

019,

3 N

Nasca HT Parud,
Hesea Cenler,
Waslem Express Highedy
Gosepann i ast.
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SOTC Travel Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued}
as ai 3 March 2024

(AT anent in Ry ddiflions, unless otherwise stated)

I, Particulars af shavcholders holding more {lian 8% shaves of 4 ¢lass of shares:

0.03% Opitonally Convertible Non-Cumniative Redeemahic Preferencs Shares of Re 1084 cach,

Tally padcl-up By:

Thomas Cook fIndia} Limited

81 March 2024
%% of tulal shares

31 Manel 2023

No. of shures

¥ of tolal shares

100,00

26,110,000

E. Aggregule pumber of shares fssuec for covsideration other fan cash during the period of fve years imnediately preceding the reportiog dnle:

160,000,000 0.01% Hon-Cumulative Optionally Convenible Redeeninble Preference Shaves of Rs. 104- cach, were issued by e Company |

atrangement sl tion i the Fi jnl year ended 2017-2015

I e Mg comy

it

10080

e of

Tn FY.201 8-2319, parsuant to provisions of Seclion 35 mxl othet app!it:snl{]e provisions ol the Companies Act, 2013 and rales tade thereunder. the Company redecmed 14,000,000 001 %
Ference Sharés so redeemed wag

Preferenie Shares of Bs 104 each a1 paraggrepating 10 K 140 Min, out of the profits of the Company #nd sam equal (o the fotaing) smount.of e Pre

tramsFeired 1o tho Capital Redemption Reserve.

it Capital Reserve
Opening Balance
Cloing Batancs

Natupe and Purpose of Reseryes:-
The reserve created prrsuant 1 Eomposite Seheme of Arrang i and A

lion

§it. Capital Redemption Reseryve
Opening Balapec
Clozing Palance

Natere and Purpose of Reserves:-

31 Mareh 2024

31 March 2023

e reserve created ol of profits in event of redemption of Optionally Convertilie HonCummnitative Redeamabke Preference Bhares.

v, Retained Earnings
Opeming Bulance

Add : Nel Loss For the yesr
Closing Balance

v. Qilier comprehensive ineeme

Dpening Balanee

Add : Other Comprehensive IncoineXloss) for the year, net of iax
Closing Balance

i, Eiaptoyee Share Option Qumistanding Aceount Jrefer Note 37|
Dpening Balnce

Add s Chaige Tor the year [refer Nale 37)

Closing Fulange

Native and Porpose of Resérves:-

Amount Amgunt
4380 13,50
64,50 3.8

14000 140,00
14000 1400
{RR2.58) (9465.51)
55.80 102,93
(806.79) (5562.58)
.84 9.6%
{0.36) (2.84)
§.4% .84
96,68 43,02
{2.04) 3.66
U4 6+ 96.68

The Company s established & cquity-setiled share-based payment plans lor certaln categories of employees of the Company. The shares ol the holding Conypany are issued under the

ESOP Scheme 1o lle employees of the Compsany.

Note 15

Lz e borrowings
{Secnred }

Term Loan lron1 bank

Assels pledged s 8 seeurity

Thie carrying anounts of assets pledped as seeurily for gurrent and non-crren borrowings are:

Currenl assets
{a} Financial pssels
{13 Trade receivaliles
Liiy Cosh and cash cquivalents
{iiy] Rank bakanees odhier than casb and cash equivalents
Iv) Ouher financial asseis
(b3 Olher cwsrerd prsets

Duing the vear thi: Company has received Joan wmouming to Rs. Nil {27 idareh 2023 Re 36,70 ) {net of processing fess sk
second ranking chirpe over existing primary and collineral secunitivs inchwling merteages, 3 any, wreated i the fasor of bank
of his facHity. The applicable mate al interest as on balance sheet dae is Bep poa. (31 Mareh 2023 - 9255 pa ) Howevey,
rasol” eliange of the reference ke or change of spread by the bk, Puration of e Toan is 72 mooth and 5. repayable

%:mn:sl 10 e serviced oo 2 wontly Tasis,

»

114 126,96
101.16 126.9%
466,38 431733
300.%) 254,87

- 0,19
21109 15710
-B80.94 [T
1.860.0% 1,534.94

Horl © Wing
Heseo IT Parkd,
Reio Center,
Weslorn Express Highway,
Goregton fashy,
Wumba - 460 063

shall ehange ill,ac(‘{.ii\lﬂlli)i::"
L e b
) 1I]UI'RIDI1{]1_“_ ])C oact=ry!
PR

WFC Bank Liiied which is seeured by way of
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes te the financial statements (Confinned)
a5 of 31 Marelt 20024
(AW amount in Rs Millions, unless etherwise stated)

Mate 16 31 Mereh 2024 31 March 2023
Other finazncinl Fabilities Amowir Amount
Lease ligbilities [refer Note 2.2) 8446 123.66
84.66 123,60
Mole 100
Ciber financin) liabilities - Currend
l.ease Hobjlities - Cureent [refor Note 2.2) 4188 4281
42.88 4231
Note'1? -
PMrovisions
Provision for emploves benefles - (non cnrrent)
Trovision lor Gratuity [refer Note 36] 5325 44,16
5125 44,16
Note 13
Borrawingy
Bank Overdrall use for Cash K | pNIa0se- | it vepayable ot demand - 47,455
Cumwni portion of long fevn borrowing 77157 11,92
27.57 5047
Note 19
‘Frade payables
“Todal oulstanding dues of Miew and Sniafl enterprises [rofer Nole 333 .62 0.6
Total cristanding dues of creditors oller than Micro and Small enterprises C1,019.83 1.320.1%
1,227.45 1.370.34
As at 31si Mareh 2024 Outstunding ler Tolivwing perlods from due dade of payment
Unbiiled Less than 1 year 1-3 vears 2.3 yesnirg More tian 3 venrs Tutal
Talal outsianding ducs of MSNE 1.62 - - - - .62
Toial onistanding ducs of creditors oiler than MSME - 15056 84.42 24,88 29.67 1,219.83
As it 3151 March 2023 Custstanding for following perivds 'ﬁ‘om due date of pryment
Unbilled Lass than 1 year -7 years 23 years dore (i 3 years Tota)
Jratal outstanding dues of MSML - 016 - - - 0.te
Toia! sutslanding dues of ¢reditors other than MIME - 1.176.80 RIR7 3.0 2350 1220008

Noic 24

Oher financial liabiifies {xnreeni)
Sevurity deposils

Oilers

Nofe 21

Provisians

Provisign for emplayes benefTes - cieergnt
Oratuity frefer noke 36]

Accruedd sadary and benefils

Compensaed absences [refer Nots 36)

Nute 22

Criher cyrrent linbilities
Revenne received in athvance
Adhvaney callected from costomers
Cuontraceun] Liabilines

wmm‘ts due 1o povemmnent awboritics

31 Mavch 2024

31 Wareh 2023

Amount Mg

fds 7.8
856 6,75
1244 1453
10,13 9.28
53,33 YL
1.68 7.26
.03 542
530 289
1.432.04 1150040

207 -
iRa2 . TR
1,521.93 SOt ELNT

-~ £
1438 Flog, (,0 ,
Central B Woy and
Harth € Wing,
Heso 1T Parkd,
tescn Genter,
Weslern Duness Highway,
Geegaun [East).
Mty - 400 DB
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SOTC TFravel Limited

Notes fo the finaneial statements (Continued)
o the venr ended 31 Mareh 2024

(Al amauil in Bs Millions, unless-otherwise stated)

31 March 2024

31 March 2013

Note 23 Amount Amomi
Reverne from operations
Travel md relafed Services 5,491.40 545730
TFotal Revenue from operalons 9,491,490 545730
Other operating vevenue
Marketing feex and ather incentive incorme 220,31 150,55
Unclaimed eredit balances oo Ionger vequired, written back 83,04 12398
Other miscellaneons eperaling incoime 86,09 9,74
394,44 366,32
9,800.84 5,823.62
IND AS 115 "Revenue frem Contracts with Custoners'
) Details of revenue From gontracis willy customers recognised by the Company; net of indireed. faxes in its Statemeni of Prolit and Losy
[Revenne from eonbract with costomers
Travel mid relaied Services 9,491,410 . 5,457.30
Total Revenue from coniract with custoners 9,491.40 5457.30
i) Disapgrogate Revenue
The folowing table presents Company revenue disaggregated by type of revenue stiea and by reportable seguent:
Revenue based on geography
Revenue fom contract with customers
Tiwclia 9,101.53 5,209.02
Overseas 18987 24%.28
0,491.40 ) 5457.30
RE\’enuc based on producl and serviees
fevenue from contract with customers
“Fravel and related Services 9,491,8{) 545730
Total Revenue from operations X I 5457.30

iii} Confract Balaneey

The contract ligbilities primarily relale to (he advance consideration 1eceived Hor customers for which revenue is recognized when he perfomance obligation s over/
services delivered.

Advance Collections is recognised when payment is received before the velaed perfornyance obligation is salisfied. This includes advances received from the eoslombr
lowmds Jeisure tour / holiday's packages. Revenuc o deisre tours / bolidey's packazes are recognized on the completion of {he perlbnomce obligation which is on the
date of departure of the tour.

Advances collected from customeis §,432.04 1,150.40
Total 1,432.04 1, 15040
Note 24
Other income
Enterest lacome under the effeciive interest method on-
Bank deposits 1.91
Loans w reiated parties ’ -
Others 2.5
Nel foreign Exchange diffrence ‘ N
listerest on 1ok relinds 0.5%
Profit on Sale of PPE [iX)x)
Profit on closure of Teise {.03
\‘Miscellancnus income 030
Ny »; .40
44N Floor, <,<5
Centeal & Wiy and

Morth G Wag,
st I Paed,
Mesen Coodey,
Wastors Expenss Hiphway:
Giwegann (Fasl).
hymiba - 100 {53




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the finaneial statements (Continued)
for the year enided 31 Mareh 2024

{AH anwwid in Rs Millions, unless othenwise stated)

Note 25

Employee berefils ¢xpensc

Salaries and other allowances

Contribution to provident und and other funds
Campensaled absepces

Fnpolyee share hased paymenl expenses {refer Hote 37)
Stock options expenues {refer Note 37)

Staff wellhre expense

Npie 26
Finance costy
Inerest nid finarice, charges on Finaveial | iabilities
- Interest on T Toon
- Tnierest on Lease Habililies
- lnterest on bauk over deall
— Others Finaneials liabitities
-- Bank charges

Nate 27

Giher expenses

L.egal and professional chisrges
Adverliseruent and publicity

Operational lease renlals

Repairs and mainienance -- others

C ompnication Expenses

Travelling expenses

Flectricify charges

Rates and taxes

Printing and stationery expenses
Directars conunission and sitling fees
Insurance EApENses

Subscriplion fees

Provision for doubtiu] debts and deposits
Bad debts and advance wiitten off
Payment 1o auditors (refer Nole below 27 (a))
Miscellancous expenses

Mole 27 {n)

Payment to Audilors
Statilory Audit fee
Tox Audit fee
Lertification Tee

Nofe 28

Exceptional ilem

Note 29

Earnings per share (ETS)

A. Nel profit for the year atiribulable 1o Geauity Sharebolters

B. Weighted average number of Equity Shares oulstancing doving the year
(", Basic camings per share (A/B) (Rs)

L. Preference shares { numbers)

\/y 3iluted wamings per share {AB+HC)]

31 March 2024

31 Manch 2023

Amount At
HGH.51 4771.83
35.87 29.07
.42 1.41
{i.26} 227
{0.79) 1.39
46,80 34.32
749,58 546.29
12,68 .55
12310 1518
242 16.94
8.44 1135
587 6.08
41.32 39,10
187,87 124,480
15972 56.79
A5.54 2508
61.97 32.72
23.79 &4
146 7.31
11.68 576
281 2.1
357 1.51
4,58 280
2,94 2.05
241 1.73
d.2m 10,43
14,12 10.56
6.34 5.4
.44 .77
565.32 209,50
594 5.04
0.33 .34
0.07 016
6,34 5.64
85.80 102,23
10,000 10,000
5580008 10,293.05
H6,0¢H0.000
068
143k Flpoi, ‘{(,Q
Contrat B g andt

North G Wisg.
Mesto 7 Pared,
Resto Centey.
Western Express Highway
Goregasi i asi)
Rumtia - 405 051




8OTC Travel Limited

MNotes to fhe finaneiad slatements (Centintied)
Jor fip pear encleaf 31 Maveh 2004

(AL amount in £z Mibliops, wnkss otherwize seled}

Nuie 30
Financkal inslmments - Fadir values anl risk snapaeemeon

Ao Areonmiing classifleatian and falr values
Camying amaunis and fir voiwes of financiyl asaeis And financind Niabitities, iluding thel levels in the Pair value Fersiely, ase presanted hefows

uy af 33 March 2004

Carrying o Falr value
" Tumeiad Flpaneial kil Totad Level 1 - Lavel 2 - Level 3- “Tolal

matrymenls  Imsirmmends  insienmgis LInaiee price Sipnlficand Significant
measuied a1 measneed @l messpred 2f aetive  observable injrls  wnobservable
YTOC)  amartzed cost mthats Inpets
Financial assels not meosirad a¢ falr valne
Trade receirablcs - - 466,28 H62E - - T -
Cash.and cash cquivaleny - - at.81 A0.51 - - - -
Odhies bank bataoces - - - - - - - -
Joons
- Currem - - - - - - -
Chier pmneaal assls
+ Nen-rurrent {Secunty daposlis) - - 1813 A - 873 - 13
= Mem-eaerent {{theve) - - . - - - - -
- Crarent - - 211,00 21100 - ) - - -
- B (R 1,007.91 - 173 - W
Finsareial linbilides #et measured a1 Mle value
Mo current [omeaings - - 10116 w16 - Jalia - 10l.)6
Currer Barowings { Including Bk Geordraft) - - 2157 2757 - 187 - A
Trade paynbles - - T.2¥n44 1,22745 - - - -
Leise linlwiitics
~ Mo suirent - - #4566 #d.66 - - - -
« Lo - - 4248 4183 - - - -
et Fmaneia? fiabilines
- Chanenl = - 10l 1201 . - - -
Total fTuanekd Haldtithes - - 149573 1AgaT - LEE N5 - 135,73
asat AT Afarch 2043 Lnerylag amowmi Fair value
Vluancial Flazaeind Fimaneial “Total Lovet] - Bowid 2 - Level 3 Toadid
instramesis  inslraments  sivnments nnted priee  Slanlflcanl Sxgmifiean
menseved ar smeaswret al  mwasared o inaelive  olservable impsts  unebiorvable
FVIPL FYIOCh amarikzed eost mirkets ngatiis
Financial assets wol megsured 31 Rl valoe
Trade receiabies - - 43133 437,33 - - . -
Cust and cash splivalents - B 25447 35457 . - . -
Onhver Tk bolances . - 2019 M09 B . . .
Loung
- Curvend - - - . - . - -
Onler Firemeis] st ls
- Han-sanreid (Secoriy deposits) - . 30.41 A4 . WAL - A
- Nun-current (ihees) - - a0 140 - - - -
- Currem - - LETIG 18718 - - - -
- - 43198 K] . At - 3041
Finaneial lakiitics not measnred 3 My valae
N cittrenl Bomowangs - - 12656 12696 - 12696 - 134606
Curriend Beerowines (Bl Overdeafty . - A0 dq7 1247 - 1.0 - 1.5
Trade payalies - - FRCLL R 1,220.34 - - - .
Lease isbilitles
- Kot cunti - - 123,60 123460 - . - B
- Gl - - 418 2% . - . -
(it Frugbietat liabilities
- (g - - 14,55 1452 - - - -
- - 1557 168271 . 135 88 - 13588

Tot! Nnantial fabilltes

wote; The above exclades invesnrcnls in Subuidiny aiouniing to Rs 85592 {previuus sear Re, B54.08)

The cempaiy o pee crselosed ke fair vales of financials inssanen suel a2 wade reeeivabies | wade pmyabies, ele, bevanre diell camying! waoint 47 0 unsomihic approsiination of i value

Level 1; Level | hizmrchy mehodes naneiz] Bstnaments measirdd nsing quiied prges,
Level 2 The i vaboe of Bnancial insiwtents 1hat see wed Ieaded in an activg marke s detenmingd wing viheticn fethnigues which mmtrmzt I e ool sheeable parkel dus and roby a5
Tibhe 5 pogsibbe of enrity-specific oo sl siger Tapuets e ed Lo Faic vakae 4 intinment are pbservable, the instrameny
Lewved X IT oo o more ui [he significant inpaes 35 e based on observable minked daia. the fasirumen i wciuded in oy

ponsiterztios end indosymieatian asset inchedsd i level 3 {<, h
\ _ Py
v, Ceriral 6 Yang sn
Horth € Wi,
Hesop T Parkd,
Hesco Lenten,

Wastern Eupiess Highway,
Goregat {Eas't,



SOTC Travel Limited

Notes te the financial statements (Conlinued)
Jfor the vear endert §7 darch 202

FAN antewand i Re dillions, unhrss pllerv ise stared}

Mate 30 {Crminnedy

Finnnetol instrumen(s — Fab vahoce pndd visle manageient (i)
T, Mensncrnienl of Badr valwes

Valvablon fechiigues and slnificant anobservalie inputs

The falbwwing 1ables shew: the vithiavion fechninees wsed i measaring Levet 2.00d Levet 3 fir vabngs, 35 seelk e 1he shamifican iiehservable infes used

JFimwmekal instenisienis measurad 9 fair walne

Tnier-relniionsiip between
sheniteeani nnoisservabile npois
Al fair valit measnrement

Tomewings Diseonnil ¥ate 10 fair value of Wik appicable Mot appHeable

| Biraneials assers and liabitiies a1
amintiged  douy s Dased  oa
yenerad bending vae,

Sipnifieant

o Waloalion technigue:
Type palinn techniges wnphserya bkt inputs

TrinsTess belwoen Levely _
Thte were wr Iruns Fers in sither divsction-inany of the wepaithig perivd:

C. Finnmcial visk mavaceren

The Company lias €xposire [n the follow g rivks srsing from fingnedal inglewtents:
» Crachit rigk

-+ Linuidlity sk ; and

-+ Market nsh

i, Rish mapagenent framesork:

I'hc Company's Beand of discetore has oveval respansibitity Far LIS el oversight of the Coanpany®s rigk I k. The Brard ol directors [ blished e Rigk
5 O i whkdy is responeible (o d g and menhioning e Compdey's 655 nanagemonl policics. The Cranmiltee Tepons regularly 1o te Board of direclors bn is

setivities.

The Conyram’s 1ish Joilicies ave esalliehied o identity and analyse {lic risks faced by the Conapany, [o-sed apyjaepriaic risd: ianils and confrats and to momiter deke whel adhorence i

Ttz Risk inaagenen policies amd systems are reviewod regulndy 1o velee ehames in mitkot contlitior: and she Company’s aetivilies.

Thi Buard oversens how v s counghi Wwith dhe camprany's risk onl, policies and 1 Jurgs, md sevicws e adeg o e vish fr in
velatica o Qe risks foced ke the (oempaky, The Boacd is assisted in il5 ovorsiphl roke by Infemal audil. haerna] audit sindiriakes both regeder and-od low rmviees of sisk aaragengal codnds

aitl procedures, 1 remnbts of witich ave repored 10 the Hoard,

L Credit »ish

Credil visk i he rek of fingncial s (o the Comprny il 2 L ey 1 A Anancial i il (0 mieet f1s enrrachial thligations, i anses punpcipally Fow e Compan s
reevivabbes from and in deln fihcs. (redil Tisk primalfly arbes for Tinuschnl assets swch ag frade receivables, Inveamc I mvkoal Ginds. derbetive francink
instruments | balanee with banke and oiber receivitiles.

Creqdiv ajgh Srising Thom invesiwien I muloed fands devivativg fnsneisls ismments o bolance wit baks s lieited bregmse the comntorpantics are bank s sevenised ik instinitian
with Tniggh eredit ralines.

The Crenpary's expisie |6 etedih visk is influcneed mamby by he ndividual dnractedstes of each . Howesar, 3 Hsw e e Raetors that may influence the cradin
sk of fis custonaer Base, inclnding Me defailt vk of the dustne and counlry i whieh cusiemers opecat.

“Ihe Cenppany: esiablishes o allowanes fat Impaitnenl thal reprosents #s estimate af expecied losses in récpect of trade and pier receivalbes.

Tiee avorage crodn perdod o sales of services ks boss than 30 dass, Credle S5k arking foen trade receivabl ! in Jmce-wrlih the Cotipany's sstablished policy, procedures and
comircd relating to credi risk 2 The ik of crodil risk in fimited due 10 e facl lhal ihe cnsigmer hase & Jage.
“The Company estoblishes an all ¢ For inpoiment i vy its estimate of expocted Josgrs in pegpeel olieads: mid nlhee recetvables.

I Mapch 2084 3 Adarch 2033
Aoveriend jn expecied creldil 1oss allowaney on brade reecdvahies

Palaace 2t the beginning of the yeur s a5
Acbditlon deing the period .
Clumpes inhoss pllewipce dinime e voor {550
‘tblancc ot the end of e yem . 495
118 Fipgs, <(,0
Contral B Vang and
Notih C Wy,
Neseo 17 Pamd,
Nesco Center,
Vasiern Eepress Highway
Gotegaon {E 1),

Reurmban - 460 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Nates to the Fnancial statements {Contisued)
furr the ponr enelitd 30 Miarch 2024

{AT amonnt in Rs Millions, tmiess ofhenvise mated)

Fote 30 (Conthaued)
Finnaci! instruments — Fabr vnhees and rish maaagesient {eonlinaet)

ill. Liguialty risk

Liguidity risk: f5 the risk dhat the Company wilk encounter diffienlty in meeting 1he obligations ossocinted with its fiaweiad lisbililics Uit ore setiled by defivering cosh oy nooiher
firpnicinl assel. The Company™s approach to mansg by lquidily is 10 cnswe, as B as possible, ar it will bive sellicient Gguiciy io meet 3y labilives wdey dey are due, under
“poth sormad and swessed condilions, whbom incacting onecreptable losses of visking daroage vo-He Comgrany’s repuiamn.

Tl Coimpriiny's principal sowree of Souidity ave cash and cash cquivalents amd the cash Boiw 1hat is generatedl fioen opections, The comprmy belisves thar the working coplil is
sufihchenl e inger B corrend requivements, aecordingly oo liguidity visk s peroived.

‘Flmeing Arrangeieys 3t March Hi2d 3 Mareh 1023

Parienlars

Fined Long Tora logn - Emeageney Credin Ling Goaraates Sclisine 12873 138,58

Bank iverdrali - 4755
13473 15643

‘Txpnsnre 1o liguidity risk
The fellowing are (he remaining contraciunl mattribies of Auancinl Habitivies at the reporting <nie, The anaewms ane pris aud undiscounted, and jeclide estinaled uerdst
paymments ard exelude i impact of nelling agreemonls,

Ay w3 M 2024 Contruetunl cash Aowi
; T Toun Logs 3mn Tyrio 2 yrs. e Lhan 2wy,
- YERE
Mon-fertvative Anancial NinbHiries
Borowings 12873 12810 TR 34,65 B6.52
Trache pasartibes §ar145 1,227,485 122945 - -
Laase lahilities. 127.64 4R3E £1.67 Jd 12 4%.54
Onher fingncial Jigbifilies . F2.m EFRY] 1241 - -
145593 1,513.4% . 131885 AT ﬂm‘!
25 at 31 March 2623 . . Conpraciual sash Hows
Carrydigg amaui Foaul Lz thi 1 13718 2 y7s, mre thas ¥ ya.
v
Han-derivative Tnancinl nldlities
Bormwings 135.84 135,54 1.8t AR 9327
Bunk Oveidraf 47,55 47,58 47.55
Tradde payables 132034 1,320.34 13203 . -
Lease labifies 166,40 193587 5188 50.2% 90.36
{her finnncial Habililios 1453 14,51 . 453 . - -
L&%T M 1.7V - 1449.21 7E.93 iR

v, Blarked visk
Marker rizk is the sk thol changes In marke) prices — such a8 forcien exchange rates. fnlereat tates and eqnlly prives -~ will afeel e Cosbpany’s income o e valne of it

hoidings of financial i darkes risk is aveributable 10 all markel risk sensithve fingngiak instrasears inclading forsipn corrency receivables und pavalbiles. We are exposed
1o ket -sish prinaly relted Lo forcken exchange rate gisk, bwerest xate tisk and e warket valne aof a3 Thus, tar exy o ke visk s o funclio of
Ervesting and benrowang perivities and eevembe sonerring andl apewting activities in freign ennemy, The objsetive of market risk A is 10 avpid cxerssive expeznre in

our fareign currenty rveises aod eosis.

Currency sk

The Compiny is exssed 0 eirreney ik on accrum al'its payables (0 forzign vendors i) varews foreign cmrency. The Bmetiosal covreney of the Campany is Indian Rupee.
lowever ific Company hes natwral Irelze. the collection from fis cuslomier s in cquivalent TR which comvents in varous required cirrency and park it in SMC (Speciel
fuipese Foreipn Corrency ¥ ncctunl and release i paymend 16 i5 vender es and when payable,

T Compeny enfers o foreign corvency trmrsactions in ihe Leisdre Teovel Calhound bisinzsses. by the Lol Tewvel Chatbxounsg Enisi pitknye prices ore dénoas
partiy in the finetipnal eurrency ol he Company, Tndian Ruprees {IKR), and manky in foreign cirvencies, The portion of cugtoaner eoliection in fereign cusroncies. which is parked
iz SPFC {Spetial Parpose Forelym Curmmency Yaccounls, is tsed 10 pay off vender Rabilities, denominated fi foreign suarencivs, thereby ercaling B naured hedge. As g vesull, the
tisk related 10 Foreign currency evchanpe rale Buctvation is nsigaifical.

Tisk sterts on the day of towr lwneh, when price is fived in foreign cunency. Tour prive is collened aronnd 13 days’ § inoath s advance and ke in SPFC acooums 16 el

p)ﬁ:ﬂ;nbliﬁalms ta Foruipn Service providers, b

N
Cenlrzl B Vg gng %
Kot C Wang,
Nesen 1T Paikd,
Hese Center
Weslom Frpeess Hiphway.
Goreganm ifash).
Murnba: - #0007




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for fhe year ended 31 Marel 2024

(Al amount in Rs dillions, unless otherwise stated)

Mte 30 (Continned)

Financial instrents ~ Falr valves and sk mgpsgemend (conlinued)

Esposure to currency risk (Exposure in different cwrvencles eonveried o Tunetiongd correney )

Thie curvency prolite. of financial assets and di

a5 al 31 March 2024

inl tabilities as al 3+ Barch 2024 15 a5 bebow:

Amoit in Ry,

UsD EUR GBIP {Hers
Financial Avsets . .
LCash.and cash equivalenls .04 0195 12.85 54,16
Other receivables including advances 471,50 32895 51.84 2171
49054 420,91 £4.73 420.87
Hinancial Liabitities
lrade and oflier payables 83289 375,04 49,92 T80
53289 31503 4592 M47.69
Fachange Rates 2341 49,58 10503
et Exposure in Respeetive currencles {d2,35) d3.88 1481 7318
agal 31 March 2023 Aol in R,
Usn EUR GRP Others
Finaneial assets
Cash and cush equivalehis 114,16 LLEN 0.98 4357
Trade and oiher receivables incheling advances 180.82 64,83 17.63 AT
49498 411,30 8.4l 416,62
Financinl liabilHies
Trade and other payabies 54561 39242 20.47 347
545,61 30242 W47 343.47
Exchange mie 827 8944 101.65
Mel Exposure in Respeclive camenties {5L63) 18,58 [1.86} FERE

Tiee Tollowing sighificant exchange raies have been applied during the year,

Usb
BUR
agr

Averape vale

31 Mareh 2024

B9

49,61
103,45

3 March 2023
75.04
BG.A2
10946

Year-end spof rate

31 Alareh 2024
$3.41
89,84
105,03

31 March 2023
8217
89.44
10] .65

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of e Indian Rupee agninst varions chirencies a5 mentioned above al Mareh 31 2024 nd March 31 2023 wonkd Juve
afiecled the menswrement of Dancial instrnments denmuinaled in the vespeclive currencices ami affecied prodit or Joss by the omounts shown below, This anakysis
assumes that all olher variables. in nanicular interes) moles, remain constant and ignores any lmpact ef foreenst Lransactions 10 be held in the foveign cuerencics.

March 31, 2024

Amonni in Rs,

1% movemonl
UsD
LUR
one

Prefis or loss Equeity, net of tax
Strenerthening Weakening Strengthening Wenlening
@.42) 842 . -
048 (0.46) -
015 {RA5) - .

hlarth 31, 2023

Amaunt ik Ry

Profit or Loss

Eepueity: pved o dax)

Slreseihening Weakening Strenplening Weakeniy
1% movemont
UsD 2B Co, ), 4.56) 4.56 - -
1.1 ] El -
LTL 1] Q)Qp e o (fﬁ I.S_. (I,S.. ¥
GRp Genirat & Wity ang .18 0.1%
b Noulk & Wing,
}1 e TEson T Pad,
{, Hasre Center,
A Weshoint [apess Higheay

L\ Gorepson (Fasl),
., N\ Mumba - 400 063

23
2%
Srod Ace




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2034

(Al amourd In Rs Billions, wless oiherwise stated)

Nate 30 (Carltirued)

Flaaceial lastraments — Fair vahees and rigk managenient (continued)
Enlerest rate 1isk

The expozure of e company's borrowing (o inerest rate changes af the end of the reporing period are ay olkows:
il P 5 porIng ¥

31 March 2024 3 Maeh 2023

Yariable rate of hormowings 9.90% 4.25%
Bank overdrall (W eighed gverage nfcegal mig) 9.75%, 9.79%

As atihe end of the reporting periad, the comypany had the follgwing fixed and variabls rald borsowings:

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Balanie % of toiad loang Balance % of (olal loang
Variable mic of borrowings 129,10 100 139.40 75
Bank pwerdrafl, . - - 47,55 25
Net expasure 1o cash flow due lo nlcresl sate risk ] 129,10 . 1M 186.95 100

Sensitivify

Profit or Loss is sensitive 1o higherfwver inderest expense froa borrowings ag a resull of changes in inercel rales.
Clinmges in inferast rate ore based on Iiztorieat iy e
Impact on profil afier tax

31 Moreh 2024 3] Marg] 2023

Inferest mies - {nerease by 100 basis points * Q.57 (125
‘Inferest res - decrease by 100 basis pointg * 0.97 122

* Holding all other varigbles constanl

Note 31
Contingent Liabilities and Commitinenls (To fhe exient uot provided for)

3 Marech 2024 31 Mapch 2093
Contingent liahiities
Claims against the Company it acknowledged as debiz .
a Ditputed eluiins made by chens pd oiher pazties 520,52 477,54

b. Disputed Service Tax Demands 42885 41529
¢. Provident Fund Liability en account of pending Supreme cowd jicdpment. As7 157
d. Disputed incone 2 dermands 1.93 143

{4} 1t is not practicable for the company ke estinate te timing of cash Nows, i auy, in respest of Sie abbve pending résohdiva of he fspeeihve proceetlings.
b} The company does nol expect any reimbursement in respeet of' he shove coningent labilities.

{c) The Hen'ble Supreme Cour of lilia (SC™) by their order dated February 28, 2619, se1 out ihe priveiples based on which allowances paid to the ermployees should be
idenlified for intlusion in basic wages for the purptises ol computation of provident fuixl contribution. Subseguently. a veview pelifion agnins! this decision has been filed
and is pending before (he ST for disposal, Mangeemend hias aeeounted for the tability for the period from date of the SC drder 1o March 31. 2009, Finthes. pending
decision on the subject review pelition and directions from te TPFO. e fmpact for Use past pericd, iFany. is pol aseartainahbe and conseguenily no effeer Las been given
in the aveownts,

Code on sockal secuvity, 2020

The liddinn Parlianent has approved the code on social seewdty, 2000 whieh would mpact 1he eonfritaulions by the company towsrds provident fand mmd gratnty, The
elffeetive dale from whicl ihe clipnges are applicabs is yet 10 be netilied and the mules for quamilving the frapcizl impact ane et to be framed. Pl sompany is i the
process of carrying out dhe evolwrtion and wil give apprepriate impact in siandulone Tnacki statemenis i the period it which code beeomes efiective and the relsled -
rules o determing the financial impaec L are pablished.

Comamitmrents {te the extent so provided Tor)

\%a. Estineted st of canteacts remaining 1o he executed an eapital aceounland ned provide

h/

{3t Fpay,
Central & Wing g
North  Wag
Hesco 1T Parkd,
Hegeq Grater,
Western Expless Highway
Goregaon (Fast).
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financlal statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 37 Morch 224

(AN o in Bs Miions, unless olbenvize stated)

Nole 32
Relationship wilh Struck off Companies under seetion 248 ol the companies Aat, 2013

ax at 31 Mavch 2024

S Ko Name of the stroek ofl company Niture of ivansactions with Batance Relatinnship whh the stenck Gff compaiy, i apy,
. strack off company Fayable (s} to he diyelosed
i Crmeplobe Travels lodia Private Limiled Hotel Services 247 HA
ii Sipsa Molidays Private Limiied Tour Operator 2.03 NA
tii Unique Hotels India Private Linited Hotel Servivey .64 KA

as 131 March 2023

S No, Name of the sitwek off company Mature of transactions wilh struglk Batanee Rebatignship with e sirek off company, il any, 1o
- . ) oll’ company Pavable (Rs) be dizafoged
H Oneghbe Travels Indin Peivale Limited Hotel Services T4 NA
i Ned Netwaork Scrvices Lid. IT Domain Services 41 MA
Wale 33

Alero andl Small Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and bdedium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 whicl came into fovee from 2 Qeolober, 2006, vertain disclusures are required io be made
relthg (o dues 1o Micra and Small Enterprizea, On e basis of the information and records available wifly the nanagement. diere ore no pertics registercd 45 micr
and gl enterprises.

Particulars 31 Mlarch 2024 31 March 2023
The amaunts remaining anpaid o dMicra and Small Suppliers as at the end of he year.,

-- Principal T2 [
- Interest ) - jX0)]

The ameunt of inferest paid by the huyer in {ermos of Seefion 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Entéprises
Development Aut, 2006 (MSMED Awl, 2008 along with the amemt of the payment made 1o the supplier - B
beyond he sppoitted dey during each aceeunling year.

e amounts of the payments made 1o micro and small supplers beyond The appoinled day during each
aceonnling year,

‘The ameunt of interesi due and payable For the perod of delay in making paymenl {which have been paid b
beyond the appointed day during the yvear) bul withoul adding the interest spetified ynder MSMED Asl, 2006,

The amount of inierest agerued and remaining wpaid af ihe end of each acecnnling year - N

The amaunt of further inlerest remaining due and payable even in the suceeeding vears, until such date when e
inievest does a8 above are actually patd 1© e small enterprise for Ui purpose of disallowanee as 4 déduciihle . T
exprenditore vnder the MEWMEL Ac, 20046,

Nale 34
Segnient reporting

The Compazy is in the business of providig ravel and refaled services to its rotall and corporale customers which is considered by 4he ehiaf eperating decision maker
(CODMY gz Whe anly repartable business segment taking e sccount ihe tature of the husiness, the risk and relums. the organisation structure and inlsomal repoiing

system. the Company also provides Bnancial services which is not 2 material reporlable semnent ane i largely considered io be an teygrad pant of travel and relaied.

services. The wavel and rebated services includes tour operations and Iravel matagement services, avran
serviees,

Forther., the Compary provides services within similar cconmnic environmenss considering the origin of services and risks and rewands being similr avrogs |
markets *environmient. there are no separiie repestable geographical sepments. Accordingly, these fasnciat stalemenis agg refleetive af the information reg

i%m&

Fth Fiooy,
Loetaal & Yhag ang
Hosth & Wing,
Haacn IT Fakd,
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Soreguan if asij,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial steiements (Continued)
Jor the yeor ended 31 Maveh 2024

(AW anvount in s Millics, wiless ofenvise slated)
Note 35

Capital danngement

The Company considers ix Tollowing components of its Balance Sheel to be mannged capital;
Todal equity - rewined earnings, caplal resenves, st capital,

‘The Comprany manages (s capiinl so as io safepuard its pbility 10 continee a3 n going concem and to optinise retums 16 ourshaneholders. The cpitnd simctuie of the Company is based
o maiiagement’s Juduinent of ihe appropriate balahce of key clenenls in order 1o meet fts strategic ud digy-do-tlay needs. We consider (he amaunt of capital in propurtion 1o risk and
fisatiags the capital shractiize in light of changes in econnmnic conditieus and Hie risk chasacteristics o the underlying assels,

Fhe Company s 10 nanstite profitable grawth to sopedior cash peneraion through efficient capifal snanagement, The Company's policy is o mantain o Salbie and Srng copital
structurg with a focus o tolal equily 56 4% 10 mainlain fwvestat, creditors and matkel confidente and to sustain e devclopmien and growth of ik lusiness, The Company's focos s on
keeping sirong lotal equity base 10 eusuee independence, secodty, a5 well as 4 high Toneia e ity for peiential fitme borrowings, il required, withow pracling te visk profil of tle
Conjany. The Compeiy will tike apprapriale steps in eeder 10 malntain, or i necessary adjusl, its capital stwctore, The Cowpany i3 nod gubjeet 1o franets? covenanlie o sy of ils
gignifican financing agreements.

The managenien( 1sonitors e returm on capital bs well as the Tevel of dividends to shareholdaers, The Compauy®s goal is o contimie {o be alse to relun excess liguidity to sharcheiders by
continming 1o distritute dividends in futwne periods,

Male M
Exployer benefits
The Compiny comribuies 10 the following post-employment defingd benefit plians n lodin,

) Defined contriblion pians:

The Cotnpany makes cotributions, deteymined as a specified pereentage B emplayer salarics, in respert of quakifying employess dnvards Provident Fund, Basployee State lsuance
Corporation, Labour Welfare Fuml and Nallonal Pension Seheme whith are-defived conttibation plan. The Campany has na ohligations atbies than to take the epecified epntributions.
The confributions are charged 1o the Statement of proflt amd Toss s they acere, )

Aumount contribaed (o defined contriluion plan and ecognised as an expense m the Si { of rrofit and Loss aic as unter:

Parliculars It March 2424 A0 bdarel: 2023
Ermpleayer™s eomeilration lo provident find . 518 .20
Cupleyes's Stade Inswmnce Comoralion [[AB] 0.20

National pensitn scheme 104 D91

Labour welae fund 1.04 a3

tit} Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity plin

Thie Company provites For Gratuity using the projected wil eredit meiliog, with actwarial valwations being corried oul at each balace sheet dute, based it lemwislations a5 vnicked p 10 1he
batanee sheet dale. Actwarial galns and Josses are jooymised in fufl in Oiber € ammpreliensiv Jnsems ithe period b which they poeer. Pas) seovict cost is recopniset Tmmicdiately (o/1he
extent that e benellis e aleady visted.

Grafuity is payable i all eligible einplevees of e Company o superinpuation, death and pemsgent disablement, in lerms of Ui provisions of the Payment of Gratity A0, 1972 &ras
e e Company ‘s scheme, whichever is mone beneficinl,

Cumpensnled absences and fenve encashment
As per (he leave poliey, every employee will be allated 38 days of Jesve in the Tist week of January, No livves can be carricit forvayl o the next year whereby, the Jeave halance defl
unilized on 31 December shalf lapse, Touring Mhe year, a sum aggregating ko Rs. 0.43 {prevjous year s, 1417 Bas been debiied 1o the Sutement of Profit and Loss.

Based on e actuesial veluation oblained 1 s respect, the follpwing lahle sels oul (he salus of the gratudy plan and the anounts recoguised inthe Company's lNnaneial slaemens as at
Batance Sheel dale:

31 March 2024 A wareh 2023

Gratutty

Defined benefil assel-Gratuiny plan 149 4.13
Delined benehir lability 65.87 57.57
Met defined heaedn liability 63,38 3344
- Man-curent 8123 4416
- Canent 18,13 9.28

Cimpensated nbsences

Liabifity for compensated absences 168 126

G010

Vitn ficar ((,0 306
Gential 8 Wang and
Hnih [ Wiy,
sy T Parkd,
Hesto Conter
Wasltin £ xpress Highway,
Goregaon {Fasit.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the {financial statements (Continned)
Jor ihe year ended 30 March 2024

Al amount 15 Ry Milliows, undoss olherwise siated)

Nate 36 {Cuntianed)
Tmployee henefits (Gootined}

Movement in nel deftoed benefil {nssel) finbiliiy

The lollowing table shows 3 reconciliation from (he epening belaness o the closing halnnces Tar nel defined benefit {assel) liability B ils componcius

Defined benefit obligation Fairvalue of plan assels Nel deflued benefit

(mascf} inbiiy
31 Maech 2024 30 Mach 2023 31 March 2034 31 dawch 2073 3 March 3034 3] Margh 2023

Openisig balaee a8 on 1 Aprik 2023 8157 40,45 413 %.21 5344 40.64
Current sirvice cost 595 332 . - 575 532
Adiustment b opening Fair valne of plan assews - - - - - -
Expected relwm on plan assels B - - - - .
Pasiservice cosl - - - - - -
Inlerest oust Gincone] kA 262 0.12) 630 ER:£] 232
Setlerenis £ benefits pail - 0.32 - - - 3k

S.46 §.26 [0.12) __han &51 798
neluded in OC1
Reneasureinen Toss (gaink: - . - - - -
Actvnrind loss (gain) 248 4.00 - - .08 440
Returm on plan mgsels sxcluding infermst income . ) 0.22 05 .22) 095

21.008 410 ] .23 {1.75) 1.86 4.84
Ofher ’
Lannibulions paid by e enplover - - 15D - {1.50) -
Beneliis paid (.34} {4.63) {3:24) 4.63) - -
Closing badance as on 31 hancly 2024 6587 $7.57 24% 4.1 63.38 33.44
Represented by
Deffned bewelil asset 2.4y 4.13
Drefined bencliy lability G587 s
Fet defined heneli lishiliny 5338 5344
The major chiegories of plans assels for grareity ave as follows
Pariicutan 31 Awrch 2024 31 Tarch 20323

Qutoted Laqueded Taotal Choed Lim;uolcd Tulok
Iester Alanaged Fundy .26 0.23 249 4.12 - 4,32
Defired benelit obligations
£ Achuarinl asumptions
Tt lollywing were the principal aciarial asswmptions & the wportline dote (expressed e weiphied averages).
A1 _Mavel 2024 A1 Warch 3023
Discoun sate 720% 731
Salary excrlation mbs &% %
dloriality rale TALM (2032245 1ALM [2012-14)} Ul
Ukt

Emiployee Atrition Rale
Upfo Ape 30 I29%% 8.70%
e 340 HIRES 24.67%
Ape 41-50 TT.01% 12.97%
Ape 5159 6,76%, .30

Agsumpiions reparding il monabity have been baged on published statisties and monality lables. T curreal longevitics vinderlying the values ol the defined benefit obligation At e
regoning date wele ds fobows

g:j\n:ﬂ Flureh 2024, ihe weighled averape duiation of the defined binefil obligafion wits 4,86 yenrs (3) March 2023 : 4.06 years)

11h Floor, <<:<)
sl § Wing qd
Novih C Wing,
Hasen T Parkd,
Hesta Ceatar,
Wasliin £apress Higlway.
Govegath (Eash.
Wurnba - A0 153
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continoed)

for the yewe ended 38 Marel 074

LAN et ity s M llicns, widess etherwize stated)

‘Node 36 {Continued)

Emplayee benefits (Coatinued)

il, Sewsiilvity snalyzis

Reasonably possible changes al fe reporfing date 10 one of the relevant actariil asswnptions, Tlding otler assampricns cotsian, would Tuve sifkcled the defined hepedil ohligation by
{he amouwila shoam below,

30 Mareh 2024 31 hlarch 2023
. fuerease Decrease licrease Betreise
Discount rare {2024 - 0.5% and 2023 5 0.5% moveme) {150 163 1.13) Li7
Futuve sidsry proweth (2024 - 0.5% and 3023 - 1L5% mnvement] 1,60 {1.55) 113 .10y

Although the analysis docs ot ke accouti o e Tl distribetion of cash flews expecied wnder tha plan, i dods provide an epproximalion of e sensitiviry of e assunptions shown,

The loftowing tatiie shows expenss recopriized in Profil and Loss account and
31 March 2024 3] Morch 2003

Cuirenl service cost 515 532
Pagt service cost - .
Interes] incon, et ER) 2.3 -
9.58 1.64
The Folfow g table shows vt tegognised. in Other Lomprehensive Tncome
3 Moreh 2034 31 March2073
Aluarial loss (pain)-foks oo defered benalil obiigation ' .08 .09
Return-en plan assels exelyding nterast inenme {6.22) 0,75
146 A.34

Risk Expuosure for grafulty

Thraugh St definet Brepefil plans, the company is exposed Lo a ramiber of 1isks, (he most slenificant of which are- dhetailed below :

a)  Asset volrlility: The pln Bibilitics o caleulaied heing @ discount e sel with reference o bond yiclds, if dhe plan assels indanperfom this yigld, s will creale o deficll. Furthiey
uny decrease in the bond yields wilk increase the plsn liobilities. The plas assets investuvents ane in ungueted seburities whicl are subject 1o Imerest rig risks o) Ui fimd sianages the
el vale rieks lo an poceplable Jow kevel,

b} Sadary growth & Demographlc assumpfions: The plon is of 4 fival salary defined benefi i natare which s sponspred by the Campany and hence it undersaites all the visks
pennining 1o (e plan. Jn particalar, ete s risk for the company Ul any advesse salory growtiyor demographic experience or inadequale rehunes on undeidying plan assets con result in
an ingrease in cost o providing thest benefits 1c.coployees In fituge. Sinee the benelis are lwmp sum ih nalwe the Pl s nol subject 1o huy lengevity Tisks,

wNote 37
Shar-based payment areaugenenis
A Deseripiion of shnre-Lised payment airingeiweis

§. Share opfion progeams (bgnity-setied)
Theusas Cook (India) Elmited, the patent conypiey has granled emplayee slock aptions 1o the Company's empboyees on the daws mentioned below, Under liese plan, e bebder of the
vested oplions ane entiled 1© purchase the shares of ile Tolding comjmuy af cxercige price as mentioned helow.

The key terrs and condifions relaled 1o e franls weddr these plaus are as follows,

Meihod of
Plan Seitlement Graml date M. of aptions Exercise price Yegting perfod
GTOTNDVZO LG Equity 7 Woveminr ' 225 000 fis. 1 100% of the optins
016 vest @ the end.of the
4 years e,
. T-Nov- 20010
BEOP WG T Tiquity 13 June 2008 433000 Rs 13793 104 of e opligns
’ vest al dhe end of e
3 years e
§3-Jung 2021
ESOF 2018-EXECON ) Equity 5 Ociober 2018 97,258 s | 100% of the aptitnis
vest Ak the end of the
3 years e
3-Qek- 2023

Share options owstanding al the e of the year linve the following expiry date awd exerelse prices

Alarch 31,2034 March 11,2002

Cirmnd Duie Expley date/ Explry Year - isercise price (its) g\ oplioms Share options

7 Movember 2006 I Nevember 2040 H - -

12 dune 2013 10 Jutie 2003} 13793 149,000 173,000

5§ Octoher 2018 20 Sepluinber 2043 1 - L VAN
Total 149,000 a0 NEL Y
weighted nverape remaining contraciual life of options nuistiuding a1 el of yeny TI8 Vs {/ /ﬁ i‘lri!h\

WY

Cential 8 Wing and
Harih . Wang,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Conlinued}
Sor the year ended 37 Mavel 2024

(AL amiount i 1S Millions, unless otherwize stired)

Nate 37 (Comtinned)
Share-based payment arrangenenls: (Condinued)

12, Mensurenend of fair values
Lgjuily-seitled share-lased payihint amungemens

The [air value of ihe =nypluyes share options has been measwved using (he Black-Sehtdes fomurk: The Bleck- Scholes. model requires e considermiion of cortain variables sueh as
volnility, fidk free fate, eapected dividend yield, e1c. for fhe calculation of the fair valoe o the bption. These viiables significantly inMence the Tair vadue aid sy changes in these
viahles could significantly affect the fair sl of the option,

Themas ook {India} Limited, ihe hodding cobpiny {"TCIL") s 3 compasite sehoms: of amangement demerged s Haman Resources Services Business snd wansferred it 10 Quess Cop
Linsited ("Quess"}. The scheme was approved by Lie National Campany Law Tribunal (NCLT} with the appainied date as April 1, 2039, The efTective dnte of the stheme was Novesiber
25, 2019 when bolh TCIL and Quess filed 1l cerlified copies of e drder with iheir respective jurisdiclionsl Regisizar of Comparies,

Ag a part ol the composhe schame, Bmployees whose BSOPs were antsiandig on the £fective date witl bs emitled to the additional shares of Quess on ascouni of. the dewerger of
Human Resource Business. Instead of alering the exerclse price, TCY. provided additional swnrd in Tomn of Quess slais,

The eryoyees are pow dnditled ta sharcs of Quess atong with these of TCIL Tn e smae share entillement diti prescribed fa e scl for ihe othier sharholdess of TCTL.

Incase of vesied ESOPs, the employess will be granked shares of TCIL and Quess only on payinent of fhe excrsise price. In case of unvested ESOPs, the employees will be grmited shares
of TEN, aned Guess on comiplelion of 1he ramdining vesting period and paymest of e exercise price,

The aptions, (o the extenl, which ave settled by shares of Ouess do nol meet the <ofinition of a share-hssed payment ansagement because he vitue of shares of Quesz 15 nol basetl pu the
e or vl ol TEILS equity msirmends vramy of its goup entity's equily nstroments,

The optiong (g the exiend which aé seitled by shates of Guess will be considered as an-employes benefii witlin e seope of I AS 19,

The aptions settled by sliares of TCIL, cautinue to-be considered as shave based payments and g acooaed as per D A5 102,

Miarch 2624 March 2023
- ESOP 2013- ESO 20184 EEQP 2018- FSOR 2018.
GTOTNOVBIG MOMT EXECOM GTOMOYING MONT EXECOM
Faiiv value: (sop Exprnses) 1795 83.65 135.50 1335 83.65 15530
Fair valve (Stock Eapenses) 95,29 65,71 4521 0529 45,71 9521
Nuomber of pplions - 149,000 - - 173,000 57,326
Share pice af praui dale 218.55 245.63 156,20 218535, 24864 25020
Exercise price 1,00 137.93 (R0 100 137.93 310}

. Reconcllintion of putstanding share oplions

The numiber and welghled-average exdéncse prices of shane splions.under e share option programs were a3 Foliows:

Parficnias Number of  Welghted average Rumberof oplions  Weightod average
upligns excreist price EXeTCISE price

31 March 2024 A1 Alarch 2024 31 March 2023 31-doreh 2023

Ciptions oulstanding as st the beginning of he year 23b,326 103.85 238,326 191435
Uiplions gramed diring he year - - - -
Cplians Exercised dudig the year 73,326 - - -
Opiians lapsed? forfeited during e vear &,000 13193 $.000 137.93
Options oulstanting ws af the year end 149,060 137.93 23326 10335
Optiors vested and exercisable a (he end of The year 149,000 137.93 173,000 137.93

D Expensesfshares option ouisiandlag aceoune avising from share bised paywent (ransaclivns
Tidal cxpenses arlsing Irgm sharc-based payrend related (ransactions recognised n prodit or loss s part of eimployes beae[# expense were as follows:

Pariiculing 33 Afnxch 2024 31 Mpch 24123
Fmployyer ESOF expenses (1.26)

Iig)\l:yee Stuck Expenses ] (0.77)
/ 2

Coriat B Vg
Heeth L Mg
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SOTC Travel Limited

MNates ta the inanels) statements (Continued)
ax .t 31 March 2§24
LAl dmount i Rs Millitns, unless ollicrwise staled)

Note 38
Relaled party (ransactlons

{AY Naoes of velated parties Iy whom conirol exists

Name of 1 pariies R(‘hl{‘!ﬂl‘i ships
Fairlax Financial Hobtings Fhmiled, Canada LHtiewate Haldding Company
Themns Cook {India) Limited ‘Halding Company

{B) Yarties over swhiom control exists

Relationships Matie of the paries

Bubsiciany Company of SOTC Travel Linited Travel <irche Intenadicnal {Mavetinsg Lindied (1 olding 359 oF Loal Tguin we.l 27 Jume 207}

T Tellow Subsidinvies sihd ofbor velnted parties will wlionh trausactions has takon place-during the year

Reluthiships Nan of the paitics

Tellow subsidinyics TG Wiz Sérvices flnding Lindled
Travé] Corporatica (Indin} Limiled {Amaly T w.e.d. 2500 Hovetber, 2416
Themas Coal: Lanka {Frivate) Limited
Sterling Holiday Reserls Linjted
Agian Trails Shpapore Pre Limied
Asan Fraiis SN BHD (Malaysia)
Asian Fuails Limived. {1miland}
1T Astan Trally Limited
Asian Frails (Vietnam) Co, Limited
Asian Tiails Combodia
Tenoni Private Safinds {Piy) Limited
Frivate Safariz EA Limiled
TC Towrs Limited (Fommesdy kavwn as ‘Thowas Cook Tows Lingitod?)
Australia Tours Management Py Limited.
LYET Holdings Limited
Horizon Traved Serviees LLC
Dasest Adveptures Towrsm LLC
Travet Circle Internatona] Lid Flonydkong
Asian Trails Holding Limited.
Kuoni Australia Holding Ply Lanied
Thnes (ool {Mawiins} Operations Co Laiied

Chiees Corp Limited {Assneipie of Fridsidee Captal {Mavrilns) Limited )
CHher Relsted Parties Tarriti Seuity Serviees (India) Peivale Limited (Associsie of Quess Corp Limiilod)
G Digit General Inawanee | imited

(D} Key Management Personmel / Diveciors and Mansgement Counedl

Tarticulurs Nrme pfthe key managemead personned
alanagng Divector 1. Vishal Sun
Litrections of the Conpany Mr. Madbavan Menon

infr, Wilesh Vikamsey

Mrs.Kishori deshi

My, Rabnd Bhapat
M. Pebasis Mandy

Chief Financial Officer dr. Faoookh Kolak
Conpany Secrelury Wz Shaily Gupta fw.ed 5l Apr 3003
Members of Manogeniem Conaeil wr. Vighad Swi

B, Faroukh Kolah
Mr Indiver Rastogi
Br 5 [ Nandabuwar

Mr. Daniel Drsouza @ & CD‘

. M. Deepii Sheth C'V"\\fil
Hth £
Y . A rmmmug.,::m 9

Nriarih { Wing.
sto [T Parkd,
L4 " Kesco Canter, ¥*
attarn Expits s Haghway
QN Guegaon Feste. o/ o
¢ &
G )
e i)

e —

o
L




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to 1he financial stztements {Continued)

as i 3 Suech 2424

(AN snount in Rs Milfions, unless ofiervise staled)

Rekaled pary teansadtions (Continied)

(B} Refused pavtivs with when fransagtions hus fikén place during the yeay

Pavricupars.

Tueaine feam toarsSabe of servlees
Cadt of snurs/Parvchinse of services
Cluarander fees paid

Fapenses reimbitrsed

Expenses roeotered

Tnlerest expenses on ROU nssels
RO lease Walsility

Produciivity Tnlivd buisis Income
CES (GPS) lneame

Hotel Comtission Income

Terns Joan giver daring (e yeur

Term lpan recéived during the year

1tercst ineonte o 1o loan

Lisferest expenses on ferm loan

Provision for dontful advances

Receivaliles
Advance to suppliers

Payaliles

< Term lons piven {ropaid) doring the yene

Term boan reveived (repakd} dwdigg the yoar

Year Nolding Congraay
2024 4,29
ey ek 20656
024 236.12
2023 199.23
2024 Gor
2023 .09
2024 15815
Jeci ek 162.90
2024 4.08
2023 634
W34 365
2023 39%
7024 " 30
023 41.95
2024 .
2023 -
24
2003 .
24 .
jik) R
. 202g -
2033 20,00
2024 -
23 F20.00
204 461L00
2023 290,060
2024 datk 0
kg 200,00
2024 -
2023 LN}
2024 17
2023 300
2024 .
2013 R
2024 045
Pt LT §.95
pdivL] R
2023 .
202 999
jelivs:) 223

Dlimate Holdlne Compaiy

Reled party traaisuctions (Contlned)

{F} Nemes of pariies (snhsidiaries 2nd fellow sabsidiarles) having related party DansaeGons i excess of 20% 0 Ene transaeflons:

Fartleulars

Ingome from loursfSake of services

Cost of tours/Purehase of services

Feltw subsidinries

TCT GO Vacation
Travel Corporation (India} 1L imited

TC Tours Limiled

Horizon Travel Services LLE

Present Advenles Toorism LLC

TC Visa Services {Indiaj Limited

Trarvel Comoration (hwdia) Liniled

Asian Trails { Thaiand)

Hauont Privare Safaris (Py) Limiled
Thomas Cook (Matritios) Holidays Limiled
Asin Trails (Malawia) ST BHD
Asian Trails Singapore Me Limitod.

1" Asian Treils Lhniled

Asian Trails Co Lintited Vicinam

Asian Trabls Camboalia

Privale Safaris A Liwited

Awtvalin Tours Mavagement P Limiled.

Fetlay: iy
“subsidigries Hanagement
Persounei anil
I8 relut
VKT 15
2561 -
1,725,485 -
138974 -
@11 -
181 -
140 -
430 .
n -
2 .
151 .
632 -
287 -
.49 -
740 -
740 -
16.51 -
1498 .
740 -
740 .
1558 -
£2.30 -
nrch 2124 1-Ddge- 23
- 8.89
R 24.6%
gl 33 767
$6.36 d8.13
410,79 FLAARG
iR)2) 103
- 4
115.71 3351
15.59 HUEGH
- 013
15126 516
1635 e
W3R £76
124,03 643
{58 .
34)
[

Westem Fapiess [aghvery




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the Rnaicial statemonts (Continuce)

a5 ai 3 darel 2024
(Al amonnl in Rs illions, wnless olhersise stated)

Expénses relnbursid

fxpenses peenvered

1iotet € amnnissioir Jncome
Produeliviiy linked Louis
CRE (GRS Incomy

Trovisian for doabtin advances

Cher Rekited Paviies

Koy Management Perseanel and its volatives

Reteivables

Paynbihes

Advance do suppliers

Travel Corparation {india) Limited”
Trave] Qirele Inteenationa] Limited Hanghong

Travel Corpaation {Indiag Linvied

Horizon Tatvel Serviews LLC

Dresert Adventures Touvism L1C

Privale Saliwia EA Limited

Kutni Private Safans (Piy) Limied

Itavel Cirele International 1.fmited Hongkong
I2ET Haldings Limited

Aglam Traild Holding Lhnfled.

Kuoni Ausiraiin Holding Pry Linvited

Thetwas Conk Gelanritias) Onerations Co Limied
Thomas Cook: Lanka ¢ Privalcy Limiiok
Sierling Heliday Resoats Limiled

TC Tours Linsited
TC Tenws Limiied
TC Towrs Linited
Luxe Asig Priviile Limied

Ca Digit General Insirance Limiled
Quesgs Torp Limited.
Tervier Seourity Services (Indin) Frivate Limited

3dr Vighal Sim

Mea Nobatna Swd

s Sasksh] Vighat Suri
Hr Armran Yighat Suid

Travel Corporation (lndia} Limised

TC) GO Wagalicn

Haorizon Travel Berviees L3O

i3esen Adventures Tourism LLE

lwomi Privere Safars (P1y] Linsled
Thantas ook Lanka (Privake) Limited
Trivale Salhis A Limjeed

DEI Holdings Limited

Asian Trails Holdiag Limived,

Tuoni Austealia Helding Pry Limited
Thomas Coolk (Mawiting) Holidms Linited
Thomes Chok {Mavritiug) Operations (o Limhed
Travel Circle 1 ional Linited Hongl
Sterling Holiday Resenis imited

Trawel Corjoration (Indin} Limited

Privaie Sufaris EA Limiled

Famsi Privale Safaris (Py) Limited

Asian Trails (Thaikimdd)

Hogizon Teavel Serviees LLC

Dicser! Adventuces Todrisi LLE

Themas ool (Mavriting} Helidavs Limied
TC Trurs Limited .
TC Visa Services (India) Limited

Auvstrokiz Towrs

BT Asian Tradls Limited

Asian Traits Cp Limited Vismam

Agian Trails Singhpore Pie Linsited,

Agian Trabs (Malaysia) SN D

& Co R
> 141k o, (( o

Faase Asdu Privare Linfted

011

3
026
nzy
n.z0
020
1%
pXH
43
69
024
{34
148

187

3812
255
883

nuy
G.Ug
[111)]
4.0

£.6%
0.04
448
0.63
LT3
it
LN [
LT
1.5
0.3

4487
0o
0.0

EERES
205
8§47
02
318

XAl
0.08
0,50
308

19.34

0.4
s

168
a7
a3s
0.7
047
437
1y
035
009
011
0.
o2

YL
if |
633

740

&4
043
13
1142
0.38
L38 |
0
105
BIF
027
40
43 1)
i2(K]
14

2ee]

2.55

Lo ¥y gt
fiaeth G Weng,
Neseo 1T Pared,
Hasca Center,

Wesleen Expiess Haghweay,




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes fo 1he finnncial statenients (Continued}
it e 3 Mareh 2024

(AN amound in R Milliousrunléss olherwise saled)

(Gy Redaied pavies wilh Hotefing aud Viimasie Holding Compnny

{H)

|"ﬂi‘ﬂl‘.ll]:ﬂf§

lutome froa tours

Cust of tonre and related services
Fxpenses vejinl sed

Expensis vecoyered

Awterest pxpenses on ROV assals

ROU kease Lalillly:

Guaranier Fees paid

Terim buan ghn iiuriug the yenr

Term boan ghven (repald) dering te yer

Tern foan recelved durkng the year

Term oan recelvet] (repaidd dariug the yenr

Ingevest Ineome an lern Jnan
Titervst experses an iezm loan
Tersivabies

Puyables

Thewus Caote {Tadiag Limited

Thonns ook {Tndis) Limbted
Thoias Cocd {India) . invited
Thomas Cook {ndéa) Limiied
Fhmses ook (ndia) | inieed
Thomas Cook {India) Limited
s Ceok {lndia) Linied
‘Thomas Cook (lndiap Limdted
Taionsis Cook (India) Limiled
Thaoens Cenk (Ingn} Limited
Theisas Cenk (India} Limited
Themas Cook (ki) Limited
“Thwsias Cook {ladia) Limited
Theunas ook (India} Linsited

Themas Cook (Inding Limited

31 Mpreh 2024
4.29

236,12

158,15

4.08

90,39

31 March 2623 |

204
199,23
16290

634

.98

EARC

0.0
130.60
12404
294040

200,00

Transaetions wirh Koy Monagement Persanned

Particylars

Salaries and ether emplover heradins fcluding geatuaty to-shode-fnie Siretlors and exéculive offcers

Wr. Vishal Sun

. Faroakh Kolab
Ms. Sy Gpta
Nolr, & D Mundukaner
i, Thaniv] Dastrea
M8, Deepti Shelky

Commigsion.and olher berefils ko nou-cievutivefindependent dircclors

A March 2024

31 March 2073 |

HH
7.4
AN

T,

Cerkal 5 g
Rurth C Whig.
* Hesew Y Pagkd,
" Ne;:e Eéner,
, | TOSTerR EXpress Highway
f,} Govegat ifasi),
L)

Mumbai - 460 0&3




SOTC Travel Limited

Nates 1o the finandal statements (Coulinned)
as ot 3 Maveh 224

(Al amount i Rs Millions, wmiless ofherwise stated)

Noie 39
Flaamels] perfenmance rating N merator Dengimbnator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Yo Ulange
A (Performance Ratics. .
Net Profit ralio (i) Pialitil.ass) aiter ey Revenne ffom operations 1% i) H5%
) Averape worling capitel =
Wet Capital Pernover Ratio n imaz} (i} Reverue frum opivations (Cpening net corrend psseds + (8.85) [EE2)] M)
Closing net cuberd assetsd >
Copital Lanployed = Tangible
Retwn on Capital Employed ik Profit(Loss) befoee interest and 1ax Mot Worth ** 4 Todad Debt + - E5% 36t 31%
Lease Linbilitivs
. Averaps total eguily = (Opening
Hennm ot Tauily ratio () Profit{Loss) afier fax il equily + Closiug tolal 1T% b -50%
Bty
_ . . Avtrage ivesied fand in
Rettn on Investnent {iv) Incoeng gencraied from wvesied fand in e pa ke 10|16_mns !‘\md’s in the Joy % o)
imarket : warkel+ Closing fimds in the ;
macke i
o I I, Prafiif{Less) befors imeres), tex and , Benrawings principal payments
o o L " Tg3 n
Dbt Service Coverage raije (i) Leepreciptlon ond ameitisaiion Iteres! andd Dease prysaent 401 9 %
B [Leverape Ra_{lns _
Liebd- Equily Ratia (iv) Teurl Bortowings Tolat Bguity . 032 (91 3%
C | Ligeldity Ratios
Current rio Crarrem Asyets Tl Cuirent Liabilities 064 .56 {35
B FActivity Ratio )
trvenbary Turgver radio Cogl ol mhdees Clnsing fvenary . KA . A . WA
Acernpe frade receivables =
Trade Receivable Thoovis: Watio {HH) Revenise fréam operathng (Cpening trade repeivable £ 7149 TR HITA
' Closing Lypde rgceivable)s?
Avernge Lipde pavable »
‘Trade Payabie urmover Rafis {7if) Coosl of servites (Opening ade nayaide + 583 447 5405
Closing lrade payatle)/2
# Net curent assely = Tolal et assets - Towal cusem lizdily
*Tagibde net weeth = Fotal peleaith - lntangible assels {incloding mlangible asset under develapmen! and goodw ity
Teasin for Varkapee
i Due e mipration [onew 1ax segbme ufs 1 15BAA
it Do o reduction th working casiial and-incrensed in revenue from opeitians.
il e 1o improvement in the bosincss operation resulting in increased profits
v The ratio as decreased hécanse company has Tepaid bank overdral.
Noled0

Other Statisiery Infarnation

(i) The Corpany does vok have any Beiomi proprily, wheee noy proveeding has bheen fniliated of is pending against (e Company, for bolding amy Besamd property.
£i1) The Compaiy doas nnl have any cluarires or satishaciion ol sueh charges winich e v2l to be registeced will {he Regisira of Companies {ROCY beyand the statslory pesied,

{11} The Cospany: ing nod vagded o invested in Cnpre carreney or Vidual Currency dering she financizl vear,

{iv) The Company has nol pdvanced o loancd or ivesled Tonds bo any tller prersei{sh or eatily(es), Including foreign cotities {1 fiaries) with dhe pndersanding that the Intemwedizay shall:
o} direelly or indireetly Yend or imvest in ollier persons of eatiliss identificd in amymanner whatseover by ar on behalf of ke company (Uhimate Peseliciones) oy
{h] provide any puamniee, security or the ke {0 or on behulF of the Liinale Beneficiardes,

{v) The Company lias nof received any fond from any personis) or entityties), including fbreign entties {Funding Paity} with Ve vaderstanding {uhether secorded in writing or othenvise) ihat e Comppany shall;

{a) dircetly or mdiesty v of fnves) in alier persons or ertites identified in amy imanner whidsobver by o on behall of the Fandiug Yoy (Ullimald Beaeficiaries) o

(b} provide any grarenise, securily o' the like on behall of the Ulipme Benaliciaries, L
Y

B b
. - . . " - = T o

(i) The Company does ol havs sy feansaciion which is nei recordud in the hooks ST aecoun! thal Jeve been sumendercd o diselosed a8 income Sfing e yor in the 1ay assessmenls dnder the Ineorne Tol A,
M3t {3ecls as, sehrel o survenh or iy sther relevant provisions of the Income-tax Acl, 1961, " '\.‘ T
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SOTC Travel Limited

Netrs do the financis! stalements {Coniinwed)
s et 3 ddarch 700

LAT mmonn in Ry Ailtious, wnless niharwise sated}

Noig 41

‘l‘nulsfl‘r"l’dciﬁ;;' . : )

The Compang ks estabiished 2 coanprehensive syslew: of wi ef TRrmmbon ond o s enquivedd by the Jranster priving lepistatinn Uk Sorifns S2-43F ol the Incomeam Ao Sinee the fan guees
existence of such micmming and doe Wl o e ¥ in mAwre. tw Company s 0 the rocess of apdating the dog jon fer e § foasid 5 ool s sposifed denestic tnmsaetig, F
wppivable) ericeed int wilh i associued. enferise during Y Yinancisl year and exprels sueh reoonds 0 be 5 esistonce late by e oad af e stigatied diweTioe, 25 vequired by ke The Massgeme i 6 e
cpinion Wat s fonal as aeh as spegifed i v Iransrctions G o) w acm’s beogd s it dhe aforosnid ogizlabion o 5 o nve iy inpact os Qe Teaecad stinements, pasticolaty on e o oF 1

eapenses wd ol of provigion far bisasion,

Wi 42 . . .
Cither mferimation with rogaribs sthor pattees speyiGed i schedute B ol the Comptnics Aot 2012 is cither nil or nof apphicalde fo e comgsery for e Gt yenn eaded 31 Manch 2004,

N 44 -
Thiunas Cood (ndial Limilod, S Bolding Compi . prepas « drdated Faaetal upuder Ind A%, henoe Company Tas avalfed e excaption for peepaning consofidated fraseal st oeda bal A%
THL :
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